
NOTICE OF MEDC PUBLIC HEARING and REGULAR MEETING 

Montgomery Economic Development Corporation 

(MEDC) 

 

 

NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC IS HEREBY GIVEN in accordance with the order of the Office of the 

Governor issued March 16, 2020, the Board of Directors will conduct its MEDC PUBLIC HEARING and 

REGULAR MEETING scheduled for 6:00 PM on Monday, March 15, 2021, at City of Montgomery City 

Hall, 101 Old Plantersville Road, Montgomery, Texas via Zoom Teleconferencing. 

 

This meeting will be closed to in-person attendance by the public.  A temporary suspension of the Open 

Meetings Act to allow telephone or videoconference public meetings has been granted by Governor Greg 

Abbott. These actions are being taken to mitigate the spread of COVID-19 by avoiding meetings that bring 

people into a group setting and in accordance with Section 418.016 of the Texas Government Code.  

Videoconferencing capabilities will be utilized to allow individuals to address the MEDC. Members of the 

public who wish to submit their written comments on a listed agenda item must submit them by email to 

rtramm@ci.montgomery.tx.us by 3:00 p.m. on March 15, 2021.  

 

Members of the public are entitled to participate remotely via Zoom Teleconferencing.  Citizens may join 

the Zoom Meeting by logging on: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84394532162  and using Meeting ID: 843 

9453 2162. They may also join by calling (346) 248-7799 and entering the Meeting ID: 843 9453 2162.   

 

The Meeting Agenda Pack will be posted online at www.montgomerytexas.gov.  The meeting will be 

recorded and uploaded to the City’s website the following day. Notice - any person(s) using profane, 

abusive or threatening language may result in them being removed from the Teleconference Meeting.  

CALL TO ORDER 

PUBLIC HEARING(S): 

1. Convene into Public Hearing for the purpose of receiving public comments related to: (1) 

Economic Development Grant from Troy Tep LLC for a sign at 22453 FM 1097, and (2) 

Economic Development Grant from Montgomery Historical Society Regarding Old Montgomery 

Cemetery Improvements. 

Adjourn Public Hearing 

Reconvene Regular Meeting 

OPEN PUBLIC COMMENT 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

2. Approval of Minutes of Special and Annual Meeting held on January 19, 2021 

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL REPORT 

3. Approval of January and February 2021 Finance Reports 

CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION: 

4. Consideration of Economic Development Grant Application from Ryan Londeen for a 

Historical Marker for the Chilton House and Consider Calling a Public Hearing, if necessary. 

5. Consideration of Economic Development Grant from Troy Tep LLC for a sign at 22453 FM 

1097. 

1

mailto:rtramm@ci.montgomery.tx.us
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84394532162
http://www.montgomerytexas.gov/


6. Consideration of Economic Development Grant from Montgomery Historical Society Regarding 

Old Montgomery Cemetery Improvements. 

7. Consideration of Signage Grant Policy 

8. Consideration of Funding Specific Budget Items Under Existing Categories in Current MEDC 

Budget. 

9. Update on the Montgomery Music & Mudbugs Festival 

10. Consider request by Tom Ward of Montgomery Soccer Club to move irrigation equipment 

approved in MEDC Grant on December 5, 2017, to an alternate location.   

11. Review of MEDC Social Media Program 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT REPORTS 

12. City Administrator's Development Report 

13. Engineer's Report 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

The MEDC Board of Directors reserves the right to discuss any of the items listed specifically under this 

heading or for any items listed above in executive closed session as permitted by law including if they meet 

the qualifications in Sections 551.071(consultation with attorney), 551.072 (deliberation regarding real 

property), 551.073 (deliberation regarding gifts), 551.074 (personnel matters), 551.076 (deliberation 

regarding security devices), and 551.087 (deliberation regarding economic development negotiations) of 

Chapter 551 of the Government Code of the State of Texas. (There are no items planned at this time.) 

POSSIBLE ACTION FROM EXECUTIVE SESSION: 

BOARD INQUIRY 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

                                                                                              /s/Richard Tramm_____________________ 

                                                                                              Richard Tramm, City Administrator for         

                                                                                              Rebecca Huss, President of MEDC 

 

I certify that the attached notice of meeting was posted on the bulletin board at City of Montgomery City 

Hall, 101 Old Plantersville Road, Montgomery, Texas, on March 12, 2021 at 3:00 p.m. I further certify that 

the following news media was notified of this meeting as stated above:  The Courier 

 

This facility is wheelchair accessible and accessible parking spaces are available. Please contact the City 

Secretary’s office at 936-597-6434 for further information or for special accommodations. 

2



1/19/2021 MEDC Meeting Minutes – Page1 
 

MINUTES OF SPECIAL AND ANNUAL MEETING 

January 19, 2021 

MONTGOMERY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 

 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

President Rebecca Huss called the Zoom Teleconference meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

 

Present: Rebecca Huss - President 

  Arnette Easly – Vice-President 

  Carol Langley - Treasurer 

  Ryan Londeen – Secretary 

Dan Walker – Board Member 

  Tom Cronin – Board Member 

  Jeffry Angelo – Board Member 

   

Absent:   

 

Also Present: Richard Tramm – City Administrator 

  Amy Brown – former Board Member 

 

2. OPEN PUBLIC COMMENT 

No public comment. 

 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

Minutes of Regular Meeting held on November 16, 2020   

President Huss asked for comments on the minutes as presented.  Motion to approve the 

Regular Meeting Minutes was made by Mr. Walker and seconded by Mr. Cronin.  All in favor.  (7-

0) 

 

3

Item 2.



1/19/2021 MEDC Meeting Minutes – Page2 
 

 

4. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL REPORT 

Report for November 2020 

Report presented by Mr. Tramm. 

Sales tax transfer of $61,541.64 was received and transferred on January 8th. This will show up in 

the December financials. 

MEDC had loaned 750,512.50 to the City for a property purchase. The first payment has been 

received. Payments will occur over a 12-month period. The payment was over $63,000. The loan 

rate is at 1.5%. This rate benefits both the City and the MEDC. 

TexPool investments is paying 0.09%. This is probably near the bottom, but Mr. Tramm is still 

monitoring as we don’t want it to move into a negative interest territory without considering 

alternatives. Mrs. Huss mentioned that short term deposit rates are in fact negative in some 

countries. 

Two Kroger transfers are posted to the reimbursement account. First transfer of the month was 

based on the previous fiscal year. 

Southern Rum Runners not-to-exceed amount were updated. This was approved at the meeting 

on Nov. 16th. 

Mr. Angelo inquired into the location of the property that was purchased by the City. Mr. 

Tramm stated that the land is immediately east of the MISD primary education center on the 

Clepper side.  

Mr. Angelo inquired into the purpose of the property. Mr. Tramm stated that there is no final 

determination on its purpose. He stated it could potentially be parking or a future City Hall site. 

There are multiple options for the property. 

Motion by Ms. Langley, seconded by Mr. Angelo, to approve the November 2020 Financial 

Report as presented.  All in favor.  (7-0) 

5. RECOGNITION OF OUTGOING MEDC DIRECTORS 

The terms of Amy Brown, Julie Hutchison, and Bob Kerr have all come to end. The term of 

Rebecca Huss also ended but is continuing to serve with a reappointment to the MEDC Board. 

Mrs. Huss read aloud the proclamations of appreciation for Amy Brown. It was noted that Amy 

Brown was in attendance. 

Mrs. Huss read aloud the proclamation of appreciation for Julie Hutchison. It was noted that 

Julie Hutchison was not able to attend the meeting due to a family emergency. 

Mrs. Huss noted Bob Kerr’s years of service. Mrs. Huss read aloud the proclamation of 

appreciation for Bob Kerr. 

Mrs. Huss thanked all who served and are serving the MEDC. 

4

Item 2.



1/19/2021 MEDC Meeting Minutes – Page3 
 

 

6. CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION 

a. MEDC Overview Presentation 

Mr. Tramm presented an overview of the MEDC covering 

1. History & Legal Standing 

a. Income Sources (sales tax, interest on investment accounts, and contracts) 

b. MEDC Management 

c. EconDev Sales Tax 

2. Economic Development 

a. what it is and what it may include 

b. primary and non-primary jobs 

c. larger concentration of non-primary jobs in the City 

3. MEDC Budget 

a. Prepared by City Admin 

b. Adopted by MEDC Board of Directors 

c. $10,000 and greater must also be approved by City Council 

d. Income (0.5% sales tax, investments accounts, and contracts) and Expenses (Cat. 

1 – 5) 

4. Expense Category 1 - Public Infrastructure 

a. Downtown Design and Development 

b. Streets and sidewalks 

c. Utility Extensions 

d. City Capital Project Contributions 

5. Expense Category II – Business Development and Retention 

6. Expense Category III – Quality of Life 

a. Community Events (parades, festivals, etc.) 

b. Minor projects like removal of blight 

7. Expense Category IV – Marketing & Tourism 

a. Increased focus on Social Media 

b. The Parade brought in a good amount of business to the downtown district 

8. Expense Category V – Administration 

9. MEDC 2020 Events 

a. Some events canceled due to pandemic 

b. Did have Light up the Park and Christmas Parade 

10. MEDC 2021 Tentative Events 

a. Montgomery Mudbugs & Music Festival 

b. Water Party 

c. Craft Food Truck Festival 

d. Flag Festival 

e. Light up the Park 

f. Christmas Parade 

11. MEDC Social Media 

5

Item 2.



1/19/2021 MEDC Meeting Minutes – Page4 
 

a. MEDC helped expand the social media presence of the City 

b. Developed a social media icon with local history of the Texas Flag and town 

goat. 

Mr. Londeen inquired about developer agreements and whether they go through the MEDC or 

the City. Mr. Tramm noted that they can go through both and that there are currently two 

reimbursement agreements including MEDC (Kroger and Shoppes of Montgomery). Mrs. Huss 

mentioned that historically the City is the main driver and that the MEDC essentially had been 

told how to participate. Mrs. Huss suggested that for future agreements, someone on the MEDC 

board who is also not on the governing body should represent the MEDC alongside the City. 

 

b. Report of 2020 Activities and Goals 

Mrs. Huss mentioned that funding sources have not been determined for the Historic 

Downtown Master Plan. Mr. Tramm said that going forward into 2021, focus will be made on 

identifying funding sources. 

Mr. Londeen inquired if the Gunda corporation contracted directly with the MEDC. Mr. Tramm 

indicated it is. 

Mr. Londeen inquired if the scope of work is available. Mr. Tramm said he will get that to Mr. 

Londeen. 

Mr. Londeen inquired if the scope of work included identifying funding sources. Mrs. Huss 

indicated that it was brought up by Gunda, but that it was not explicitly stated in the scope. 

They indicated that they would tailor the project to get specific funding. Mr. Tramm said Gunda 

brought it forward and touted experience with identifying potential sources funding. Mrs. Huss 

said there is incentive for them to assist in identifying funding sources since it will be needed for 

project completion and it will be a nice project. She indicated that there may be additional 

assistance through the Sea Grant with assistance Walter. She also suggested HGAC and to look 

into whether Texas Main street is a possibility. 

Continue to anticipate future utility projects. If a certain business need comes along, then MEDC 

is available to participate. Road work, utility lines, etc. to help with business development. 

Shoppes of Montgomery as an example. 

Mrs. Huss mentioned there is lot of planning and coordination to make the downtown 

redevelopment happen. Mr. Tramm indicated that there is a lot underground utility 

coordination that will be required. Huss indicated that she’d like to see the overhead utilities 

moved underground. 

Add a marketing and tourism coordinator to the staff. The City did have this position but was 

laid off when there was a lot of economic uncertainty. MEDC has refocused to have a strong 

social media push ever since pandemic started. 

Mr. Londeen inquired if a consultant could be hired to handle social media. Mr. Tramm said the 

City does do that now. 

6

Item 2.



1/19/2021 MEDC Meeting Minutes – Page5 
 

Event radios were purchased and were successfully used in the parade. 

Only one business so far applied for the plywood goats. Several others expressed interest. 

Mr. Angelo inquired how many people know about the goat. Suggested new ways to get the 

story out such as reaching out to schools. Mr. Tramm said you can only educate the people who 

are in a position to receive the information such as being subscribed to the social media pages. 

The goat story is not part of the 7th grade project. Mrs. Huss indicated that they had 1,200 

responses back from local elementary schools for the goat naming contest. 

Mr. Angelo stated he loved the fact that it represented the warmth of the community. Stated 

that the logo is important because it is the face of the city. 

Mrs. Huss suggested doing school related activities to help disseminate info on the icon. 

Mr. Londeen inquired if there is a webpage for the goat. Suggested using a QR code for the 

webpage and putting on the plywood goats as an example. Mrs. Huss requested to add that idea 

to the 2021 goals. 

Mrs. Huss asked to have the Distrx tour on the website as a 2021 goal. 

Mr. Angelo said the goat should be the center of the events and festivals. He likes the idea of 

putting the QR code on the goat and suggested a goat decorating event. 

Light up the park had roughly 700 people in attendance. This was the first time to institute fee 

of $25 to decorate the poles. Only the poles along the main roadway incurred a charge and most 

were free to decorate. 45 out of 47 total poles were reserved for decoration and all of the poles 

with a fee were also reserved. The overall event was over on expenses by $138. 

Christmas parade was successful despite a couple of last minute pull outs (Lake Creek and 

Montgomery High Schools due to playoffs and competition). 

 

c. 2021 Planning Items and Goals 

a. Downtown Development 

b. Utility and Road Extension Projects 

c. Develop a Calendar of Events 

d. Respond to a changing environment in both attracting business and marketing / tourism 

e. Add town goat to website 

Mrs. Huss recommended focusing efforts on conveying more information about the goat to the 

public. Also develop a system using QR codes. Maybe use QR codes generally to point people to 

the website. QR codes need to be permanent and more research needs to be done on QR codes. 

Mr. Angelo suggested asking people to submit email or phone number when the QR codes are 

accessed to help build a database of people to use for future event promotion. He also 

suggested getting a social media company to help navigate through social media.  

Mr. Angelo inquired into who manages the social media accounts. Mrs. Huss mentioned that she 

handles the social media efforts. Mr. Angelo suggested reaching out to local companies who can 

7

Item 2.



1/19/2021 MEDC Meeting Minutes – Page6 
 

do a lot to push social media content at little cost. He also suggested getting a company to look 

at the website and to get the most out of it. Mr. Angelo offered to lead the effort to reach out to 

these marketing companies. 

Mrs. Huss and Mr. Tramm indicated that the sales tax for 2020 was better than expected 

considering the pandemic. 

 

d. Annual Financial Report 

Larger sum was put into the events category. When the events didn’t happen, the money was 

not allocated. Similar for the current fiscal year. 

Having less expenses for the year, there was a larger surplus than expected mostly due to 

unspent revenue. 

 

e. Election of Officers 

Four officers up for election: Secretary, Treasury, President, and Vice President. 

Mr. Easley nominated Mr. Angelo for secretary. Mr. Angelo declined the nomination. He asked 

to not be nominated to an officer position this year. 

Mrs. Huss nominated Mr. Londeen to the position of Secretary. Mr. Londeen consented. No 

other nominations were brought forward. Mr. Londeen was confirmed to the position of 

Secretary. 

Mr. Walker nominated Ms. Langley to the position of Treasurer. Ms. Langley consented. No 

other nominations were brought forward. Ms. Langley was confirmed to the position of 

Treasurer. 

Mr. Walker nominated Mr. Easley to position of Vice President and Mr. Easley nominated Mr. 

Walker to position of Vice President. Mrs. Huss asked Mr. Walker if he consented. Mr. Walker 

declined the nomination. Mrs. Huss asked Mr. Easley if he consented to the nomination. Mr. 

Easley consented. No other nominations were brought forward. Mr. Easley was confirmed to 

the position of Vice President. 

Mr. Angelo nominated Mrs. Huss to the position of President. Mr. Walker seconded the 

nomination. No other nominations were brought forward. Mrs. Huss was confirmed to the 

position of President. 

 

f. Election of Signor for Banking Accounts 

Mr. Tramm recommended that all of the officers and himself be elected signatories for banking 

accounts. 

8

Item 2.



1/19/2021 MEDC Meeting Minutes – Page7 
 

Motion by Mrs. Huss, seconded by Mr. Walker, to approve by resolution Ms. Huss, Mr. Easley, 

Ms. Langley, Mr. Londeen and Mr. Tramm as signatories of the bank accounts for the MEDC.  All 

in favor.  (5-0). Mr. Londeen and Mr. Easley were absent at the time of the vote. 

7. Consideration of Economic Development Grant from Troy Tep LLC for a sign at FM 1097 and 

consider calling a Public Hearing, if necessary. 

Mr. Tramm indicated that, after conversation with the City Attorney, this grant application as well as 

agenda item 8 need to be read publicly at two separate MEDC meetings and needs to be subject to a 

public hearing. Agenda items need to be read and a public hearing will need to be called at the next 

MEDC meeting on February 16th. 

Mr. Tramm noted that both grant applicants were notified that there would not be an action on the 

agenda items 7 and 8, and they may not have attended as a result. 

Motion by Mrs. Huss to call a public hearing on Feb 16th 2021 via Zoom for the Economic 

Development Grant from Troy Tep LLC for a sign at FM 1097, seconded by Mr. Easley. All in favor.  

(7-0). 

8. Consideration of Economic Development Grant for Montgomery Historic Society Regarding Old 

Montgomery Cemetery improvements and consider calling a Public Hearing, if necessary. 

Motion by Mr. Angelo to call a public hearing on Feb 16th 2021 via Zoom for the Economic 

Development Grant for Montgomery Historic Society Regarding Old Montgomery Cemetery 

improvements, seconded by Mr. Walker. All in favor.  (7-0). 

 

9. Economic Development Report – Richard Tramm 

a. City Administrator’s Development Report 

Mrs. Huss inquired on the status of the Kamerer tract feasibility study. Mr. Tramm indicated he 

expects to get it back within the next several weeks. Mr. Walker inquired into the location of the 

project. Mr. Londeen asked if that was the property that has potential water issues. Mr. Tramm 

indicated that the City has water improvements underway that will potentially provide sufficient 

water pressure but that that will be looked at in the feasibility study. Mrs. Huss said the 

development would change the dynamics on the City. Mr. Tramm agreed and added that it 

would attract commercial development to the western portion of the City as well as change 

traffic patterns. 

Mr. Walker inquired into any updates on Discount Tire development. Mr. Tramm said he we 

would follow up on that. 

b. City Engineer’s Report 

Presented 

 

9

Item 2.



1/19/2021 MEDC Meeting Minutes – Page8 
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION: 

10. Consideration and possible action on items from Executive Session. 

None 

 

11. BOARD INQUIRY 

None 

 

ACTION ITEMS FOR FUTURE MEETINGS 

 

ACTION ITEM ASSIGNEE DUE DATE 

   

   

   

   

   
 

 

 

12. ADJOURNMENT 

Motion by Mr. Cronin, seconded by Mr. Angelo to adjourn the meeting at 7:44 p.m.  All in favor. (6-0) 

 

 

Submitted by:  _______________________________________ Date Approved:____________________ 

  Richard Tramm, City Administrator 

 

 

      _____________________________________________ 

      Rebecca Huss, MEDC President 

 

10

Item 2.



Mfil2{;_ 

CHECKING ACCOUNT 
TOTAL INVESTMENTS 

TOTALMIDC 

Texpool #00005 

Texpool #00006 

Cettificates 

#1017938 

Total Investment Balance 

** Notes: 

CITY OF MONTGOMERY - MEDC 

ACCOUNT BALANCES REPORT 

Through January 31, 2021- For February 2021 Meeting 

MONEY MARKET 
ACCOUNTS 

$ 266,972.08 
$ 
$ 266,972.08 

Issue Date 
Maturity 

Date 

$ 
$ 

INVESTMENTS 

839,483.38 
839,483.38 

Interest Rate 

0.04% 

0.04% 

$ 
$ 
$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

TOTALS 

266,972.08 
839,483.38 

1,106,455.46 

Ba1ance 

117,978.24 

721,505.14 

839,483.38 

The Sales Tax Tmnsfer of $112,519.75 wfls received nnd transfered on February 10th. This will show on the next report. 

Transfers of $514.94 for the Goat Naming Contest, $2,000.00 for Light up the Park, and $1,258.09 for the Christmas 

Parade to the General Fund will show on next months report. These were the amounts lvIBDC contributed for these events, 

The second payment of $63,052,03 was tftlnsfe.trcd on 02/01/2021. This will show next month. 

11

Item 3.



Date Num Nro»e 

5JIOO , MEDC Checking 
01/01/2021 AL 
01/01/2021 AL« 
0l/08/2021 AL 
01/08/2021 AL 
01/12/2021 Al. 
01/12/2021 AL 
01/15/2021 AL 
01/29/2021 2024 
0l/29/2021 2025 
01/29/2021 2021i 

FJrsj Flnimc!al Dank 
First Flnimclal Dank 

Fhst Pln1111clrtl Dank 
FJr&t Financial Bank 
Fir6t Financial Dank 
G1mda Corp1ll11tlon 
McCoy1s Building Supply 
RebcccaH,na 

TotRl 51100 • MEDC Checking 

TOTAL 

City ofMontgomery - MEDC 

Cash Flow Rcporl 

As ofJam11uy 311 2021 

Memo 

P;1.ymcnl to Old Republic Till a for Ml SD Purchase 
Revctsc ofGJE AL•• Wlre Pee for Ohl Republic Title Co Trnn!fcr - To ha refunded ncKt 111onth 
Mtnlthly Adm in Tm1sfor January 2021 
Sales Tax Trnnsrer 01/21 
Transfer from Gene ml Fund to pay P11radc & Light Up die Park Bxpcmu!s 
Transfer lo General Fund to move back revenues for Parade & Light tip the Park 
Tran${cr Co Gcncrnl Fund for Expenses Pnld • Pemllmd Video / Social Media Services 
Downtown Deslgn & Slrce111cfl(le rmp1ovemen1s Phm • lnvofoe 8652 
Gofl( Cuto11ts • Invoke Jl3SGOli9 
Relmbuuemeut o(Rxp~nsc. Webslce Marketing/ Profo~~lon,d Services 

Amount Bnlnnce 

146,802,29 
63,052,03 209,854,32 

25,00 209,879.32 
-3,958,33 205,920.99 
6f,S0.64 267,41i2.63 
1,084.4.!i 268,547.08 
•350,00 268,197.08 

.1,250,00 21i6,947,08 
-11,627,74 255,319.34 

•100,98 255,218,]6 
-150,00 255,068,]6 

108,266,07 255,0liS,36 

l08,26li.07 2.!iS,0liB.36 

12

Item 3.



Date Num 

51300 • Time Deposlt81-MBDC 
0I/0S/2021 AL 
01/31/2021 lnt 

Name 

Totl'\l 51300 • 'rime DeposllRI-MEDC 

TOTAL 

City of Montgomery' - MEDC 

Cash Flow Report - 'fexpool 

As of January 31, 2021 

Memo 

January 2021 Tranefcr to 'fexpool Reimbursement Account• Kroger Co. 
Interest on Texpool 

Amount Balance 

731,039.73 
-9,583,33 721,456.40 

4&,74 721,505.14 

-9,534.59 721,505.14 

-9,534,59 721,505.14 

13

Item 3.



Date Num 

51301 • Texpoo1 Relmbursemenl Acct 
01/08/2021 AL 
01/31/2021 Int 

Total 51301 · Texpool RelmburBement Acct 

TOTAL 

City of Montgomery¥ MEDC 

Cash Flow Report~ Texpool Relmb 

As ofJanmuy 31,202.1 

Memo 

January 2021 Transfer to T<:xpool Rcimb11rt1cmcntAcco,mt ~ Kroger Co, 
fotere11t 

Amount Balance 

108,387.09 
9,583,33 117,970.42 

7.82 117,978,24 

9,591.15 117,978,24 

9,591.15 117,978.24 

14

Item 3.



City of Montgomery -MEDC 
Actual to Budget Performance 

Janua,y2021 

Jan21 Budget $ Over Budget Oct '20-Jan 21 YrD Budget $ Ov« Budget Annual Budget 

Income 
55000 • Taxes & Franchise Fees 

55400 · Sales Tax 61,541.64 50,000.00 11,541.64 280,103.83 220,000.00 60,103.83 675,000.00 

Total 55000 · Taxes & Franchise Fees 61,541.64 50,000.00 11,541.64 280,103.83 220,000.00 60,103.83 675,000.00 

55300 · Other Revenues 
55391 · Intctest Income 994.70 333.33' 66137 1,426.97 1,333.36 93.61 4,000.00 

Total 55300 · Other Revenues 994.70 333.33 661.37 1,426..97 1,333.36 93.61 4,000.00 

Total Income 62,536.34 50,333.33 12,203.01 281,530.80 221,333.36 60,197.44 679,000.00 

Expense 
56000 • Pub Infrastructure - Categoty I 

56000.6 · Down.town Dev Improvements 11,627.74 9,333.33 2,294.41 11,627.74 37,333.36 (25,705.62) 112,000.00 

56000.7 • Streets & Sidewalks 0.00 833.33 (833.33) 0.00 3,33336 (3,333.36) 10,000.00 

56000.8 · Utility Extensions 0.00 4,166.67 (4,166.67) 0.00 16,666.64 (16,666.64) 50,000.00 

56000.B · City Capital Projects 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 160,000.00 

Total 56000 · Pub lnfrast:ructute - Category I 11,627.74 14,33333 (2,705.59) 11,627.74 57,333.36 (45,705.62) 332,000.00 

56001 · Business Dev & Ret -Ca.tegoxy II 
5600L8 .. Sales Tax Reimbursement 9,583.33 9,583.33 0.00 38,333.33 38,333.33 0.00 115,000.00 

56001.9 · Economic Development Grant Prog 0.00 1,666.67 (1,666.67) 0.00 6,666.64 (6,666.64) 20,000.00 

Total 56001 · Business Dev & Ret -Category TI 9,583.33 11,250.00 (1,666.67) 38,33333 44,999.97 (6,666.64) 135,000.00 

56002 · Quality of Llfe - Categoty III 
56002.2 • Ikmov.l ofBlight 0.00 1,250.00 (1,2S0.00) 0.00 5,000.00 (5.000.00) 15,000.00 

56002.3 · Events 
56100.1 · Neighborhood Water Party 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 

56100.5 · Light up Montgomery 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,000.00 (2,000.00) 2,000.00 

56100.6 · Southern Rum Runner 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 7,800.00 

56100. 7 · Mudbugs and Music 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 8,000.00 

56100.8 · Christmas Pa,adc 0.00 125.00 (125.00) 0.00 500.00 (500.00) 1,500.00 

56100.9 · Contests/Prizes 0.00 33333 (33333) 0.00 1,333.36 (1,333.36) 4,000.00 

56002.3 · Events ~ Other 0.00 1,391.67 (1,391.67) 0.00 5,566.64 (5,566.64) 16,700.00 

Total 56002.3 • Events 0.00 1,850.00 (1,850.00) 0.00 9,400.00 (9,400.00) 41,000.00 

56002.4 · Downtown Enhancement Projects 0.00 2,500.00 (2,500.00) 135.00 10,000.00 (9,865.00) 30,000.00 

Total 56002 · Quality of Llfc - Categoty III 0.00 5,600.00 (5,600.00) 135.00 24,400.00 (24,265.00) 86,000.00 

56003 • Marketing & Tourism-Catego,y IV 
56003.5 · Brochures/Printed Literature 0.00 33333 (333.33) 0.00 1,333.36 (1,33336) 4,000.00 

56003.C • Website 0.00 666.67 (666.67) 0.00 2,666.64 (2,666.64) 8,000.00 

15

Item 3.



Jan21 Budget $ Ovcc Budget Oct '20- Jan21 YID Budget $ Over Budget Annual Budget 

56003.F • Social Media Advertising 0.00 250.00 (250.00) 50.00 1,000.00 (950.00) 3,000.00 

56003.G • Historical Signage 0.00 166.67 (166.67) 0.00 666.64 (666.64) 2,000.00 

Total 56003 • Marketing & Tourism-Catego,y IV 0.00 1,416.67 (1,416.67) 50.00 5,666.64 (5,616.64) 17,000.00 

56004 · Admmistratiou - Catego,y V 
56004.1 · Admin Transfers to Gen Fund 3,958.33 3,958.33 0.00 15,83333 15,833.33 0.00 47,500.00 

56004.3 · Miseellaneous Expenses 0.00 41.67 (41.67) 0.00 166.64 (166.64) 500.00 

56004.6 · Consulting (Pi-ofessional scrvt) 1,025.00 4,083.33 (3,058.33) 4,614.49 16,333.36 (11,718.87) 49,000.00 

56004.7 · Travel & Traimng Expenses 0.00 83333 (83333) 724.00 3,333.36 (2,609.36) 10,000.00 

56004.9 · Technology 0.00 166.67 (166.67) 0.00 666.64 (666.64) 2,000.00 

Tow 56004 · Admmistration - Ca<ego,y V 4,98333 9,083.33 (4,100.00) 21,171.82 36,333.33 (15,161.51) 109,000.00 

56006 - Miscellaneous Expenses (25.00) 0.00 

Total Expense 26,169.40 41,68333 (15,513.93) 71,317.89 168,733.30 (97,415.41) 679,000.00 

Nctlocome 36,366.94 8,650.00 27,716.94 210,212.91 52,600.06 157,612.85 0.00 

16

Item 3.



City ofMontgomety'- MEDC 

02/10/Zl Gcncr.dLedger 
A, ofJan=y 31, 20Z1 

Type l)ao, Nu,n N=c Memo Debit Credit Bal=cc 

51100 · MEDC Checking 94,716.29 

General J our. .. 10/08/2020 AL Light Up the Park-Transfer made 10/09/2020 125.00 94,841.29 

Bill Pmt -Ch. •• I0/23/'2fJ20 2006 Rebecca Huss Rcimbwsemeot of Expense - Website Marketing 25.00 94,816.29 

Bill Pmr-Ch. •. 11/06/'2020 2007 Rebecca Huss October 2020 Social Media Services 1,000.00 93,810.29 

Bill Pmt-Ch. .. 11/13/2020 2008 JK Goq,luc,, Inc. Inv 35177 -Gtaphi.cs for Light up the Park 98.00 93,718.29 

General J OU.C..- 11/16/2020 AL Light Up the Park- Ti:ansfer made 11/17/20'lfJ 100.00 93,818.29 

General J our_. 1 t/19/2020 AL Transfet to General Fund for Amount due from MEDC- Discount Mugs and McCoys 549.49 93.268.80 

Bill Prru -Ch.- 11/20/2020 2009 Rebecca Huss Rcimbwsement ofE.,-pense- Website Marketing 75.00 93,193.80 

Bill Pmc-Ch... 11/20/2020 2010 TEOC Fall :&sic ED CoU:rSC for Riclwd T=nm 700.00 92,493.80 

Bill Prm: -Ch... 12/04/2020 2011 City of Montgomery- Ur._ Utility Grant Applicuion - The Ranchers Daughter 250.00 92,243.80 

Bill Prm:-Ch... 12/04/2020 2012 Rebecca Huss Rcimbmsement ofE.,-peose - Website / Social Media Mmket:ing 1,016.87 91,226.93 

Bill Pmc-Ch-. 12/04/2020 2013 Megan Dodd 1st Place - Pole Decorating Conresc 50.00 91,176.93 

Bill Pmt-Ch.- 12/04/2020 2014 Montgomery Junior Hig ... 2nd Place - Pole Decorating Contest 25.00 91,151.93 

BillPmt-Ch- 12/04/2020 2015 Jeff and Lisa Waddell 3rd Place - Pole Decorating Contest 10.00 91,141.93 

BillPmc-Ch_ 12/04/2020 2016 Lisa Martin 1st Phice - Residential Lighting Contest 200.00 90,941.93 

Bill Pmt-Ch.- 12/04/2020 2017 P2.ul and Jennifer Brown 2nd Place - Residential Lighting Comest 150.00 90,791.93 
Bill.Pmt-Ch .• 12/04/2020 2018 Chexyl King 3rd Place - Residential Lighting Contest 100.00 90,691.93 

General Jour_ 12/10/2020 AL Light Up the Parle - Transfer made 12/11/2020 125.00 90,816.93 

General Jour- 12/10/2020 AL Sales Ta.\'. Tl'llnsfer 12/20 57,443.45 148,260.38 

BillPmt-Ch.M 12/11/2020 2019 TEDC Webina:c.s: - Sales Ta." / F"l.n2!1cing Loc:al. Food Sys.. / Mcmbetship Renewal 7?-4.00 147,53638 

Bill Pmt -Ch.- 12/18/2020 2020 McCoy's Building Supply Goat Cutouts· Invoice 11353487 34.02 147,50236 

Bill Pmt-Ch.. .. 12/18/2020 2021 Rebec:ca Huss Reimbursement ofEicpensc - String for Signs of P=dc Winners 2.58 147,499.78 

Bill Pmr-Ch._ 12/23/2020 2022 Rebecca Huss Reimbursement ofE.,-pense- Website Marketing 24.99 147,474.79 

GeneWJow:._ 12/?.9/2020 AL Transfer to Checking for MISD Loan 750,000.00 897,474.79 

General Jour.- 12/3-0/2fJ20 AL Old Republic Title Co. Payment to Old Republic Tu:le for MISD Putehase 750,51250 146,96229 

Bill Pmt-Ch.- 12/31/2020 20".3 Bride & Bloom FloristtyM. Wreaths -12/5/20 (Light up Montgomery) Inv 0000012 135.00 14o,827.29 

Genera!Jour- 12/31/2020 AL F"=t F"mancml Bank Wm: Fee for Old &public Tide Co Transfer- To be refunded next month 25.00 146,802.29 

General Jour ... 01/01/2021 Af, Payment to Old Republic Title for :MISD Purchase 63,05203 209,854.32 

General Jour-- 01/01/2021 ALR First Financhil Bank Reverse of GJE AL- Wire Fee for Old Republic T:ttle Co TttnSfer - To be refunded ne... 25.00 209,879.32 

General Jour. .. 01/08/2021 AL Fust Financial Bank Monthly Admin Transfer Jaouuy 2021 3,958.33 205,920.99 

Genectl}ow:._ 01/08/2021 AL Sales Ta."tTransfer01/2t 61,541.64 267,46263 

Generaljow:. .. 01/12/2021 AL First Fmanci21 Bank Transfer from General Fund to pay Parade &Light Up the Park EJ.penses 1,084.45 268,547.08 

General.Jour.- 01/12/2021 AL First financial Bank Transfei- to General Fund to move back revenues for Parade & Light up the Palk 350.00 268,197.08 

General Jaw:._ 01/15/2021 AL First Fmancial Bank T =sfer to General Fund for E."q)(mcs Paid - Fcmland Video / Social Media Services 1,250.00 266,947.08 

BillPmt-Ch.- 01/29/2021 2024 Gunda Corporation Downtown Design & Stteetseape Improvements Plan - Invoice 8652 11,627.74 255,319.34 

BillPmc-Ch.- 01/29/2021 2025 McCoy's Building Supply Goat Cutouts - Invoice 11356069 100.98 255,218.36 

Bill Pmt-Ch._ 01/29/2021 2026 Rebecca Huss Reimbursement of E..xpense - Website Marketing/ Professional Services 150.00 255,068.36 

Tomi 51100 • MEDC Checking 933,496.57 773.,144.50 255,068.36 

51300 • Time Dcposit:sl-MEDC 1,360,430.91 
Gener.:a!Jour __ 10/08/2020 AL Sales T2X Trnnsfcr 10/20 56,979.38 1,417,410.29 

Geneol J our_. 10/12/2020 AL October 2020 Tcmsfcr tn Texpool Reimbursement Account- Kroger Co. 6,625.00 1,410,785.29 

General J our ... 10/12/2020 AL Monthly Admin Transfer October 2020 3,958.33 1,406,826.96 

General J our ... 10/23/2020 AL Transfer to Geneol Fund for Amount due from MEDC for Creedon 285.00 1,406,541.% 

Gener.l!Jour-. 10/31/2020 Int Interest on Te.-..1)001 158.21 1,406,700.17 

GeoetruJour ..• 11/09/2020 AL Monthly Admin Transfer November 2020 3,958.33 1,402,741.84 

Genea!Jour. .. 11/09/2020 AL November 2020 Transfer to Te.-pool Reimbursement Account- Kroger Co. 6,625.00 1,396,116.84 

Genectljow: ... 11/12/2020 AL Sales: Ta."' Transfer 11/20 104,139.36 1.S00,256.20 

General j0UL .. 11/13/2020 AL Oct / Nov 2020 Rem:uoing Tr.msfcr to. Te::...-pool Reimbursement Account - Kroger Co. 5,'916.66 1,494,339.54 

General Jou:r ... 11/30/2020 lot Interest on To.-pool 147-43 1,494,486.97 

Pagel 

17

Item 3.



02/10/21 

T:,pc Date 

GcnernlJour.- 12/10/2020 AL 
GenernJ.Jour... 12/10/2020 & 
GeneralJour_ 12/29/2020 AL 
Gene!2l.Jour... 12/31/2020 Inc 
GenenlJour... 01/08/2021 AL 
GencralJour.... 01/31/2021 Int 

Taul 51300 • Tune Depositsl-MEDC 

51301 • Texpool Reimbursement Acct 
Generaljour._ 10/12/2020 AL 
General.Joor... 10/31/2020 Int 
GcneraljoUL .. 11/09/2020 AL 
General Jou.r.... 11/13/2020 AL 
Gcncr:aljoUL.. 11/30/2020 Int 
Genecaljour. .. 12/10/2020 AL 
Gcneraljour... 12/31/2020 Int 
Geneo!Jour... 01/08/2021 AL 
G==il.Jour... 01/31/2021 Int 

Total51301 -T~l Reimbw-semeotAcct 

51150 • Accounts Receivable Audit 
Total 51150 · Accounts Receivable Audit 

51170 • Due fiom General Fund - Loan 
Generaljour... 12/30/2020 AL 
Geoera!Jour __ 01/01/2021 AL 

Num 

Tomi 51170 · Due from Genernl Fund- Lo3n 

51171 • Due From Gen Fun.d 
Generaljour... 10/08/2020 
Gcneraljour... 10/08/2020 
Gencral.Jour... 10/08/2020 
General.Jour_ 10/31/2020 
Bill 11/10/2020 
Geneoljour... 11/12/2020 
Generaljour __ 11/12/2020 
GO'lO:lU.Jour... 11/16/2020 
Bill 11/17/2020 
Gcx:r.aljour ... 11/19/2020 
Gener.tljour_ 11/19/2020 
Genet3l. Jow:..... 11/30/2020 
Bill 12/01/2020 
Bill 12/01/2020 
Bill 12/01/2020 
Bill 12/04/2020 
Bill 12/04/2020 
Bill 12/04/2020 
Bill 12/04/2020 
Bill 12/04/2020 

AL 
AL 
AL 
In, 

35!77 
AL 
AL 
AL 
Reimb ofE.'\."P 
AL 
AL 
fot 
lkunboffup 
Reimb offap 
Rcimb of E.'\.-p 
Light up the Pole 
Light up the Pole 
Llght up the Pole 
Light up the Pole 
Light up the Pole 

Name 

JK Graphics, Inc. 

Rebecca Huss 

Rebecca Huss 
Rebecca Huss 
R.e:betta Huss 
Megan Dodd 
Montgomery Junior: Hig._ 
Jeff and Lisa Waddell 
Lisa Maron 
Paul and Jennifer Brown 

CityofMontgomcry- MEDC 

General Ledger 
As ofJanwuy 31,. 2021 

Memo 

December 2020 Transfer to Texpool R.cimbwscment Account - Krogex- Co. 
Monthly Admin Transfer December2020 
Transfer to Oi.eddng for MISD Loan 
TntereSt on To.pool 
January 2021 T ta.nSfer to Texpool Reimbursement Account - Kroger Co. 
Interest on T~ool 

Ocrobcr 2020 Transfer to Te:q:,ool Reimbursement Account - Kroger Co. 
In= 
November 2020 Transfer to Tapool Reimbursement Account - l<rogC1" Co. 
Oct/ Nov 2020 RemmningTraosfu: to Tc.~ol Reimbursemeac Account- Kroger Co. 
foterest 
Decembei' 2020 Transfer ro Texpool Reimbursement Account - Kroger Co. 
lntc=t 
Januaey 2021 Transfer to TexpoolR.eimbur.rement Account - Kroger Co. 
ln<=t 

Pa.yment ro Old Republic Title for MISD Pun::base 
Pa.ymcnt to Old Republic Title for MISD Purchase 

Light Up the Park- Transfer made 10/09/'2f.J20 
To2ccrue 52lesta."'tc\-enue rec'd 10/20 
Sales Ta.-.: Transfer 10/20 
Light up the Park - Occober 
Inv 35177 -Graphics for Light up the Park 
Sa.les'I'a" Transfer 11/20 
To accrue S3les tax revenue rec'd 11/20 
Light Up the Puk- T:tansferimde 11/17/202D 
Reimbursement of &-peose - Website f:1.1'.atkecing 
Amount due from MEDC for Discount Mugs -?=base of Goat Cups 
Amount due from MEDC for Disc:oum Mugs -Purchase of Goat Cups 
Light up the Puk - November 
Reimbursement of E.'\.-pense - Website Marketing 
Reimbursement of &pense - Website ~ 
Reimbursement of Expense - Website Marketing 
1st Place - Pole Decorating Contest 
2nd Plac:e - Pole Decorating ConteSt 
3rd Place - Pole Decooting Contest 
1 sr Place - Residenrial Llgbcing Contest 
2nd Place - Residential Lighting Contest 

Debit Gcdit Balance 

9,588.34 1,484,898.63 
3,958.34 1,480,940.29 

750,000.00 730,940.29 
99.44 731,039.73 

9,583.33 721,456.40 
48.74 721,505.14 

161,572.56 800,498.33 721,505.14 

79,604.90 
6,625.00 86,229.90 

9.51 86,239.41 
6.625.00 92,864.41 
5,916.66 98,781.07 

9.55 98,790.62 
9,588.34 108,378.96 

8.13 !08,387.09 
9,58333 117,970.42 

7.82 117,97824 

38,373.34 0.00 117,978.24 

161,118.74 
161,118.74 

0.00 
750.,512.50 750,512.50 

62,113.89 688,.398.61 

750,512.50 62,113.89 68S,39S.61 

125.00 
125.00 0.00 

56,979.38 56,979.38 
56,979.38 0.00 

100.00 100.00 
98.00 198.00 

104,139.36 -103,941.36 
104,139.36 198.00 

100.00 98.00 
50.00 148.00 

297.00 445.00 
198.00 643.00 
125.00 768.00 

2.80 770J'IJ 
0.82 771.62 

13.25 784.87 
50.00 834.87 
25.00 859.87 
10.00 869.87 

200.00 1,069.87 
150.00 1,219.87 

Pagc2 

18

Item 3.



City of Montgomery- MEDC 

02/10/21 General Ledger 
As of January .31, 2021 

Type na .. Num Name Memo Debit Credit Babncc 

Bill 12/04/2020 Light up the Pole Chc,y!King 3rd Place -Residential. Lighting Contest 100.00 1,319.87 

Gencral.Joru... 12/10/2020 N., LW!t Up the Park- Transfer made 12/11/2020 125.00 1,194.87 
Geoeral.Jour. •. 12/10/2020 N., S2les Ta.'( Tnmsfer 12/20 57,443.45 -56,.248.58 
Gcnernl.Jour.... 12/11/20'JJJ AL To accroc sales ta.<t revenue tce'd 12/20 57,443.45 1,194.87 

Bill 12/15/2020 ReimbofE.;.-p Rebecca Huss Reimhurscmcnt of &pcosc - String for Signs of Parade W1nners 258 1,197.45 

Bill 12/21/2020 Reimb offap Rebecca Huss Reimbursement of &pense - Website Marketing 24.99 1,222.44 

Bill 12/30/'21)20 Inv000012 Bride & Bloom Floristey ... Wreaths-12/5/'2!J (Light up Montgomei:y) Inv 0000012 135.00 1,357.44 

GeneralJour... 01/08/2021 N., To accrue sales tax teVeeue tec'd 01/21 61,541.64 62,899.08 

Gencral.Jour-. 01/08/2021 N., S-ales:TaxTcansfcrOl/21 61,541.64 1.,357.44 

Gencal.Jouc... 01/12/2021 AL T tansfcr from Geneol Fund to pay Parade & Light Up the Park fa.-pcnses 1,084.45 272.99 

Bill 01/26/2021 Reimb ofE.-q:i Rebecca Huss Reimbursement of E.~ - Profes.'001l31 Services - Goat Naming Contest 125.00 397.99 

Total 51171 · Due From Gen Fund 281,811.27 281,538.28 397.99 

51174 · Due from Home Grant Funds s,1n.oo 

Total 51174 • Due from Home G!2nt Funds 5,tn.oo 

52000 • Accounts Payable -950.00 

Bill 10/21/2020 Reimb ofE.--cp Rebecca Huss Reimbursement of E.-..-pen.<se - Website Marketing 25.00 H975.00 
Bill.PmtHCh. .. 10/23/2020 2006 Rebecca Huss Rcimburscmeruof&-pense - Website Marketing 25.00 .950.00 

Bill 10/31/2020 Social Mcdia.Savice Rebecca Huss Reimbw:sement of E.-..:pense - Social Media Services 1,000.00 -1,950.00 

Bill 10/31/20'1JJ 12206 TEDC Sales Ta.-: Virtual ED Course for Ridurd Tramm 120.00 -2,070.00 

Bill 11/02/202[) 12248 TEDC Webmm:- Financing Local Food. Systems for Rich=! Tr2mm 79.00 -2,149.00 

BillPmt-Ch- 11/06/2020 2007 Rebecca Huss October .2020 Social Media Services 1,000.00 -1,149.00 

Bill 11/10/2020 35177 JK Graphics, Inc. Inv35177 - Graphics for Light up the Park 98.00 -1,247.00 

Bill Pmt-Ch..- 11/13/2020 2008 JK Graphics. Inc. Inv 35177 - Graphics for Light up the Park 98.00 -1,149.00 

Bill 11/17/2020 ReimbofE.-..."P Rcb=Huss Reimbw:sement of Expense - Webstte Marketing 75.00 -1,224.00 
Bill Pmt-Ch. .. 11/20/2020 2009 Rebecca Huss Reimbw:sement of E."q'ense. Website Markecing 75.00 -1,149.00 

BillPmt•Ch. .. 11/20/2020 2010 TEDC Fall. Basic ED Course for Richard Tramm 700.00 -449.00 

Bill 11/30/2020 Social Media Service Rebecca Huss Reimbwsement of Expense - Social Media Ser.ices 1,000.00 -1,449.00 

Bill 11/30/2020 Inv 12216 TEDC 2021 Membership fees [nv #12216 525.00 -1,974.00 

Bill 12/01/2020 Reimb ofE.-..:p Rebecca Huss Reimbursement of Expense - Website Marketing 2.80 -1,976.80 

Bill 12/01/2020 Rehnb ofE.-q, Rebecca HUS$ Reimbursement of Expense - Website Marketing 0.82 -1,977.62 

Bill 12/01/2020 Reknbof&."P Rebecca Huss Reimbucsei:nent ofE..-...-pense - Website Marketing 13.25 -1,990.87 

BillPmt-Ch.- 12/04/2020 2011 City ofMontgon=y- Ut... Utility Grant Application - The Ranch.en; Daughter 250.00 -1,740.87 
BillPmt-Ch._ 12/04/2020 2012 Rebecca Huss Reimbursement of &"Peo.se - Website / Socml Media Mru:keting 1,016.87 -724.00 

Bill 12/04/2020 Llght up the Pole Megan Dodd 1st Pb.ce- Pole Decorating Conrest 50.00 -774.00 

Bill 12/04/2020 Light up the Pole Monrgomecy Junioc rug._ 2nd Place - Pole Decorating Contest 25.00 -799.00 

Bill 12/04/2020 Light up tbe Pole Jeff and Lisa Waddell 3rd Place - Pole Deeoraring Coore.st 10.00 -809.00 

Bill 12/04/2020 Light up the Pole ~Martin 1st Place - Residential Lighting Concest 200.00 -1,009.00 

Bill 12/04/2020 Light up the Pole Paul and Jennifer Brown 2nd Pbtce - Residential Lighting Contest 150.00 -1,.159.00 

Bill 12/04/2020 Light up the Pole Chc,y!King 3rd Place - Residential Lighting Contest 100.00 -1,,259.00 

BillPmt-Ch. .. 12/04/2020 2013 Meg-an Dodd 1st Place - Pole Decor::1.ting Contest 50.00 -1,209.00 

Bill Pmt-Ch._ 12/04/2020 2014 Montgomay Junior Hig.- 2nd Place- Pole Decoratiag Contest 25.00 -1,184.00 

Bill Pmt-Ch.- 12/04/2020 2015 Jeff and Lisa Waddell 3rd Place - Pole Dccor:uing Con~t 10.00 -1,174.00 

B:ill Pmt-Ch.- 12/04/2020 2016 Ll,aMa,cin 1st Place - Residenciitl Lighting Contest 200.00 -974.00 

BillPmt-Ch... 12/04/2020 2017 Paul 31:ld Jennifer Brown 2nd Place - Rcsidentw Lightiog Contest 150.00 -824.00 

BillPmt-Ch... 12/04/2020 2018 Chc,yl Kiag 3rd Place - Residential Lighcing Contest 100.00 -724.00 

Bill Pmt-Ch. .. 12/11/2020 2019 TEDC Webinars - S21es Tax / Financing Local Food Sys. / Membership Renewal 724.00 0.00 

Bill 12/14/2020 Inv 11353487 McCoy's Building Supply Goat Cutouts- Invoke 1135.3487 34.02 -34.02 

Bill 12/15/2020 Reimboffa.-p Rebecca Huss Rdmbursement of E.~ - Suing for Signs of Parade Wtnnecs 258 -36.60 

Page3 

19

Item 3.



02/10/21 

Type Date Num 

BillPmt-Ch- 12/18/2020 2020 
Bill Pmt -Ot.- 12/18/2020 2021 
Bill 12/21/2020 Reimb ofE.'-'P 
Bill 12/21/2020 
Bill Pmt -Ci.- 12/1.3/2020 
Bill 12/30/2020 
Bill Pmt-Ch.... 12/31/2020 
Bill 01/14/2021 
Bill 01/26/2021 
Bill 01/26/2021 
Bill Pmt -CL.. 01/29/2021 
Bill Pmr-Ch. .. 01/29/2021 
BillPrnt-Ch... 01/29/2021 
Bill 01/31/2021 

Total 52000 · Accounts Payable 

52001 • Accounts Payable Audit 

[m-11356069 
2022 
Inv000012 
2023 
8652 
Reimb ofE.-q, 
Rein:iboffa,-p 
2024 
2025 
2026 
Social Media Service 

Genealjour_. 10/12/2020 AL 
Geneol.Jour__ 11/09/202!J AL 
Gcneraljour-. 12/10/2020 AL 
Gener:al.Jour... 01/08/2021 AL 

Total 52001 - Accounts Payable Audit 

52712 · Due t0 Gen Fund 
Gener.tljour-- 10/12/2020 AL 
Gener:alJour... 10/12/2020 AL 
Genetal.Jour. .. 10/21/2020 Af. 
Geneci!JoUL.. 10/23/2020 .AL 
Genei::aljOUL.. 10/31/2020 Int 
Gener:aljour. .. 11/09/20"..0 AL 
Gen=!Jou,... 11/09/2020 AL 
Genen!Jou:r... 11/16/2020 AL 
Geaer.tljow:-. 11/19/2020 AL 
Gcncraljow:... 11/19/2020 AL 
Gener.tljour. .. 11/30/2020 Int 
Genetaljour-- 12/10/2020 AL 
Geo.eral.Jour.. 12/10/2020 AL 
Genemljour... 12/31/2020 AL 
General Jour- 01/08/2021 AL 
Genet:UJour.- 01/08/2021 AL 
GeneealJour... 01/12/2021 AL 
Gener.a!Jour._ 01/15/2021 AL 

Tot:al. 52712 · Due co Gen Fund 

53900 - UattStricted Net Assets 
Total 53900 • Umestxictcd Net Assets 

55000 • Truces & :Franchise Fees 
55400 • Sales Tax 

Name 

McCoy's Buildu,g Supply 
Rebecca Huss 
Rebecca Huss 
McCoy's Building Supply 
Rebecca Huss 
Bride & Bloom Florimy ... 
Bride & Bloom Florimy,_ 
Gunda Cotp0I3tion 
Rebecca Huss 
Rebecca Huss 
Gunda Corponrion 
McCoy's Building Supply 
Rebecca Huss 
Rebecca Huss 

The Krogcr Co. 
The Kroger Co. 
The Kroger Co. 
The Kroget Co. 

First Fmancial Bank 

CicyofMontgomcry-MEDC 

Gen=! Ledger 
As ofJanuary 31, 2021 

Goat Cutouts - Invoice 11353487 

Memo 

Reimbursement of Expense - String for Signs of Parade Winners 
Reimbursement of E.~ense - Website Marketing 
Goat Cutouts - Invoice 11356069 
Reimbursement of E.~ense - Website Marketing 
Wtetths -12/5/'l.O (Light up Monrgomexy) Inv 0000012 
Wxcaths -12/5/20 (Light up Monrgomexy) Inv 0000012 
Downtown Design & Strcetscapc Improvements Plan - Invoice 8652 
Reimbursement of E.~ense - Website Marketing 
Reimbtmement of E."Cf)eose - Professional Services - Goat Naming Contest 
Downtown Desiga & Screctscape Improvements Plan - Invoke 8652 
Goat Cutouts- In'1oice 11356069 
Reimbursement of Expense- Website M:irketing / Professioruil Services 
Reimbursement of fapensc - Social Media Services 

To accrue Monthly Tt2nSfer to T~--pool Reimbu.csement Account for Sales T,ax P:iyablc i. .. 
To accrue MonthlyTrnnsfcr ro To..-pooI Rcimb=ement Account for Sales Tax Paya.bk i. .. 
To accrue MonthlyTr:ansfec ro T~l Reimbutsement Account for $:ales Ta...x P:iyable i.. 
To accrue Monthly Trn:osfcr to Tc.,q,ool RcimbutSem.ent Account for Sales T-ax Pay:ilile i. .. 

To '2.c:croe Monthly ..t\dnun tr:msfe:c - Octobet 2020 
Monthly Admin Transfer October 2020 
Amount due from :MEDC for uccdon 
T:=isfer to General Fund for Amount due from MEDC for Creedon 
Llght up the Park - October: . 
To accrue Monthly Admin m.nsfer - November 2020 
Monthly Admin Transfer November 2020 
,\mount due &om MEDC for McCoys - Goar Cutouts - Downtown Businesses - Per RL 
Amount due from MEDC for Dfacount Mugs -Purchase of Goat Cups 
Transfer to Gaieral Fund for Amount due from MEDC - Discount Mugs and McCoys 
Llgbt up the Park - November 
Monthly Admin Transfer December 2020 
To accrue Monthly Admin tt2ru:fer - December 2020 
Rebecca Huss Reimbwsements - Femland /Social.Media Expenses 
To accrue Monthly Admin ttansfer -Januaty 2021 
Monthly Admin Transfer Jmuuy 2021 
Transfer ro Gcncml Fund to move back revenues for Pa=:l.e & Llgbt up the Park 
Transfer to General Fund for~ P!lld - Femland Vldeo / Social Media Services 

Debit 

34.02 
2.58 

24.99 

135.00 

11,627.74 
100.98 
150.00 

16,499.18 

0.00 

3,958..33 

285.00 

3,958.33 

549.49 

3,958.34 

3,958.33 
350.00 

1,250.00 

18,267.82 

Credit Balan= 

-258 
0.00 

24.99 -24.99 
100.98 -125.97 

-100.98 
135.00 -235.98 

-100.98 
11,627.74 -11,728.72 

25.00 -11,753.72 
125.00 -11,878.72 

-250.98 
-150.00 

0.00 
1,000.00 -1,000.00 

16,549.18 -1,000.00 

-79,500.00 
9,58333 -89,083.33 
9,583.33 -98,666.66 
9,58334 -108,250.00 
9,583.33 -117 ,833..33 

38,333.33 -117,833.33 

-125.00 
3,958.33 -4,083.33 

-125.00 
285.00 -410.00 

-125.00 
100.00 -225.00 

1,958.33 -4,183.33 
-225.00 

54.49 -279.49 
495.00 -774.49 

-.225.00 
125.00 -350.00 

3,608.34 
3,95S.34 -350.00 
1,250.00 -1,600.00 
3,95833 -5,558.33 

-1.600.00 
-1,250.00 

0.00 

18,142.82 0.00 

-1,620.597.84 
-1,620,597.84 

0.00 
0.00 

Pagc4 

20

Item 3.



02/10/21 

Type Dan, 

Gen=IJo~- 10/08/2')20 AL 
GeneraljoUL.. ll/12/W20 AL 
Gener::al Jout-- 12/11/2020 AL 
Genet::tl.Jour_. 01/08/WZl AL 

Total 55400 • Sales Ta." 

Tora! 55000 · Ta."= & Fr.anchise Fees 

55300 · Other Revenues 
55391 • Intctest Income 
Genco[ Joitt.... 10/31/2020 Int 
Geneoljour.._ 10/31/2020 Int 
Generaljou:r... 11/'30/2!J20 Int 
GeneralJour... 11/30/2020 Int 
Generaljour-. 12/31/2020 Int 
Gaied.Jour ... 12/31/2020 fot 
GeneralJour_. 01/01/2021 AL 
Getletal Jour.... 01/31/2021 lnr 
Gencr:al.Jour... 01/31/2021 Int 

ToW 55391 · J:crerest Income 

Total55300 · Other Revenues 

N= 

56000 • Pub lnfusttucturc - Category I 
56000.6 • Downtown Dev Improvements 
Bill 01/14/2021 8652 

TotlU 56000.6 · Downtown Dev Improvements 

Tot::al56000 • Pub Info1.strucrure - Category ( 

56001 • Business Dit:V & ltet-Category II 
5600L8 • Sales T2X Reimbursement 
GcncralJour... 10/12/"lfJ?JJ AL 
Generaljour... 11/09/'2iJ'2!J AL 
Genet:aljour_. 12/10/2020 AL 
General Jour... 01/08/2021 Af.. 

Total 56001.8 · Sales Tax Reimbursement 

Total 56001 · Business Dev& R.er.-Categoty IT 

56002 • Qua]i;y of Life - Ca1"g<>,y III 
56002.4 • Downtown Enhancc:ment Projeas 
Bill 12/14/2020 fov1t353487 
Bill 12/21/211'20 Inv 11356069 

Total .560024 · Downwwn Eflmlll=en: Projects 

Tot.:11 56002 • QuaiicyofLife - Caregoi:y Irr 

Name 

Guoda Corporacion 

The Kroger Co. 
The Kroger Co. 
The Kroger Co. 
The Kroger Co. 

City ofMontgomciy-MEDC 

General Ledger 
As of Janua,y 31, 2021 

To accrue sales ta."( revenue rec'd 10/20-25¾ of sales .a.,; in GOF 
To accrue sales ta.'{ revenue rec'd 11/20 -25% of sales tax in GOF 
To acc:rue sales ta..._ revenue :rec'd 12/20 - 25% of sales r:ix in GOF 
To accrue sales ta.-.: revenue rec'd 01/21 - 25% of s,ales ta."( in GOF 

Interest 
Interest on Tecpool 
Interest 
Interest on Teq,ool 
!merest 
Interest on Tc.pool 
Interest F:amed on Loan 
Interest 
Intacst on Te.,-pool 

Downtown Design & Stteetscape Improvements Plan - Invoice 8652 

To accrue Monthly Transfer to Texpool ReimbUISement Account for Sales Ta.x Pa~le L. 
To accrue Monthly Transfer to Te."POol Reimbursement Ao:ount for Sales Tax Pa}'®le i,_ 
To acaue Monthly T~fer to To.-pool Reimbursement Account for Sales Ta."( Payable L 
To accrue Monthly Transfer to Te.pool Reimbursement Account for Sales Ta." Payable i... 

McCoy's Building Supply Goat Cutouts - Invoice 11353487 
McCoy's Building Supply Goat Curouts - Invoice 11356069 

Debit 

0.00 

Cn,dit 

56,979.38 
104,139.36 
57,443.45 
Gt,541.64 

280,103.83 

0.00 280,103.83 

9.51 
158.21 

955 
147.43 

8.13 
99.44 

938.14 
7.82 

48.74 

0.00 1,426.97 

o.oo 1,426.97 

Balance 

-56,979.38 
-161,118.74 
-218,562.19 
-280,103.83 

-280,103.83 

-280,103.63 

0.00 
0.00 

-9.51 
-167.72 
-1772:7 
-324.70 
-33283 
-43227 

-1,370.41 
-1,3782.3 
-1,426.97 

-1,426.97 

-1,426.97 

0.00 
0.00 

11,627.74 11,627.74 

11,627.74 

11,627.74 

0.00 --'-'·~6Zl_.7_4 

11,627.74 0.00 

0.00 
0.00 

9,583.33 9,583.33 
9,583.33 19,166.66 
9,583.34 28,750.00 

9,58333 ---- __ ..:38,.3==33=.3=3 

38,333.33 ___ o_.oo_ _ __ 3_8,.:.3_33_.3_3 

38,333.33 

34.02 
100.98 

0.00 

----
135.00 0.00 ---
135.00 0.00 

38,,333.33 

o.oo 
0.00 

34.02 
135.00 

135.00 

135.00 

P,gc5 

21

Item 3.



02/10/21 

Type Date 

56003 • Marketing & Tourism-Ca.tego,:y rv 
56003.F • Social Media Adverrismg 
Bill 10/21/2020 Rcimbof&p 
Bill 11/17/2020 Reimboffa.1' 

Total 56003.F · Social Media Advertising 

Total 56003 · Marketing & Tourism-Categoi:y IV 

56004 · Administtation - Category V 
56004.1 • Ad.min T r.msfcrs to Gen Fund 
Genexa!Jour- 10/12/2020 AL 
Genen!Jour.... 11/09/2020 AL 
Gener.al Jour_. 12/10/2020 AL 
Geoeol.Jour... 01/08/2021 AL 

Tot:al56004.1 · Admin TianSfeIS to Gen Fund 

56004.6 • Consulting {Professional sem) 
GenttalJout_. 10/21/2020 AL 

Rebecca Huss 
Reb= Huss 

Bill 10/31/2020 Social Mecfu. Scmce Rebecca Huss 
General.Jour... 11/16/2020 AL 
Bill 11/30/2020 Social Media Service Rebeca Huss 
Gene.raljout... 12/31/2020 AL 
General.Jour_. 12/31/2020 AL 
Bill 01/26/2021 Reimb ofE..._-p Rebecca Huss 
Bill 01/31/2021 Social Media Service Rebecca Huss 

Tot:al 55004.6 · Consulting (Professional serri) 

56004.7 • Tcavel & Tr.tin.u,g Expenses 
Bill 10/31/2020 12206 
Bill 1l/02/?JY20 12248 
:Sill 11/30/2020 Inv12216 

TOW 56004.7 · Trnvel & Training E."Penses 

Total 56004 · Adrnicismtion - Category- V 

56006 • Miscellaneous Expenses 
GeneralJour-. 12n1/2020 AL 
GeneolJout-- 01/01/2021 ALR 

Total 56006 • Miscellaneous E.~es 

TOTAL 

1EDC 
1EDC 
1EDC 

F"1..'"St Financial Bank 
First Fmancial Bank 

City of Montgomery- MEDC 

General Ledger 
As of January 31,. 2021 

Memo 

Reimbursement of'&pense. Website Markeririg 
Reimbursement ofE.~ - Website Marketing 

To accrue Monthly Admin tt:msfcr - Oaober2020 
To accrue Monthly Admin tr2rufet - Novanber 2020 
To accrue Mont:bfy" Admin transfer - December 2020 
To accrue Monthly Admin t:IanSfet - January 2021 

Amount due from .MEDC f= Creedon 
Reimbursement of &pense - Social Media Services 
Amount due from MEDC fo:r McCoys - Goat Cutouts - Downtown Businesses - Per RL. 
ReimbUISement offa-pensc - Social Media Services 
Relxcca Huss Reimbursements- Social Media fu-penses Dccembc:r 2020 
Rebecca Huss Reimbursements- Femland Facebook YouTube Video 
Reimbursementof&pense- Website Marketing 
Reimbursement of E,.,-pense - Social Media Se::vices 

Sales T1"' Vttt:ual ED Cot.use for Richard Tramm 
Webi=r- Financing Local Food Systems for Riclw:d To.mm 
2021 Membership fees Inv #12216 

Wire Fee for Old Republic Tnle Co Transfer- To be :refunded ne.-ct: month 
Wue Fee for Old Republic Title Co Tonsfe:r- To be :refunded ne.-a: month 

Debit C=!n Balance 

0.00 
0.00 

25.00 25.00 
25.-00 50.00 

50.00 0.00 50.00 

50.00 0.00 50.00 

0.00 
0.00 

3,958.33 3,958.33 
3,95833 7,916.66 
3,958.34 11,875.00 
3,958.33 15,833.33 

15,833.33 0.00 15,833.33 

0.00 
285.00 285.00 

1,000.00 1,285.00 
54.49 1,339.49 

1,000.00 2,339.49 
1,000.00 3,339.49 

250.00 3,589.49 
25.00 3,614.49 

1,000.00 4,614.49 

4,614.49 0.00 4,614.49 

0.00 
120.00 120.00 
79.00 199.00 

525.00 724.00 

724.00 0.00 724.00 

21,171.82 o.oo 21,171.82 

0.00 
25.00 25.00 

25.00 0.00 

25.00 25.00 0.00 

2,271,876.13 2,271,876.13 0.00 

22

Item 3.



ASSETS 
Current Assets 

City of Montgome1y - MEDC 
Balance Sheet 

Checking/Savings 
51100 · MEDC Checking 
51300 · Time Depositsl-MEDC 

51301 • Texpool Reimbursement Acct 

Total Checking/Savings 

Other Current Assets 
51150 · Accounts Receivable Audit 
51170 • Due from General Fund - Loan 
51171 • Due From Gen Fund 
51174 • Due from Home Grant Funds 

Total Other Current Assets 

Total Current Assets 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES & EQUITY 
Liabilities 

Current Liabilities 
Accounts Payable 

52000 • Accounts Payable 
52001 • Accounts Payable Audit 

Total Accounts Payable 

Total Current Liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

Equity 
53900 · Unrestricted Net Assets 
Net Income 

Total Equity 

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 

Jan 31, 21 

255,068.36 
721,505.14 

117,978.24 

1,094,551.74 

161,118.74 
688,398.61 

397.99 
5,177.00 

855,092.34 

1,949,644.08 

1,949,644.08 

1,000.00 
117,833.33 

118,833.33 

118,833.33 

118,833.33 

1,620,597.84 
210,212.91 

1,830,810.75 

1,949,644.08 

23

Item 3.



I 

CITY OF MONTGOMERY - MEDC 
ACCOUNT BALANCES REPORT 

Through February 28, 2021- For March 2021 Meeting 

MONEY MARKET 
ACCOUNTS INVESTMENTS TOTALS 

MEDC 
CHECKING ACCOUNT 
TOTAL INVESTMENTS 
TOTALMIDC 

Texpool #00005 

Texpool #00006 

Certificates 

#1017938 

Total Investment Balance 

** Notes: 

$ 
$ 

$ 

423,481.77 

423,481.77 

Issue Date 
Maturity 

Date 

$ 
$ 

839,511.18 
839,511.18 

Interest Rate 

0.03% 

0.03% 

The Sales Tax Transfer of $112,519.75 was received and transfered on Febrnary 10th. 

$ 
$ 
$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

There are Transfers of $514.94 for the Goat Naming Contest, $2,000.00 for Light up the Park, and $1,258.09 for the 
Christmas Parade to the General Fund. These were the amounts MEDC contributed for these events. 

The second payment of $63,052.03 was transferred on 02/01/2021. 

423,481.77 
839,511.18 

1,262,992.95 

Balance 

127,565.78 

711,945.40 

839,511.18 

The Sales Tax Transfer of $76,550.41 was received and transferred on March 11th. This will show on the next report 

The third payment of$63,052.03 was transferred on 03/01/2021. This will show on the next months report 

24

Item 3.



Date N"m Name 

51100 · MEDC Checking 
01/01/2021 AL 
01/01/2021 ALR 
01/08/2021 AL 
01/08/2021 AL 
01/12/2021 AL 
01/12/2021 AL 
01/15/2021 AL 
01/29/2021 2024 
01/29/2021 2025 
01/29/2021 2026 
02/01/2021 AL 
02/12/2021 2027 
02/12/2021 2028 
02/12/2021 AL 
02/12/2021 AL 
02/12/2021 AL 
02/12/2021 AL 
02/12/2021 AL 
02/12/2021 AL 
02/26/2021 2029 

First Financial Bank 
First Financial Bank 

First Financial Bank 
First Financial Bank 
First Financial Bank 
Gunda Corporation 
McCoy's Building Supply 
Rebecca Huss 

Rebecca Huss 
Gunda Corporation 
First Financial Bank 
First Financial Bank 
First Financial Bank 
First Financial Bank 
First Financial Bank 
First Financial Bank 
Northwest Communications, Inc, 

Total 51100 · MEDC Checking 

TOTAL 

City of Montgomery• MEDC 

Cash Flow Report 

As ofFebruary 28, 2021 

Memo 

Payment from General Fund for MISD Loan 
Reverse ofGJE AL•· Wire Fee for Old Republic Title Co Transfer• To be refunded next ... 
Monthly Admin Transfer Janu11ry 2021 
Sales Tux Transfer 01/21 
Transfer from General Fund to p11y Par11de & Light Up the Park Expenses 
Transfer to General Fund to move back revenues for Parade & Light up the Park 
Transfer to General Fund for Expenses Paid • Femland Video / Social Media Services 
Downtown Design & Streetseape lmprovemeuts Plau • Invoice 8652 
Goat Cutouts • fovoice 11356069 
Reimbursement of Expense• Website Marketing/ Professional Services 
Payment from General Fund for MISD Loan 
Reimbursement of Expense• Social Media Services 
Downtown Design & Streetscape Improve1nents Plan. Invoice 8678 
Transfer back from General Fund for Goat Naming Contest Expenses 
Sales Tax Transfer 02/21 
Transfer to General Fund for Goat Naming Contest Contribution 
Transfer to General Fund for Light Up The Park Contribution 
Transfer to Genen1l Fund for Chrisn1111s Pariide Contribution 
Monthly Ad min Transfer Feb1rnry 2021 
Radios for Events• MEDC Invoice !035763 

Amount Balance 

146,802.29 
63,052.03 209,854.32 

25.00 209,879.32 
·3,958,33 205,920,99 
61,541.64 267,462,63 
1,084.45 268,547.08 
-350,00 268,197.08 

-1,250,00 266,947.08 
-11,627.74 255,319.34 

-100,98 255,218,36 
-150,00 255,068,36 

63,052,03 318,120.39 
.f,000.00 317,120.39 
•5,646,50 3ll,473,89 

397.99 311,871.88 
112,519,75 424,391.63 

-514.94 423,876.69 
-2,000.00 421,876.69 
•l,258.09 420,618.60 
·3,958,33 416,660.27 

-14,632,65 402,027,62 

255,225,33 402,027,62 

255,225.33 402,027.62 

25

Item 3.



Date Num Name 

51300 · Time Depositsl-MEDC 
01/08/2021 AL 
01/31/2021 Int 
02/05/2021 AL 
02/28/2021 Int 

Total 51300 · Time Depositsl-MEDC 

TOTAL 

City ofMontgomery - MEDC 

Cash Flow Report -Texpool 

As of February 28, 2021 

Memo 

January 2021 Transfer to Texpool Reimbursement Account - Kroger Co. 
Interest on Texpool 
February 2021 Transfer to Texpool Reimbursement Account - Kroger Co. 
Interest on Texpool 

Amount Balance 

731,039.73 
-9,583.33 721,456.40 

48.74 721,505.14 
-9,583,33 711,921.81 

23.59 711,945.40 

-19,094.33 711,945.40 

-19,094.33 711,945.40 

26

Item 3.



Date Num Name 

51301 , Texpool Reimbursement Acct 
01/08/2021 AL 
01/31/2021 Int 
02/05/2021 AL 
02/28/2021 Int 

City of Montgomery- MEDC 

Cash Flow Report- Texpool Reimb 

As ofFebruary 28, 2021 

Memo 

January 2021 Transfer to Texpool Reimbursement Account - Kroger Co. 
Interest 
February 2021 Transfer to Texpool Reimbursement Account - Kroger Co, 
Interest 

Total 51301 · Texpool Reimbursement Acct 

TOTAL 

Amount Balance 

108,387.09 
9,583.33 117,970.42 

7.82 117,978.24 
9,583.33 127,561.57 

4,21 127,565.78 

19,178,69 127,565.78 

19,178.69 127,565.78 

27

Item 3.



City of Montgomery - :MEDC 

Actual to Budget Performance 
January 2021 

Jan21 Budget $ Over Budget Oct '20 - Jan 21 YID Budget $ Over Budget Annual Budget 

Income 
55000 · Taxes & Franchise Fees 

55400 · Sales Tax 61,541.64 50,000.00 11,541.64 280,103.83 220,000.00 60,103.83 675,000.00 

Total 55000 · Taxes & Franchise Fees 61,541.64 50,000.00 11,541.64 280,103.83 220,000.00 60,103.83 675,000.00 

55300 · Other Revenues 
55391 · Interest Income 994.70 333.33 661.37 1,426.97 1,333.36 93.61 4,000.00 

Total 55300 · Other Revenues 994.70 333.33 661.37 1,426.97 1,333.36 93.61 4,000.00 

Total Income 62,536.34 50,333.33 12,203.01 281,530.80 221,333.36 60,197.44 679,000.00 

Expense 
56000 · Pub Infrastructure - Category I 

56000.6 · Downtown Dev Improvements 11,627.74 9,333.33 2,294.41 11,627.74 37,333.36 (25,705.62) 112,000.00 
56000.7 · Streets & Sidewalks 0.00 833.33 (833.33) 0.00 3,333.36 (3,333.36) 10,000.00 
56000.8 · Utility Extensions 0.00 4,166.67 (4,166.67) 0.00 16,666.64 (16,666.64) 50,000.00 
56000.B · City Capital Projects 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 160,000.00 

Total 56000 · Pub Infrastructure - Category I 11,627.74 14,333.33 (2,705.59) 11,627.74 57,333.36 (45,705.62) 332,000.00 

56001 · Business Dev & Ret -Category II 
56001.8 · Sales Tax Reimbursement 9,583.33 9,583.33 0.00 38,333.33 38,333.33 0.00 115,000.00 
56001.9 · Economic Development Grant Prog 0.00 1,666.67 (1,666.67) 0.00 6,666.64 (6,666.64) 20,000.00 

Total 56001 · Business Dev & Ret-Category II 9,583.33 11,250.00 (1,666.67) 38,333.33 44,999.97 (6,666.64) 135,000.00 

56002 · Quality of Life - Category III 
56002.2 · Removal of Blight 0.00 1,250.00 (1,250.00) 0.00 5,000.00 (5,000.00) 15,000.00 
56002.3 · Events 

56100.1 · Neighborhood Water Party 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 
56100.5 · Light up Montgomery 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,000.00 (2,000.00) 2,000.00 
56100.6 · Southern Rum Runner 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 7,800.00 
56100.7 · Mudbugs and Music 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 8,000.00 
56100.8 · Christmas Parade 0.00 125.00 (125.00) 0.00 500.00 (500.00) 1,500.00 
56100.9 · Contests/Prizes 0.00 333.33 (333.33) 0.00 1,333.36 (1,333.36) 4,000.00 
56002.3 · Events - Other 0.00 1,391.67 (1,391.67) 0.00 5,566.64 (5,566.64) 16,700.00 

Total 56002.3 · Events 0.00 1,850.00 (1,850.00) 0.00 9,400.00 (9,400.00) 41,000.00 

56002.4 · Downtown Enhancement Projects 0.00 2,500.00 (2,500.00) 135.00 10,000.00 (9,865.00) 30,000.00 

Total 56002 · Quality of Life- Category III 0.00 5,600.00 (5,600.00) 135.00 24,400.00 (24,265.00) 86,000.00 

56003 · Marketing & Tourism-Category IV 
56003.5 · Brochures/Printed Literature 0.00 333.33 (333.33) 0.00 1,333.36 (1,333.36) 4,000.00 
56003.C · Website 0.00 666.67 (666.67) 0.00 2,666.64 (2,666.64) 8,000.00 
56003.F • Social Media Advertising 0.00 250.00 (250.00) 50.00 1,000.00 (950.00) 3,000.00 
56003.G • Historical Sign.age 0.00 166.67 (166.67) 0.00 666.64 (666.64) 2,000.00 

Total 56003 · Marketing & Tourism-Category IV 0.00 1,416.67 (1,416.67) 50.00 5,666.64 (5,616.64) 17,000.00 

56004 · Administration - Category V 

28

Item 3.



Jan21 Budget $ Over Budget Oct '20 - Jan 21 YTDBudget $ Over Budget Annual Budget 

56004.1 · Admin Transfers to Gen Fund 3,958.33 3,958.33 0.00 15,833.33 15,833.33 0.00 47,500.00 

56004.3 · Miscellaneous Expenses 0.00 41.67 (41.67) 0.00 166.64 (166.64) 500.00 
56004.6 · Consulting (Professional servi) 1,025.00 4,083.33 (3,058.33) 4,614.49 16,333.36 (11,718.87) 49,000.00 
56004.7 · Travel & Training Expenses 0.00 833.33 (833.33) 724.00 3,333.36 (2,609.36) 10,000.00 
56004.9 · Technology 0.00 166.67 (166.67) 0.00 666.64 (666.64) 2,000.00 

Total 56004 · Administration - Category V 4,983.33 9,083.33 (4,100.00) 21,171.82 36,333.33 (15,161.51) 109,000.00 

56006 · Miscellaneous Expenses (25.00) 0.00 

Total Expense 26,169.40 41,683.33 (15,513.93) 71,317.89 168,733.30 (97,415.41) 679,000.00 

Net Income 36,366.94 8,650.00 27,716.94 210,212.91 52,600.06 157,612.85 0.00 

29

Item 3.



City of Montgomery - MEDC 

Actual to Budget Performance 
February 2021 

Feb21 Budget $ Over Budget Oct '20- Feb 21 YTD Budget $ Over Budget Annual Budget 

Income 
55000 · Taxes & Franchise Fees 

55400 · Sales Tax 112,519.75 70,000.00 42,519.75 392,623.58 290,000.00 102,623.58 675,000.00 

Total 55000 · Taxes & Franchise Fees 112,519.75 70,000.00 42,519.75 392,623.58 290,000.00 102,623.58 675,000.00 

55300 · Other Revenues 
55391 · Interest Income 888.30 333.33 554.97 2,315.27 1,666.69 648.58 4,000.00 

Total 55300 · Other Revenues 888.30 333.33 554.97 2,315.27 1,666.69 648.58 4,000.00 

Total Income 113,408.05 70,333.33 43,074.72 394,938.85 291,666.69 103,27216 679,000.00 

Expense 
56000 · Pub Infrastructure - Category I 

56000.6 · Downtown Dev Improvements 5,646.50 9,333.33 (3,686.83) 17,274.24 46,666.69 (29,392.45) 112,000.00 
56000.7 · Streets & Sidewalks 0.00 833.33 (833.33) 0.00 4,166.69 (4,166.69) 10,000.00 
56000.8 - Utility Extensions 0.00 4,166.67 (4,166.67) 0.00 20,833.31 (20,833.31) 50,000.00 
56000.B · City Capital Projects 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 160,000.00 

Total 56000 · Pub Infrastructure - Category I 5,646.50 14,333.33 (8,686.83) 17,274.24 71,666.69 (54,392.45) 332,000.00 

56001 · Business Dev & Ret -Category II 
56001.8 · Sales Tax Reimbursement 9,583.33 9,583.33 0.00 47,916.66 47,916.66 0.00 115,000.00 
56001.9 · Economic Development Grant Prog 0.00 1,666.67 (1,666.67) 0.00 8,333.31 (8,333.31) 20,000.00 

Total 56001 · Business Dev & Ret-Category II 9,583.33 11,250.00 (1,666.67) 47,916.66 56,249.97 (8,333.31) 135,000.00 

56002 · Quality of Life - Category III 
560022 · Removal of Blight 0.00 1,250.00 (1,250.00) 0.00 6,250.00 (6,250.00) 15,000.00 

56002.3 · Events 
56100.1 · Neighborhood Water Party 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 
56100.5 · Light up Montgomery 2,000.00 0.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 0.00 2,000.00 
56100.6 · Southern Rum Runner 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 7,800.00 
56100.7 · Mud.bugs and Music 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 8,000.00 
56100.8 · Christmas Parade 1,258.09 125.00 1,133.09 1,258.09 625.00 633.09 1,500.00 

56100.9 · Contests/Prizes 0.00 333.33 (333.33) 0.00 1,666.69 (1,666.69) 4,000.00 
56002.3 · Events - Other 514.94 1,391.67 (876.73) 514.94 6,958.31 (6,443.37) 16,700.00 

Total 56002.3 · Events 3,773.03 1,850.00 1,923.03 3,773.03 11,250.00 (7,476.97) 41,000.00 

56002.4 · Downtown Enhancement Projects 0.00 2,500.00 (2,500.00) 135.00 12,500.00 (12,365.00) 30,000.00 

Total 56002 · Quality of Life - Category III 3,773.03 5,600.00 (1,826.97) 3,908.03 30,000.00 (26,091.97) 86,000.00 

56003 · Marketing & Tourism-Category IV 
560035 · Brochures/Printed Literature 0.00 333.33 (333.33) 0.00 1,666.69 (1,666.69) 4,000.00 
56003.C · Website 0.00 666.67 (666.67) 0.00 3,333.31 (3,333.31) 8,000.00 

56003.F · Social Media Advertising 0.00 250.00 (250.00) 50.00 1,250.00 (1,200.00) 3,000.00 
56003.G · Historical Signage 0.00 166.67 (166.67) 0.00 833.31 (833.31) 2,000.00 

Total 56003 · Marketing & Tourism-Category IV 0.00 1,416.67 (1,416.67) 50.00 7,083.31 (7,033.31) 17,000.00 

56004 · Administration - Category V 

30

Item 3.



Feb 21 Budget $ Over Budget Oct '20- Feb 21 YIDButli,,oet $ Over Budget Annual Budget 

56004.1 · Admin Transfers to Gen Fund 3,958.33 3,958.33 0.00 19,791.66 19,791.66 0.00 47,500.00 

56004.3 · Miscellaneous Expenses 0.00 41.67 (41.67) 0.00 208.31 (208.31) 500.00 
56004.6 · Consulting (Professional servi) 1,129.61 4,083.33 (2,953.72) 5,744.10 20,416.69 (14,67259) 49,000.00 
56004.7 · Travel & Training Expenses 0.00 833.33 (833.33) 724.00 4,166.69 (3,442.69) 10,000.00 
56004.9 · Technology 0.00 166.67 (166.67) 0.00 833.31 (833.31) 2,000.00 

Total 56004 · Administration - Category V 5,087.94 9,083.33 (3,995.39) 26,259.76 45,416.66 (19,156.90) 109,000.00 

Total Expense 24,090.80 41,683.33 (17,592.53) 95,408.69 210,416.63 (115,007.94) 679,000.00 

Net Income 89,317.25 28,650.00 60,667.25 299,530.16 81,250.06 218,280.10 0.00 

31

Item 3.



03/10/21 

Type Date Num Name 

51100 · MEDC Checking 
GeneralJour. .. 10/08/2020 AL 
Bill Pmt-Ch ... 10/23/2020 2006 Rebecca Huss 
Bill Pmt-Ch ... 11/06/2020 2007 Rebecca Huss 
Bill Pmt-Ch ... 11/13/2020 2008 JK Graphics, Inc. 
GcneralJour ... 11/16/2020 AL 
General Jour ... 11/19/2020 AL 
Bill Pmt-Ch ... 11/20/2020 2009 Rebecca Huss 
Bill Pmr...Ch ... 11/20/2020 2010 TEDC 
Bill Pmt-Ch ... 12/04/2020 2011 City of Montgomery- Ur. .. 
Bill Pmt-Ch ... 12/04/2020 2012 Rebecca Huss 
Bill Pmt-Ch ... 12/04/2020 2013 Megan Dodd 
Bill Pmr-Ch ... 12/04/2020 2014 Montgomery Junior Hig ... 
Bill Pmt-Ch ... 12/04/2020 2015 Jeff and Lisa Waddell 
BillPmt-Ch ... 12/04/2020 2016 Lisa Martin 
BillPmt---Ch ... 12/04/2020 2017 Paul and Jennifer Brown 
Bill Pmr-Ch ... 12/04/2020 2018 Cheryl King 
General Jour ... 12/10/2020 AL 
General Jour ... 12/10/2020 AL 
Bill Pmt-Ch ... 12/11/2020 2019 TEDC 
Bill Pmt-Ch ... 12/18/2020 2020 McCoy's Building Supply 
Bill Pmt -Ch ... 12/18/2020 2021 Rebecca Huss 
Bill Pmt-Ch ... 12/23/2020 2022 Rebecca Huss 
General Jour ... 12/29/2020 AL 
General Jour ... 12/30/2020 AL Old Republic Title Co. 
Bill Pmt-Ch ... 12/31/2020 2023 Bride & Bloom Floristry ... 
General Jour ... 12/31/2020 AL First Financial Bank 
General Jour ... 01/01/2021 AL 
General Jour ... 01/01/2021 ALR First Financial Bank 
General Jour ... 01/08/2021 AL First Financial Bank 
General Jour ... 01/08/2021 AL 
Genera!Jour ... 01/12/2021 AL First Financial Bank 
GeneralJour ... 01/12/2021 AL First Financial Bank 
GeneralJour ... 01/15/2021 AL First Financial Bank 
BillPmt-Ch ... 01/29/2021 2024 Gunda Corporation 
BillPmt-Ch ... 01/29/2021 2025 McCoy's Building Supply 
Bill Pmt-Ch ... 01/29/2021 2026 Rebecca Huss 
General Jour ... 02/01/2021 AL 
Bill Pmt-Ch. .. 02/12/2021 2027 Rebecca Huss 
Bill Pmt...Ch ... 02/12/2021 2028 Gunda Corporation 
Generaljour. .. 02/12/2021 AL First Financial Bank 
General Jour ... 02/12/2021 AL First Financial Bank 
General Jour ... 02/12/2021 AL First Financial Bank 
General Jour ... 02/12/2021 AL First Financial Bank 
General Jour ... 02/12/2021 AL First Financial Bank 
General Jour ... 02/12/2021 AL First Financial Bank 
Bill Pmt -Ch ... 02/26/2021 2029 Northwest Communicat. .. 

Total 51100 · MEDC Checking 

City of Montgomery- MEDC 

General Ledger 

As of February 28, 2021 

Memo 

Light Up the Park- Transfer made 10/09/2020 
Reimbursement of faq,ense - Website Marketing 
October 2020 Social Media Services 
Inv 35177 - Graphics for Light up the Park 
Light Up the Park- Transfer made 11/17/2020 
Transfer to General Fund for Amount due from :MEDC - Discount Mugs and McCoys 
Reimbursement of E:-.'Pense - Website Marketing 
Fall Basic ED Course for Richard Tramm 
Utility Grant Application - The Ranchers Daughter 
Reimbursement of E:-.1>ense - Website / Social Media 1-fa:rketing 
1st Place - Pole Decorating Contest 
2nd Place - Pole Decorating Contest 
3rd Place - Pole Decorating Contest 
1st Place - Residential Lighting Contest 
2nd Place - Residential Lighting Contest 
3rd Place - Residential Lighting Contest 
Light Up the Park - Transfer made 12/11/2020 
Sales Ta.x Transfer 12/20 
Webinars - Sales Ta.x / Financing Local Food Sys. / Membership Renewal 
Goat Cutouts - Invoice 11353487 
Reimbursement of Expense - String for Signs of Parade Winners 
Reimbursement of Expense - Website Marketing 
Transfer to Checking for MISD Loan 
Payment to Old Republic Title for MISD Purchase 
Wreaths -12/5/20 (Light up Montgomery) Inv 0000012 
Wire Fee for Old Republic Title Co Transfer - To be refunded ne.-.;:r month 
Payment from General Fund for .MISD Loan 
Reverse of GJE AL- Wire Fee for Old Republic Title Co Transfer - To be refunded ne ... 
Monthly Admin Transfer January 2021 
Sales Ta....: Transfer0l/21 
Transfer from General Fund to pay Parade & Light Up the Park E:-.-penses 
Transfer to General Fund to move back revenues for Parade & Light up the Park 
Transfer to General Fund for E:-.l)enses Paid - Femland Video/ Social Media Services 
Downtown Design & Streetscape Improvements Plan - Invoice 8652 
Goat Cutouts - Invoice 11356069 
Reimbursement of E:-.'Pense - Website Marketing / Professional Services 
Payment from General Fund for MISD Loan 
Reimbursement of E:-.'Pense - Social Media Services 
Downtown Design & Streetsca.pe Improvements Plan - Invoice 8678 
Transfer back from General Fund for Goat Naming Contest Expenses 
Sales Tax Transfer 02/21 
Transfer to General Fund for Goat Naming Contest Contribution 
Transfer to General Fund for Light Up The Park Contribution 
Transfer to General Fund for Christmas Parade Contribution 
Monthly Admin Transfer Febuary 2021 
Radios for Events - i\.IBDC Invoice 1035763 

Debit Credit Balance 

94,716.29 
125.00 94,841.29 

25.00 94,816.29 
1,000.00 93,816.29 

98.00 93,718.29 
100.00 93,818.29 

549.49 93,268.80 
75.00 93,193.80 

700.00 92,493.80 
250.00 92,243.80 

1,016.87 91,226.93 
50.00 91,176.93 
25.00 91,151.93 
10.00 91,141.93 

200.00 90,941.93 
150.00 90,791.93 
100.00 90,691.93 

125.00 90,816.93 
57,443.45 148,260.38 

724.00 147,536.38 
34.02 147,502.36 

2.58 147,499.78 
24.99 147,474.79 

750,000.00 897,474.79 
750,512.50 146,962.29 

135.00 146,827.29 
25.00 146,802.29 

63,052.03 209,854.32 
25.00 209,879.32 

3,958.33 205,920.99 
61,541.64 267,462.63 

1,084.45 268,547.08 
350.00 268,197.08 

1,250.00 266,947.08 
11,627.74 255,319.34 

100.98 255,218.36 
150.00 255,068.36 

63,052.03 318,120.39 
1,000.00 317,120.39 
5,646.50 311,473.89 

397.99 311,871.88 
112,519.75 424,391.63 

514.94 423,876.69 
2,000.00 421,876.69 
1,258.09 420,618.60 
3,958.33 416,660.27 

14,632.65 402,027.62 

1,109,466.34 802,155.01 402,027.62 

Page 1 

32

Item 3.



03/10/21 

Type Date Num 

51300 · Time Depositsl-MEDC 
GeneralJour... 10/08/2020 AL 
GeneralJour... 10/12/2020 AL 
GeneralJour... 10/12/2020 AL 
GeneralJour... 10/23/2020 AL 
GeneralJour... 10/31/2020 Int 
GenernlJour... 11/09/2020 AL 
Generaljour... 11/09/2020 AL 
General.Jour ... 11/12/2020 AL 
GeneralJour ... 11/13/2020 AL 
General Jour... 11/30/2020 Int 
GeneralJour... 12/10/2020 AL 
GeneralJour... 12/10/2020 AL 
GeneralJour... 12/29/2020 AL 
GeneralJour... 12/31/2020 Int 
General Jour... 01/08/2021 AL 
GeneralJour ... 01/31/2021 Int 
GeneralJour ... 02/05/2021 AL 
General Jour... 02/28/2021 Int 

Total 51300 · Time Depositsl-MEDC 

51301 · Texpool Reimbursement Acct 
General Jour... 10/12/2020 AL 
Generaljour... 10/31/2020 Int 
GeneralJour ... 11/09/2020 AL 
Generaljour... 11/13/2020 AL 
Gene:raljour ... 11/30/2020 Int 
GeneralJour... 12/10/2020 AL 
Generaljour... 12/31/2020 Int 
Generaljour ... 01/08/2021 AL 
Genera!Jour ... 01/31/2021 Int 
Generaljour ... 02/05/2021 AL 
Generaljour ... 02/28/2021 Int 

Total 51301 · Te..'\.7001 Reimbursement Acct 

51150 · Accounts Receivable Audit 
Total 51150 · Accounts Receivable Audit 

51170 · Due from General Fund - Loan 
Generaljour... 12/30/2020 AL 
Generaljour ... 01/01/2021 AL 
Generaljour... 02/01/2021 AL 

Total 51170 · Due from General Fund - Loan 

Name 

City of Montgomery- MEDC 

General Ledger 

As of February 28, 2021 

Sales Ta.;: Transfer 10/20 

Memo 

October 2020 Transfer to Te..'--pool Reimbursement Account- Kroger Co. 
Monthly Admin Transfer October 2020 
Transfer to General Fund for Amount due from MEDC for Creedon 
Interest on Te:-..-pool 
Monthly Admin Transfer November 2020 
November 2020 Transfer to Te:-..-pool Reimbursement Account- Kroger Co. 
Sales Ta.'- Transfer 11/20 
Oct/ Nov 2020 Remaining Transfer to Te..\.-pool Reimbursement Account - Kroger Co. 
Interest on Te:-..-pool 
December 2020 Transfer to Te..'--pool Reimbursement Account - Kroger Co. 
Monthly Admin Transfer December 2020 
Transfer to Checking for MISD Loan 
Interest on Te:-..-pool 
January 2021 Transfer to Te:-..-pool Reimbursement Account - Kroger Co. 
Interest on Texpool 
February 2021 Transfer to Te::-..-pool Reimbursement Account - Kroger Co. 
Interest on Te..\.-pool 

October 2020 Trans fer to Te..-:pool Reimbursement Account - Kroger Co. 
Interest 
November 2020 Transfer to Te::-..-pool Reimbursement Account- Kroger Co. 
Oct / Nov 2020 Remaining Transfer to Te..'--pool Reimbursement Account - Kroger Co. 
Interest 
December 2020 Transfer to Te:-..-pool Reimbursement Account - Kroger Co. 
Interest 
January 2021 Transfer to Te:-..-pool Reimbursement Account - Kroger Co. 
Interest 
February 2021 Transfer to Te:,,.-pool Reimbursement Account - Kroger Co. 
Interest 

Payment to Old Republic Title for MISD Purchase 
Payment from General Fund for MISD Loan 
Payment from General Fund for MISD Loan 

Debit 

56,979.38 

158.21 

104,139.36 

147.43 

99.44 

48.74 

23.59 

161,596.15 

6,625.00 
9.51 

6,625.00 
5,916.66 

9.55 
9,588.34 

8.13 
9,583.33 

7.82 
9,583.33 

4.21 

47,960.88 

750,51250 

Credit 

6,625.00 
3,958.33 

285.00 

3,958.33 
6,625.00 

5,916.66 

9,588.34 
3,958.34 

750,000.00 

9,583.33 

9,583.33 

810,081.66 

0.00 

62,113.89 
62,191.53 

750,51250 124,305.42 

Balance 

1,360,430.91 
1,417,410.29 
1,410,785.29 
1,406,826.96 
1,406,541.96 
1,406,700.17 
1,402,741.84 
1,396,116.84 
1,500,256.20 
1,494,339.54 
1,494,486.97 
1,484,898.63 
1,480,940.29 

730,940.29 
731,039.73 
721,456.40 
721,505.14 
711,921.81 
711,945.40 

711,945.40 

79,604.90 
86,229.90 
86,239.41 
92,864.41 
98,781.07 
98,790.62 

108,378.96 
108,387.09 
117,970.42 
117,978.24 
127,561.57 
127,565.78 

127,565.78 

161,118.74 
161,118.74 

0.00 
750,51250 
688,398.61 
626,207.08 

626,207.08 

Page2 

33

Item 3.



03/10/21 

Type Date 

51171 · Due From Gen Fund 
GeneralJour... 10/08/2020 
Gene:ra!Jour... 10/08/2020 
Generaljour... 10/08/2020 
Gcneraljour... 10/31/2020 
Bill 11/10/2020 
GeneralJour ... 11/12/2020 
Generaljour ... 11/12/2020 
GeneralJour... 11/16/2020 
Bill 11/17/2020 
Genernl.Jour ... 11/19/2020 
GeneralJour ... 11/19/2020 
General Jour... 11/30/2020 
Bill 12/01/2020 
Bill 12/01/2020 
Bill 12/01/2020 
Bill 12/04/2020 
Bill 12/04/2020 
Bill 12/04/2020 
Bill 12/04/2020 
Bill 12/04/2020 
Bill 12/04/2020 
GeneralJour... 12/10/2020 
General Jour... 12/10/2020 
GeneralJour... 12/11/2020 
Bill 12/15/2020 
Bill 12/21/2020 
Bill 12/30/2020 
GeneralJour... 01/08/2021 
General Jour... 01/08/2021 
GeneralJour ... 01/12/2021 
Bill 01/26/2021 
General Jour... 02/10/2021 
GeneralJour ... 02/12/2021 
GeneralJour ... 02/12/2021 

AL 
AL 
AL 
Int 
35177 
AL 
AL 
AL 

Num 

Reimb of E.'-p 
AL 
AL 
Int 
Reimb of fa .. -p 
Reimb of E:-..-p 
Reimb of Exp 
Light up the Pole 
Light up the Pole 
Light up the Pole 
Light up the Pole 
Light up the Pole 
Light up the Pole 
AL 
AL 
AL 
Reimb of E:-..-p 
Reimb of Exp 
Inv 000012 
AL 
AL 
AL 
Reimb of E:-..-p 
AL 
AL 
AL 

Total 51171 · Due From Gen Fund 

51174 · Due from Home Grant Funds 
Total 51174 · Due from Home Grant Funds 

Name 

JK Graphics, Inc. 

Rebecca Huss 

Rebecca Huss 
Rebecca Huss 
Rebecca Huss 
Megan Dodd 
Montgomery Junior Hig ... 
Jeff and Lisa Waddell 
Lisa .Martin 
Paul and Jennifer Brown 
Chery! King 

Rebecca I·Iuss 
Rebecca Huss 
Bride & Bloom Floristty ... 

Rebecca Huss 

City of Montgomery - MEDC 

General Ledger 

As of February 28, 2021 

Memo 

Light Up the Park~ Transfer made 10/09/2020 
To accrue sales ta.-..:: revenue rec'd 10/20 
Sales Ta., Transfer 10/20 
Light up the Park - October 
Inv 35177 - Graphics for Light up the Park 
Sales Ta.'- Transfer 11/20 
To accrue sales ta.-..:: revenue rec'd 11 /20 
Light Up the Park- Tnmsfer made 11/17/2020 
Reimbursement of E:-..-pense - Website Marketing 
Amount due from MEDC for Discount Mugs -Purchase of Goat Cups 
Amount due from MEDC for Discount Mugs -Purchase of Goat Cups 
Light up the Park - November 
Reimbursement of E:-..-pense - Website .Marketing 
Reimbursement of E:-..-pense - Website Marketing 
Reimbursement of E:-..1'ense - Website Marketing 
1st Place - Pole Decorating Contest 
2nd Place - Pole Decorating Contest 
3rd Place - Pole Decorating Contest 
1st Place - Residential Lighting Contest 
2nd Place - Residential Lighting Contest 
3rd Place - Residential Lighting Contest 
Light Up the Park - Tnmsfer made 12/11/2020 
Sales Tax Transfer 12/20 
To accrue sales ta.-..:: revenue rec'd 12/20 
Reimbursement of Expense - String for Signs of Parade Winners 
Reimbursement of E:-..-pense - Website Marketing 
Wreaths -12/5/20 (Light up Montgomery) Inv 0000012 
To accrue sales tax revenue rec'd 01/21 
Sales Ta., Transfer 01/21 
Transfer from General Fund to pay Parade & Light Up the Park Expenses 
Reimbursement of fo .. -pense - Professional Services - Goat Naming Contest 
To accrue sales ta.-..:: revenue rec'd 02/21 
Transfer back from General Fund for Goat Naming Contest E:-..-penses 
Sales Ta., Transfer 02/21 

Debit 

56,979.38 

100.00 
98.00 

104,139.36 

50.00 
297.00 
198.00 
125.00 

280 
0.82 

13.25 
50.00 
25.00 
10.00 

200.00 
150.00 
100.00 

57,443.45 
258 

24.99 
135.00 

61,541.64 

125.00 
112,519.75 

394,331.02 

Credit Balance 

125.00 
125.00 0.00 

56,979.38 
56,979.38 0.00 

100.00 
198.00 

104,139.36 -103,941.36 
198.00 

100.00 98.00 
148.00 
445.00 
643.00 
768.00 
770.80 
771.62 
784.87 
834.87 
859.87 
869.87 

1,069.87 
1,219.87 
1,319.87 

125.00 1,194.87 
57,443.45 -56,248.58 

1,194.87 
1,197.45 
1,22244 
1,357.44 

62,899.08 
61,541.64 1,357.44 
1,084.45 27299 

397.99 
112,917.74 

397.99 112,519.75 
112,519.75 0.00 

394,456.02 0.00 

5,177.00 
5,177.00 

34

Item 3.



City of Montgomery- MEDC 

03/10/21 General Ledger 

As of February 28, 2021 

Type Date Num Name Memo Debit Credit Balance 

52000 · Accounts Payable -15,582.65 

Bill 10/21/2020 Reimb of E:-.-p Rebecca Huss Reimbursement of E:-.-pense - Website Marketing 25.00 -15,607.65 
Bill Pmt-Ch. .. 10/23/2020 2006 Rebecca Huss Reimbursement of E:-.-pense - Website ivfarketing 25.00 -15,582.65 
Bill 10/31/2020 Social Media Service Rebecca Huss Reimbursement of E:-.-pense - Social Media Services 1,000.00 -16,582.65 
Bill 10/31/2020 12206 TEDC Sales Ta.-: Virtual ED Course for Richard Tramm 120.00 -16,702.65 
Bill 11/02/2020 12248 TEDC Webinar - Financing Local Food Systems for Richard Tramm 79.00 -16,781.65 
Bill Pmt-Ch ... 11/06/2020 2007 Rebecca Huss October 2020 Social Media Services 1,000.00 -15,781.65 
Bill 11/10/2020 35177 JK Graplucs, Inc. Inv 35177 - Graphics for Light up the Park 98.00 -15,879.65 
Bill Pmr-Ch ... 11/13/2020 2008 JK Graphics, Inc. Inv 35177 - Graphics for Light up the Park 98.00 -15,781.65 
Bill 11/17/2020 Reimb of E:-.-p Rebecca Huss Reimbursement of E:-.-pense - Website Marketing 75.00 -15,856.65 
Bill Pmt -Ch ... 11/20/2020 2009 Rebecca Huss Reimbursement ofE:-.-pense - Website Marketing 75.00 -15,781.65 
Bill Pmt-Ch ... 11/20/2020 2010 TEDC Fall Basic ED Course for Richard Tramm 700.00 -15,081.65 
Bill 11/30/2020 Social Media Service Rebecca Huss Reimbursement of E.-:pense - Socml Media Services 1,000.00 -16,081.65 
Bill 11/30/2020 Inv 12216 TEDC 2021 Membership fees Inv #12216 525.00 -16,606.65 
Bill 12/01/2020 Reimb of Exp Rebecca Huss Reimbursement of E::..-pense - Website Marketing 2.80 -16,609.45 
Bill 12/01/2020 Reimb of E:-.-p Rebecca Huss Reimbursement of Expense - Website Marketing 0.82 -16,610.27 
Bill 12/01/2020 Reimb of Exp Rebecca Huss Reimbursement of E:-.'Pense - Website Marketing 13.25 -16,623.52 
Bill Pmt-Ch ... 12/04/2020 2011 City of Montgomery- Ut ... Utility Grant Application - The Ranchers Daughter 250.00 -16,373.52 
BillPmt-Ch ... 12/04/2020 2012 Rebecca Huss Reimbursement of E:-.-pense - Website / Social Media Marketing 1,016.87 -15,356.65 
Bill 12/04/2020 Light up the Pole Megan Dodd 1st Place - Pole Decorating Contest 50.00 -15,4-06.65 

Bill 12/04/2020 Light up the Pole Montgomery Junior I:rig ... 2nd Place - Pole Decorating Contest 25.00 -15,431.65 
Bill 12/04/2020 Light up the Pole Jeff and Lisa Waddell 3rd Place - Pole Decorating Contest 10.00 -15,441.65 
Bill 12/04/2020 Light up the Pole Lisa Martin 1st Place - Residential Lighting Contest 200.00 -15,641.65 

Bill 12/04/2020 Light up the Pole Paul and Jennifer Brown 2nd Place - Residential Lighting Contest 150.00 -15,791.65 
Bill 12/04/2020 Light up the Pole Cheryl King 3rd Place - Residential Lighting Contest 100.00 -15,891.65 
Bill Pmt-Ch ... 12/04/2020 2013 Megan Dodd 1st Place - Pole Decorating Contest 50.00 -15,841.65 
Bill Pmt-Ch ... 12/04/2020 2014 Montgomery Junior Hig ... 2nd Place - Pole Decorating Contest 25.00 -15,816.65 
Bill Pmt-Ch ... 12/04/2020 2015 Jeff and Lisa Waddell 3rd Place - Pole Decorating Contest 10.00 -15,806.65 
Bill Pmt-Ch ... 12/04/2020 2016 Lisa Martin 1st Place - Residential Lighting Contest 200.00 -15,606.65 
Bill Pmt-Ch ... 12/04/2020 2017 Paul and Jennifer Brown 2nd Place - Residential Lighting Contest 150.00 -15,456.65 
Bill Pmt -Ch. .. 12/04/2020 2018 Cheryl King 3rd Place - Residential Lighting Contest 100.00 -15,356.65 
Bill Pmt-Ch ... 12/11/2020 2019 TEDC Webinars - Sales Ta.x / Financing Local Food Sys./ Membership Renewal 724.00 -14,63265 

Bill 12/14/2020 Inv 11353487 McCoy's Building Supply Goat Cutouts - Invoice 11353487 34.02 -14,666.67 
Bill 12/15/2020 Reimb of E:-."P Rebecca Huss Reimbursement of E:-.-pense - String for Signs of Parade Winners 2.58 -14,669.25 
BillPmt-Ch ... 12/18/2020 2020 McCoy's Building Supply Goat Cutouts - Invoice 11353487 34.02 -14,635.23 
Bill Pmr-Ch ... 12/18/2020 2021 Rebecca Huss Reimbursement of E:-.'Pense - String for Signs of Parade Winners 2.58 -14,632.65 
Bill 12/21/2020 Reimb of Exp Rebecca Huss Reimbursement of E:-.1>ense - Website ivfarketing 24.99 -14,657.64 

Bill 12/21/2020 Inv 11356069 McCoy's Building Supply Goat Cutouts - Invoice 11356069 100.98 -14,758.62 
Bill Pmt-Ch ... 12/23/2020 2022 Rebecca Huss Reimbursement of E:-.-pense - Website Marketing 24.99 -14,733.63 
Bill 12/30/2020 Inv 000012 Bride & Bloom Floristry ... Wreaths -12/5/20 (Light up Montgomery) Inv 0000012 135.00 -14,868.63 
BillPmt-Ch ... 12/31/2020 2023 Bride & Bloom Floristry ... Wreaths -12/5/20 (Light up Montgomery) Inv 0000012 135.00 -14,733.63 
Bill 01/14/2021 8652 Gunda Corporation Downtmvn Design & Streetscape Improvements Plan • Invoice 8652 11,627.74 -26,361.37 

Bill 01/26/2021 Reimb of E:-.'P Rebecca Huss Reimbursement of E:-.-pense - Website Marketing 25.00 -26,386.37 

Bill 01/26/2021 Rcimb of E.'-'P Rebecca Huss Reimbursement of Expense - Professional Services - Goat Naming Contest 125.00 -26,511.37 
BillPmt-Ch ... 01/29/2021 2024 Gunda Corporation Downtown Design & Streetscape Improvements Plan - Invoice 8652 11,627.74 -14,883.63 
Bill Pmt-Ch ... 01/29/2021 2025 McCoy's Building Supply Goat Cutouts - Invoice 11356069 100.98 -14,782.65 
Bill Pmr-Ch ... 01/29/2021 2026 Rebecca Huss Reimbursement of E:-.-pense - Website ivfarketing / Professional Services 150.00 -14,632.65 
Bill 01/31/2021 Social Media Service Rebecca Huss Reimbursement of fa.-pense - Socml Media Services 1,000.00 -15,63265 
Bill 02/02/2021 Reimb ofE:-.-p Rebecca Huss Reimbursement ofE:-.1>ense - Website Marketing 18.46 -15,651.11 

Bill 02/09/2021 8678 Gunda Corporation Downtown Design & Streetscape Improvements Plan - Invoice 8678 5,646.50 -21,297.61 

Page4 

35

Item 3.



03/10/21 

Type Date Num 

Bill Pmt-Ch ... 02/12/2021 2027 
Bill Pmt-Ch ... 02/12/2021 2028 
Bill 02/12/2021 Reimb of Exp 
Bill 02/24/2021 
Bill Pmt--Ch ... 02/26/2021 
Bill 02/28/2021 

Total 52000 · Accounts Payable 

52001 · Accounts Payable Audit 

Reimb of E::q, 
2029 
Social Media Service 

GenemlJour... 10/12/2020 AL 
Genemljour ... 11/09/2020 AL 
General Jour... 12/10/2020 AL 
GeneraljoUI" ... 01/08/2021 AL 
GeneralJour ... 02/05/2021 AL 

Total 52001 · Accounts Payable Audit 

52712 · Due to Gen Fund 
GeneralJour... 10/12/2020 AL 
GenemlJour... 10/12/2020 AL 
Genemljour... 10/21/2020 AL 
GeneralJour... 10/23/2020 AL 
GenemlJour... 10/31/2020 Int 
General Jour... 11/09/2020 AL 
GenemlJour ... 11/09/2020 AL 
Generaljour... 11/16/2020 AL 
Gene:raljour ... 11/19/2020 AL 
GeneralJour ... 11/19/2020 AL 
GeneralJour ... 11/30/2020 Int 
General Jour... 12/10/2020 AL 
GeneralJour... 12/10/2020 AL 
GeneralJour... 12/31/2020 AL 
GeneralJour ... 01/08/2021 AL 
GeneralJour ... 01/08/2021 AL 
GeneralJour ... 01/12/2021 AL 
General.Jour ... 01/15/2021 AL 
GeneralJour. .. 02/10/2021 AL 
GeneralJour ... 02/10/2021 AL 
GeneralJour ... 02/10/2021 AL 
GeneralJour... 02/10/2021 AL 
GeneralJour... 02/12/2021 AL 
GeneralJour... 02/12/2021 AL 
GeneralJour... 02/12/2021 AL 
GeneralJour... 02/12/2021 AL 

Total 52712 · Due to Gen Fund 

53900 · Unrestricted Net Assets 
Total 53900 · Unrestricted Net Assets 

Name 

Rebecca Huss 
Gunda Corporation 
Rebecca Huss 
Rebecca Huss 
Northwest Communicat. .. 
Rebecca Huss 

The Kroger Co. 
The Kroger Co. 
The Kroger Co. 
The Kroger Co. 
The Kroger Co. 

First Financial Bank 

City of Montgomery- MEDC 

General Ledger 

As of February 28, 2021 

Memo 

Reimbursement of E~7ense - Social Media Services 
Downtown Design & Streetscape Improvements Plan - Invoice 8678 
Reimbursement ofE>..'Pense - Website :Marketing 
Reimbursement of E>..7ense - Website Marketing 
Radios for Events - MEDC Invoice 1035763 
Reimbursement of Expense - Social Media Services 

To accrue Monthly Transfer to Te:-..7001 Reimbursement Account for Sales Tax Payable i. .. 
To accrue Monthly Transfer to Te>..7001 Reimbursement Account for Sales Ta., Payable i. .. 
To accrue Monthly Transfer to Te:-..7001 Reimbursement Account for Sales Ta.-x Payable i .. . 
To accrue Monthly Transfer to Te:-..7001 Reimbursement Account for Sales Ta., Payable i .. . 
To accrue Monthly Transfer to Te>..-pool Reimbursement Account for Sales Ta.-.;: Payable i. .. 

To accrue Monthly Admin transfer - October 2020 
Monthly Admin Trans fer October 2020 
Amount due from MEDC for Creedon 
Transfer to General Fund for Amount due from Iv!EDC for Creedon 
Light up the Park - October 
To accrue Monthly Admin transfer - November 2020 
Monthly Admin Transfer November 2020 
Amount due from MEDC for McCoys - Goat Cutouts - Downtown Businesses - Per Ri. .. 
Amount due from MEDC for Discount Mugs -Purchase of Goat Cups 
Transfer to General Fund for Amount due from Iv!EDC - Discount Mugs and McCoys 
Llght up the Park - November 
Monthly Admin Transfer December 2020 
To accrue Monthly Admin transfer - December 2020 
Rebecca Huss Reimbursements - Fem.land/ Social Media E>..7enses 
To accrue Monthly Admin transfer - January 2021 
Monthly Admin Transfer January 2021 
Transfer to General Fund to move back revenues for Parade & Light up the Park 
Transfer to General Fund for E>..-penses Paid - Fernland Video/ Social Media Services 
To accrue Monthly Adm.in transfer - February 2021 
MEDC Contribution for Goat Naming Contest 
Iv!EDC Contribution for Light up the Park 
MEDC Contribution for Christmas Parade 
Transfer to General Fund for Goat Naming Contest Contribution 
Transfer to General Fund for Light Up The Park Contribution 
Transfer to General Fund for Christmas Parade Contnbution 
Monthly Admin Transfer Febuary 2021 

Debit Credit Balance 

1,000.00 -20,297.61 
5,646.50 -14,651.11 

86.15 -14,737.26 
25.00 -14,76226 

14,632.65 -129.61 
1,000.00 -1,129.61 

37,778.33 23,325.29 -1,129.61 

-79,500.00 
9,583.33 -89,083.33 
9,583.33 -98,666.66 
9,583.34 -108,250.00 
9,583.33 -117,833.33 
9,583.33 -127,416.66 

0.00 47,916.66 -127,416.66 

-125.00 
3,958.33 -4,083.33 

3,958.33 -125.00 
285.00 -410.00 

285.00 -125.00 
100.00 -225.00 

3,958.33 -4,183.33 
3,958.33 -225.00 

54.49 -279.49 
495.00 -774.49 

549.49 -225.00 
125.00 -350.00 

3,958.34 3,608.34 
3,958.34 -350.00 
1,250.00 -1,600.00 
3,958.33 -5,558.33 

3,958.33 -1,600.00 
350.00 -1,250.00 

1,250.00 0.00 
3,958.33 -3,958.33 

514.94 -4,473.27 
2,000.00 -6,473.27 
1,258.09 -7,731.36 

514.94 -7,216.42 
2,000.00 -5,216.42 
1,258.09 -3,958.33 
3,958.33 0.00 

25,999.18 25,874.18 0.00 

-1,605,965.19 
-1,605,965.19 

Page5 

36

Item 3.



03/10/21 

Date Num 

55000 · Taxes & Franchise Fees 
55400 · Sales Tax 
GeneralJour... 10/08/2020 AL 
Genera!Jour ... 11/12/2020 AL 
GeneralJour... 12/11/2020 AL 
GeneralJour ... 01/08/2021 AL 
GeneralJour ... 02/10/2021 AL 

Total 55400 · Sales Tax 

Total 55000 · Ta.,;:es & Franchise Fees 

55300 · Other Revenues 
55391 · Interest Income 
General Jour... 10/31/2020 Int 
GeoeralJour... 10/31/2020 Int 
General Jour... 11/30/2020 Int 
GeneralJour ... 11/30/2020 Int 
GenemlJour... 12/31/2020 Int 
GeneralJour... 12/31/2020 Int 
GeneralJour... 01/01/2021 AL 
GeneralJour ... 01/31/2021 Int 
GeneralJour ... 01/31/2021 Int 
GeneralJour ... 02/01/2021 AL 
General Jour... 02/28/2021 Int 
GeneralJour... 02/28/2021 Int 

Total 55391 · Interest Income 

Total 55300 · Other Revenues 

56000 · Pub Infrastructure - Category [ 
56000.6 · Downtown Dev [mprovements 
Bill 01/14/2021 8652 
Bill 02/09/2021 8678 

Total 56000.6 · Downtown Dev Improvements 

Total 56000 · Pub Infrastructure - Category I 

56001 · Business Dev & Ret -Category II 
56001.8 · Sales Tax Reimbursement 
General Jour... 10/12/2020 AL 
Gene:raljour ... 11/09/2020 AL 
Gene:raljour... 12/10/2020 AL 
Generaljour ... 01/08/2021 AL 
Generaljour ... 02/05/2021 AL 

Total 56001.8 · Sales Ta.'\: Reimbursement 

Total 56001 · Business Dev & Ret-Category II 

Name 

Gunda Corporation 
Gunda Corporation 

The Kroger Co. 
The Kroger Co. 
The Kroger Co. 
The Kroger Co. 
The Kroger Co. 

City of Montgomery- :MEDC 

General Ledger 

As of February 28, 2021 

Memo 

To accrue sales ta.,;: revenue rec'd 10/20 - 25% of sales ta.'\: in GOF 
To accrue sales tax revenue rec'd 11/20 - 25% of sales ta.,;: in GOF 
To accrue sales tax revenue rec'd 12/20 - 25% of sales tax in GOF 
To accrue sales ta.,;: revenue rec'd 01/21 - 25% of sales ta.'i: in GOF 
To accrue sales ta.'i: revenue rec'd 02/21 - 25% of sales ta.'\: in GOF 

Interest 
Interest on Texpool 
Interest 
Interest on Te:-.-pool 
Interest 
Interest on Tel\.-pool 
fnteresr Earned on Loan 
Interest 
Interest on Tel\.-pool 
Interest Earned on Loan 
Interest 
Interest on Texpool 

Downtown Design & Streetscape Improvements Plan - Invoice 8652 
Downtown Design & Streetscape Improvements Plan - Invoice 8678 

To accrue Monthly Transfer to Te...-pool Reimbursement Account for Sales Ta." Payable i ... 
To accrue Monthly Transfer to Te:-..-pool Reimbursement Account for Sales Ta.,;: Payable i. .. 
To accrue Monthly Transfer to Te."\.-pool Reimbursement Account for Sales Ta.x Payable i. .. 
To accrue Monthly Transfer to Tel\.-pool Reimbursement Account for Sales Ta." Payable i. .. 
To accrue Monthly Transfer to Te;,,.-pool Reimbursement Account for Sales Ta.x Payable i ... 

Debit Credit Balance 

0.00 
0.00 

56,979.38 -56,979.38 
104,139.36 -161,118.74 

57,443.45 -218,562.19 
61,541.64 -280,103.83 

112,519.75 -392,623.58 

0.00 392,623.58 -392,623.58 

0.00 392,623.58 -392,623.58 

0.00 
0.00 

9.51 -9.51 
158.21 -167.72 

9.55 -lTI.27 
147.43 -324.70 

8.13 -33283 
99.44 -432.27 

938.14 -1,370.41 
7.82 -1,378.23 

48.74 -1,426.97 
860.50 -2,287.47 

4.21 -2,291.68 
23.59 -2,315.27 

0.00 2,315.27 -2,315.27 

0.00 2,315.27 -2,315.27 

0.00 
0.00 

11,627.74 11,627.74 
5,64{i.50 17,274.24 

17,274.24 0.00 17,274.24 

17,274.24 0.00 17,274.24 

0.00 
0.00 

9,583.33 9,583.33 
9,583.33 19,166.66 
9,583.34 28,750.00 
9,583.33 38,333.33 
9,583.33 47,916.66 

47,916.66 0.00 47,916.66 

47,916.66 0.00 47,916.66 

Page 6 

37

Item 3.



03/10/21 

Type Date 

56002 · Quality of Life - Category III 
560023 · Events 

56100.5 · Light up Montgomery 
Genern.lJour... 02/10/2021 AL 

Total 56100.5 · Light up Montgomery 

56100.8 · Chrisnnas Parade 
GenernlJour ... 02/10/2021 AL 

Total 56100.8 · Christmas Parade 

56002.3 · Events - Other 
GeneralJour ... 02/10/2021 AL 

Total 56002.3 · Events - Other 

Total 56002.3 · Events 

Num 

56002.4 · Downtown Enhancement Projects 
Bill 12/14/2020 Inv 11353487 
Bill 12/21/2020 Inv 11356069 

Total 56002.4 · Downtown Enhancement Projects 

Total 56002 · Quality of Life - Caregm:y III 

56003 · Marketing & Tourism-Category IV 
56003.F · Social Media Advertising 
Bill 10/21/2020 Reimb of E:-.'P 
Bill 11/17/2020 ReimbofExp 

Total 56003.F · Social Media Advertising 

Total 56003 · Nlarkecing & Tourism-Category IV 

56004 · Administration - Category V 
56004.1 · Admin Transfers to Gen Fund 
GeneralJour... 10/12/2020 AL 
GeneralJour ... 11/09/2020 AL 
GeneralJour... 12/10/2020 AL 
GeneralJour ... 01/08/2021 AL 
Genera!Jour... 02/10/2021 AL 

Total 56004.1 · Admin Transfers to Gen Fund 

Name 

McCoy's Building Supply 
McCoy's Building Supply 

Rebecca Huss 
Rebecca Huss 

City of Montgomery- MEDC 

General Ledger 

As of February 28, 2021 

Memo Debit Credit Balance 

0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

MEDC Contribution for Light up the Park 2,000.00 2,000.00 

2,000.00 0.00 2,000.00 

0.00 
MEDC Contribution for Christmas Parade 1,258.09 1,258.09 

1,258.09 0.00 1,258.09 

0.00 
MEDC Contribution for Goat Naming Contest 514.94 514.94 

514.94 0.00 514.94 

3,773.03 0.00 3,773.03 

0.00 
Goat Cutouts - Invoice 11353487 34.02 34.02 
Goat Cutouts - Invoice 11356069 100.98 135.00 

135.00 0.00 135.00 

3,908.03 0.00 3,908.03 

0.00 
0.00 

Reimbursement ofE:.."Pense - Website Ma:rkering 25.00 25.00 
Reimbursement of E:.."Pense - Website Marketing 25.00 50.00 

50.00 0.00 50.00 

50.00 0.00 50.00 

0.00 
0.00 

To accrue Monthly Admin transfer - October 2020 3,958.33 3,958.33 
To accrue Monthly Admin transfer - November 2020 3,958.33 7,916.66 
To accrue Monthly Admin transfer - December 2020 3,958.34 11,875.00 
To accrue Monthly Admin transfer - January 2021 3,958.33 15,833.33 
To accrue Monthly Admin transfer - February 2021 3,958.33 19,791.66 

19,791.66 0.00 19,791.66 

38

Item 3.



03/10/21 

Type Date Num 

56004.6 · Consulting (Professional sem) 
GeneralJour... 10/21/2020 AL 
Bill 10/31/2020 Social Media Service 
GencralJour ... 11/16/2020 AL 
Bill 11/30/2020 Social Media Service 
Generaljour... 12/31/2020 AL 
Gcnera!Jour... 12/31/2020 AL 
Bill 01/26/2021 ReimbofE:-..-p 
Bill 01/31/2021 Social Media Service 
Bill 02/02/2021 Reimb ofE:-.. -p 
Bill 02/12/2021 Reimb offa.-p 
Bill 02/24/2021 Reimb ofE:-..-p 
Bill 02/28/2021 Social Media Service 

Total 56004.6 · Consulting (Professional sen'l) 

56004.7 · Travel & Training Expenses 
Bill 10/31/2020 12206 
Bill 11/02/2020 12248 
Bill 11/30/2020 Inv 12216 

Total 56004.7 · Travel & Training Expenses 

Total 56004 · Administration - Category V 

56006 · Miscellaneous Expenses 
GeneralJour... 12/31/2020 AL 
Gene:ra.!Jour ... 01/01/2021 A.LR 

Total 56006 · Miscellaneous foq,enses 

TOTAL 

Name 

Rebecca Huss 

Rebecca Huss 

Rebecca Huss 
Rebecca Huss 
Rebecca Huss 
Rebecca Huss 
Rebecca Huss 
Rebecca Huss 

TEDC 
TEDC 
TEDC 

First Financial Bank 
First Financial Bank 

City of Montgomery - MEDC 

General Ledger 

As of February 28, 2021 

Memo 

Amount due from MEDC for Creedon 
Reimbursement of E. ..... -pense - Social Media Services 
Amount due from MEDC for McCovs - Goat Cutouts - Downtown Businesses - Per Ri ... 
Reimbursement of fa.-pense - Social Media Services 
Rebecca Huss Reimbursements - Social Media E:..-penses December 2020 
Rebecca Huss Reimbursements- Femland Facebook YouTube Video 
Reimbursement offa .. -pense - Website Marketing 
Reimbursement of E. ..... -pense - Social Media Services 
Reimbursement of E:..-pense - Website Marketing 
Reimbursement ofE:..-pense - Website Marketing 
Reimbursement ofE:..-pense - Website Marketing 
Reimbursement of E:..-pense - Social Media Services 

Sales Ta.x Virtual ED Course for Richard Tramm 
Webinar - Financing Local Food Systems for Richard T rnmm 
2021 Membership fees Inv #12216 

Wire Fee for Old Republic Title Co Transfer - To be refunded next month 
Wire Fee for Old Republic Title Co Transfer - To be refunded next month 

Debit 

285.00 
1,000.00 

54.49 
1,000.00 
1,000.00 

250.00 
25.00 

1,000.00 
18.46 
86.15 
25.00 

1,000.00 

5,744.10 

120.00 
79.00 

525.00 

724.00 

26,259.76 

25.00 

25.00 

Credit 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

25.00 

25.00 

2,623,078.09 2,623,078.09 

Balance 

0.00 
285.00 

1,285.00 
1,339.49 
2,339.49 
3,339.49 
3,589.49 
3,614.49 
4,614.49 
4,63295 
4,719.10 
4,744.10 
5,744.10 

5,744.10 

0.00 
120.00 
199.00 
724.00 

724.00 

26,259.76 

0.00 
25.00 
0.00 

0.00 

0.00 
==== 

Page 8 

39

Item 3.



ASSETS 
Current Assets 

City of Montgomery - MEDC 
Balance Sheet 

Checking/Savings 
51100 · MEDC Checking 
51300 · Time Depositsl-MEDC 

51301 · Texpool Reimbursement Acct 

Total Checking/Savings 

Other Current Assets 
51150 · Accounts Receivable Audit 
51170 • Due from General Fund - Loan 
51171 · Due From Gen Fund 
51174 · Due from Home Grant Funds 

Total Other Current Assets 

Total Current Assets 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES & EQUITY 
Liabilities 

Current Liabilities 
Accounts Payable 

52000 · Accounts Payable 
52001 · Accounts Payable Audit 

Total Accounts Payable 

Total Current Liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

Equity 
53900 • Unrestricted Net Assets 
Net Income 

Total Equity 

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 

Jan 31, 21 

255,068.36 
721,505.14 

117,978.24 

1,094,551.74 

161,118.74 
688,398.61 

397.99 
5,177.00 

855,092.34 

1,949,644.08 

1,949,644.08 

15,632.65 
117,833.33 

133,465.98 

133,465.98 

133,465.98 

1,605,965.19 
210,212.91 

1,816,178.10 

1,949,644.08 

40

Item 3.



ASSETS 
Current Assets 

City of Montgomery - MEDC 
Balance Sheet 

Checking/Savings 
51100 · MEDC Checking 
51300 · Time Depositsl-MEDC 

51301 · Texpool Reimbursement Acct 

Total Checking/Savings 

Other Current Assets 
51150 · Accounts Receivable Audit 
51170 · Due from General Fund - Loan 
51174 · Due from Home Grant Funds 

Total Other Current Assets 

Total Current Assets 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES & EQUITY 
Liabilities 

Current Liabilities 
Accounts Payable 

52000 · Accounts Payable 
52001 · Accounts Payable Audit 

Total Accounts Payable 

Total Current Liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

Equity 
53900 · Unrestricted Net Assets 
Net Income 

Total Equity 

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 

Feb 28, 21 

402,027.62 
711,945.40 

127,565.78 

1,241,538.80 

161,118.74 
626,207.08 

5,177.00 

792,502.82 

2,034,041.62 

2,034,041.62 

1,129.61 
127,416.66 

128,546.27 

128,546.27 

128,546.27 

1,605,965.19 
299,530.16 

1,905,495.35 

2,034,041.62 

41

Item 3.



Meeting Date: February 16, 2021 

Prepared Bv: Richard Tramm 

Sub,ject 

Montgomery Economic Development Co1:poration 
AGENDA REPORT 

Budgeted Amount: $20,000 for all EconDev 
Grants for 2020-2021 Fiscal Year 
Exhibits: Texas Historic Commission 
Cover Sheet and Historic Marker 
Application; Narrative of the Chilton 
House 

Discuss and consider Economic Development Grant Application from Ryan Londeen for a 
Historical Marker for the Chilton House, 

Discussion 
Economic Development Grants fall within the authority of the MEDC to grant where the 
Board of Directors feels they are appropriate. MEDC funds used in this manner are intended to 
promote new business development or enhance development of existing business. I have 
reviewed the request for several considerations prior to this coming to the Board of Directors: 

1. Is this type of expenditure legal/appropriate for consideration? The Chilton House is a 
location on the City's Distrx Tour of historic locations in the City, so it is already 
recognized by the City and MEDC for its historic and tourism value to Montgomery, 
which allows the MEDC to consider this item for an Economic Development Grant. 

2. What is the perceived economic benefit? Economic benefit related to tourism and 
quality of life considerations, which are allowable considerations, are less direct but 
still potentially important considerations. These are drivers that bring people into the 
community and those same people also engage in other activities that drive the 
economy. 

3. Is this location for the grant request in the City? Yes, this location noted in the is in the 
City. 

4. Does the proposed work to be done under the grant confonn to City requirements? The 
proposed signage included was reviewed by the City's Director of Planning and 
Development, who concluded this work will not require City Pennits. 

In the past, the MEDC has typically limited Economic Development Grants to 33 .3 % of the 
total cost up to a $5,000 maximum. Mr. Londeen has asked the MEDC Board of Directors to 
consider a full or partial grant for the $1,175 for the sign and post for this historic marker. 

The appropriate action for this is to conduct a first reading at this meeting. If the MEDC Board 
of Directors might wish to consider this item, then it will need to call a Public Hearing for its 
next meeting date and then place the item on the Regular Meeting agenda for f01mal 
consideration. 

42

Item 4.



Recommendation 

Montgomery Economic Development Corporation 
AGENDA REPORT 

Review the item and call a Public Hearing for the next Regular Meeting date, if the MEDC 
Board of Directors desires to consider the item. 

Ci Administrator Richard Tramm Date: Februar 11, 2021 

43

Item 4.



CITY OF City of Montgomery, TX 
Economic Development Corporation 
Grant Application 

MOI\ITGOMERY 
TEXAS ;,.. m 1837 

Company Name: 

Chilton-Dean Home 
Company Contact: Title: 

Ryan Londeen Owner 
Best Phone: Alt. Phone: 

713-899-9467 832-712-8841 
Email Address: 

rlondeen@gmail.com 
Physical Address: City, State, Zip: 

709 College St Montgomery, TX 77356 
Malling Address (If different): City, State, Zip: 

Applicant's years of experience In this bus(ness: How long has his business been located In 
Montgomery? 

Do you own or lease this facility? If leased, please provide owner Information and a copy of lease agreement. 

owner Name: Owner Phone: 

Ii] OWN □ LEASE Ryan Londeen 713-899-9467 

Provide a detailed description of the proposed project as "Exhibit A" attached 

What is the estimated total cost of the project? $1,175.00 (Include supporting Information, Je estimates/quotes as "Exhibit B" attached) 

How much funding are you requesting from the MEDC for this project? $1,175.00 (Typical grants are awarded at 1/3 the total project cost or up to $5,000) 

".'_,,. _',,,.,,.,,_, __ ;-1,':,-;,-,,:·,,,·: :.,,·,·_._\,\,. ' .. •·' -r~· :- :. }/'- ',:-: ,-_ /\re yoy req4~stlng an e for·it~~ltlo_oal fi.Jnd!ng on.th!~ B[OJ~c,t?,- .,: ·. , 
.JPle,fse prov"t~e aadJt\on . . _ • ng .evJa_epc~ for- tpl$ ~equ1eiJ"a~·~1:~91~lt_ G'Q :-: · 

• ' ' - r •. ~.' ·"'·· ·' • ~ , ' , ,_ ' -

When wlll this project begin? What Is the estimated completion date? 

May 15, 2021 November 15, 2022 

Attach all drawings of planned Improvements as "Exhibit D" 

Include a description of expected commerclal revltallzatlon Impact & sales tax revenue Impact as '1Exhlbit E:" 

If this project wlll employ Montgomery vendors, please supply details as "Exhibit F" 

Ryan Londeen - -~~t!!...'t::~~--h<»> 
Applicant's Signature: ,...,...,,..,..,_.._11<11,1t,~'•"'"'•'• 

ll>Wl•OH.OJ,U!Wl:!:W"" 

Title: Owner 

Date: February 11, 2021 

OFFICE USE: 
Date Application Received: Date Presented to Board: □ APPROVED □ DECLINED 
DJ.· IZ.•W'l. t 

o).•1~•202.{ 

Performance Agreement Project Completion Date: Funding Date: Check Number: 
Received: 

44

Item 4.



' 
TEXAS HISTORICAL COMMISSION 

SUBJECT MARKERS: 
2021 Official Texas Historical Marker 

COVERSHEET 
Complete the form and send to markers@thc.texas.~ov 

Valid March 1- 2 ,m. CDT, Ma 15, 2021 onl 

This form constitutes a request for the Texas Historical Commission (THC) to consider approval of 
an Official Texas Historical Marker for the topic noted in this application. The THC will review the 
request and make its determination based on rules and procedures of the program. Filing of the 
application for sponsorship is for the purpose of providing basic information to be used in the 
evaluation process. The final determination of eligibility and approval for a state marker will be 
made by the THC. This form is to be used for subject marker requests only. Please see separate 
forms for either Historic Texas Cemeteries or Recorded Texas Historic Landmarks (buildings and 
structures). 

APPROVAL BY COUNTY HISTORICAL COMMISSION (required) 

As chair or duly appointed marker chair, I certify the following: 
D The topic qualifies for an Official Texas Historical Marker according to marker policies on the 
THC website. Representatives of the CHC have talked with the potential marker sponsor and 
discussed the marker program policies on the THC website. The application has been filled out 
correctly. The narrative history and documentation have been reviewed for accuracy. 
CHC comments or concerns about this application (required): 

Name ofCHC contact (chair or marker chair): 

Mailing address: City, Zip: 

Daytime phone: Email address: 

CHECKLIST APPROVAL (required) 
D The topic meets age requirements 

• Most topics must date back at least 50 years 

• Historic events may be marked after 30 years 

• Individuals of historic significance may be marked or mentioned in marker text after 

they have been deceased 10 years 
D The topic is eligible for a subject marker according to marker policies 
D Permission of cunent property owner for marker placement and proof of ownership 
( deed or tax appraisal) has been obtained (Attachment A; unless market· will be placed on 

TxDOT right-of-way) 
D Invoice for application fee is complete, printed and ready to be mailed to THC 

along with $100 check (Attachment B) 
Note: Resubmissions will no longer have their application fees waived. 

Sponsor Name: Date: 

Page 1 of 6 

45

Item 4.



TEXAS HISTORICAL COMMISSION 

SUBJECT MARKERS: 
2021 Official Texas Historical Marker 
SPONSORSHIP APPLICATION 

...... ·-···· ...... ··········••-'••••''••""· 

PROPOSED MARKER INFORMATION 
····--···········-·-· ··-···- -------

.r>rop_()Sl'cl111arker. top_ic ~equired): <::llilto11:l)ean .Hous" .. 
County: Montgome1y 

·- -···--·-····-"·-····· .. ··········-···············-····· 

.!o":'11 .. (11=arest. t<l'llllin.sa111e co.1111ty .?n. ':'urret1t s tate .. llig;~"'"t 1I1'1\J): .. l\1()11tg()fll~1Y ..... 
§tr.e"t a::Icl~e,ss of marker site or direc~()ns fr?rr1 to\V11noted aboye: 709 CoUege §tr<:,et ............ . 
Marker Coordinates, if you !mow the location coordinates of the proposed marker site, enter them 
in one of the formats below: 

··-· .. ···-··-·······- .... . •··· ... ----------- ···················- . -----,< - .•....•.... -- ···- .• ·--------·· 

UTM Zone Easting Northing Lat: 30.3909821Long: -95.6988426(deg, min, 
sec or decimal degrees) 

.. --·-··· ................ ···············-·-··-·----·--- -······--·········· .................. . 
Precise verbal description of placement of marker (e.g. northwest corner of 3rd and Elm, or FM 
1411, 2.6 miles east of Post Oak Creek): On College Street, in front of the house, East of the 
gate, between the fence and the sidewalk, inside the flowerbed . 

.. win the m;;:1~e;: b~ pt~{~c1;1:ihe ~~1:,.;afsI1:~ ;:;fih~ ·;;:;p;~ bei;:;gr,;;;:ic~d? igJ Y~~ □ No ... 

If the answer is no, provide the distance and directions to the actual location from the marker (i.e. 
100 yards east). 

SPONSOR CONTACT INFORMATION: 
··••a,••··----····•··----•·-··-···- ···································--·········--····· .. ·•C. ·······-····-·--···-····· 

Marker sponsor (may be individual or organization): Montgomery Economic Development 

C::()rpg~ati()11 ................ . 
Contact person (if applicable): Richard Tramm 

- ----·•·-·····--····-·· ····- ...... ---------·····- -------··-·---·-- ........ ,. 
Mailing address: 101 Old Plantersville Rd City, zip: Montgomery, 77356 

---··· ···----- ·····-·· - -·-····-· ·---•'-••······--·---····- ......•..... -· ... . - ............................. ··-···· .......... ······-··· ------------ . - . 

Phone: 936-597-6434 Email address (required): 

SHIPPING ADDRESS: 
wili· th~··r,;~rke;: be ~~ed.;:;;:; 1:igh1:~of ~;;~y .. milil1::iliiedby. 1:he f ;;;;~ Dep~r;;;:;e;:;1:· ;:;i f,:~;:;;p;:;;:;~ti;:;n 

(TxDOT)? D Yes IX! No 
If yes, then no shipping address or proof of ownership of property is needed. 

C)rganization (111aybe !)]at1kif individual): .... 
Contact Name: Ryan Londeen 
. s1:;:e~t ~ddre;;,709 College St ......... ··· 1 city; zipiM;;;:;tg;;me~y; 77356 

1 .. ," .......... ··················"··"·········· .. ··················---···· 

Daytlm~ph;:;ne .<re9llire<1): 713-899~9_4~? ................ J .. J:\111(tll (re9uired): rl()ndeenqi,l1s111llil.c()fll .. . 

'TYPE ~I)~l~~ ():fl SlJBJ.EC:'.f 111i\llKER 
T~e S)?CJllSCJr(C::H.<:: pr<!fers t~" f oµo\Vingsiz" m_a~ker: ...... ..... .... ...... .. .................... ....... . ............................................... . 
D 27" x 42" Subject marker D with post ($1875) D without post" ($1675) 

.C8:] 18" X 28" Subject marker fg1 withp;:;;; ($ff75) Dwith;:;~1:p;:;;t*($i175) 

*F;:;r ; s~bje~i ;:;:,;;:i~er ;;ith;;~i: post, indicate □ ,;,;:;;;c1 0 r,;;;;;riry □ meta! ... 
to what surface material it will be mounted: D other (specify) 

Page 2 of6 

46

Item 4.



TEXAS HISTORICAL COMMISSION 

SUBJECT MARKERS 

Purpose 
Subject markers are educational in nature and reveal aspects of local hist01y important to a 
community or region. These markers honor topics such as schools, communities, businesses, events 
and individuals. Subject markers are placed at sites that have historical associations with the topics, 
but no legal restriction is placed on the use of the property or site, although the THC must be 
notified if the marker is ever to be relocated. 

Criteria 
1. Age: Most topics marked with subject markers must date back at least SO years, although 

historic events may be marked afte1· 30 years, and individuals of historic importance may be 
marked, or may be mentioned in a historical marker text, after they have been deceased 10 years. 
The THC may waive age requirements for topics of ove1whelming state or national importance, 
although exceptions are rarely granted and the burden of proof for all claims and documentation 
is the responsibility of the narrative author. 

2. 
3. Historical significance: A topic is considered to have historical significance if it had influence, 

effect or impact on the course of histo1y or cultural development; age alone does not determine 
significance. 

APPLICATION PROCEDURES 
Any individual, group or county historical commission (CHC) may apply to the THC to request an 
Official Texas Historical Marker for what it deems a worthy topic. Only complete marker 
applications that contain all the required elements can be accepted or processed by the THC. For 
subject markers, the required elements are sponsorship application form, 5-10 page narrative history 
and documentation. 

• Completed applications must be duly reviewed, verified and approved by the CHC in the 
county in which the marker will be placed. 

• The sponsorship application form, 5-10 page narrative history and documentation must be 
in the form of Microsoft Word or Word-compatible documents and submitted by email 
attachments to the THC from the CHC no later than 2 p.m. CDT, May 15, 2021. Paper 
copies of applications, whether mailed or delivered in person, cannot be accepted in lieu of 
the electronic version. THC email accepts mail no larger than 10 MB. You may split the 
application and materials into separate emails. Please note this in the email subject line. (Ex. 
Post Oak Co., Smith House, Email 1 of 3, etc.) 

• Proposed marker topic must be given on the application. The THC will determine the 
official title should the application be approved. 

• For markers without posts, the CHC must receive prior approval from the THC for the 
planned placement. Such prior approval is based on the following: 

o Submittal of a detailed plan for where the marker will be mounted, including the 
surface to which it will be placed (masomy, metal, wood); and 

o A statement of why a marker with a post is not feasible or preferred. 
• Required font style and type size are a Times variant and 12-point. 

Page 3 of 6 

47

Item 4.



TEXAS HISTORICAL COMMISSION 

• Narrative histories must be 5-10 pages typed in a double-spaced (or 1.5-spaced) format and 
include separate sections on context, overview and significance. Approved marker topics 
have their inscriptions written based on the narrative submitted. The majority of the 
narrative must be solely about the marker topic. 

■ The narrative histo1y must include documentation in the form of reference notes, which can 
be either footnotes, endnotes or parenthetical citations. Documentation associated with 
applications should be broad-based and demonstrate a su1vey of available resources, both 
primary and secondary. 

■ The CHC or Marker Chair will fo1ward the application and 5-10 page nanative 
history to markers@thc.texas.gov. An email confirming receipt of your application will be 
sent to both the CHC and the Sponsor listed on the application. Be sure to checl~ your junk 
mail box. If you do not receive confirmation from the THC Marker Team within five 
business days of sending your application, please contact our office. 

■ Once the CHC sends in the application, the sponsor mails the Marker Application Fee 
Invoice (Attachment B) and a $100 payment to the THC mailing address noted on the 
Sponsor Fee Invoice by 2 p.m. CDT, May 17, 2021. Payment of the application fee does not 
guarantee approval of the historical marker and this fee is non-refundable. 

• A copy or scan of proof of current ownership is required to verify the property owner 
information listed on the application (Attachment A), due by 2 p.m. CDT, May 15, 2021, 
unless the marker will be placed on a TxDOT right-of-way. You may access this 
information through county appraisal or tax records. 

• Marker application and supplemental matedals must be submitted between March 
1" and 2 p.m. CDT May 15'". Applications will not be considered for approval if 
received before or after the open madce1· application period of March 1- 2 p.m. CDT, 
May 15, 2021. 

Once marker applications have passed preliminary review and the application fee and signed proof 
of property ownership have been received by THC, the application will be scored to determine 
whether the marker will be submitted to the Commissioners of the THC for final approval. 

SCORING CRITERIA 
(1) 5 pts. max. Age; 
(2) 10 pts. max. Historical Significance/ Architectural Significance; 
(3) 10 pts. max. State of Repair/Integrity; 
(4) 10 pts. max. Diversity of topic for addressing gaps in historical marker program; 
(5) 15 pts. max. Value of topic as an undertold or untold aspect of Texas history; 
(6) 10 pts. max. Endangerment level of property, site or topic; 
(7) 10 pts. max. Available documentation and resources; 
(8) 10 pts. max. Diversity among this group of candidates; 
(9) 5 pts. max. Relevance to other commission programs; and 
(10) 15 pts. max. Relevance to the commission's current thematic priorities. 

SPONSORSHIP PAYMENT INFORMATION 
Prospective sponsors please note the following: 

■ Topics approved as Official Texas Historical Markers will require payment of the full marker 
amount within 45 days of the official approval notice. Payment must be received in full, 
accompanied by the THC payment form, by 5 p.m. CDT, September 16, 2021. 

Page4of6 

48

Item 4.



TEXAS HISTORICAL COMMISSION 

■ Due to possible increases in shipping and material costs, marker prices are subject to change. 
Marker sponsors are responsible for paying the full cost of the historical marker and will be 
notified via invoice with a 45-day payment deadline should marker prices increase. Sponsors 
may choose to withdraw from the marker process at any time before a marker is ordered, 
and will be refunded payment, not including the application fee. 

■ The THC is unable to process partial payments or to delay payment due to processing 
procedures of the sponsor. Applications not paid in the time frame required may, at the sole 
discretion of the THC, be cancelled or postponed. 

■ Payment does not constitute ownership of a marker; Official Texas Historical Markers are 
the property of the State of Texas. 

■ If at any time during the marker process sponsorship is withdrawn, a refund can be 
processed, but the THC will retain the application fee of $100. 

■ The Official Texas Historical Marker Program provides no means of recognizing sponsors 
through marker text, incising or supplemental plaques. 

SHIPPING INSTRUCTIONS 
If the proposed marker site is on TxDOT right-of-way, the marker will be shipped directly to the 
district highway engineer for placement, with consultation from the CHC. If the marker will go on 
property other than TxDOT right-of-way, provide information in the space below. In order to 
facilitate marker delivery, residence addresses, post office box numbers and rural route numbers are 
not permitted. To avoid additional shipping charges or delays, use a business street address (open 8 
a.m.-5 p.m., Monday through Friday). THC is not responsible for additional shipping charges 
if multiple delive1y attempts are made. 

RECORDS RETENTION BY CHC: 
The CBC must retain hard copies of the application, as well as an electronic version, at least for the 
duration of the marker process. The THC is not responsible for lost applications, incomplete 
applications or applications not properly filed according to the program requirements. For additional 
information about any aspect of the Official Texas Historical Marker Program, visit the Markers 
page on the THC website (http://www.thc.texas.gov/markers). 

Page 5 of 6 

49

Item 4.



TEXAS HISTORICAL COMMISSION 

ATTACHMENT A 

SUBJECT MARKERS:I 

PERMISSION OF PROPERTY OWNER FOR MARKER PLACEMENT 

Please fill out this attachment, print, and sign. Return completed form along with proof of 

ownership (in form of deed or tax appraisal records) to our offices via email 

(markers@thc.texas.gov), fax, 01· mail by 2 p.m. CDT, May 15, 2021. Must be received in our 

offices by deadline, 

Proposed marker topic: Chilton-Dean House County: Montgome1y 

Will the marker be placed on right-of-way maintained by the Texas Department of Transportation 
(fxDOT)? 

0Yes ~No 

If the answer is yes, the THC will secure the necessary permission from TxDOT, and no other 
information is required. If the answer is no, please provide the following information for the person 
or group who owns the property. 

Property owner: Ryan Londeen 

Address: 709 College St City, State, Zip: Montgome1y, TX, 77356 

Phone: 713-899-9467 Email address: rlondeen@gmail.com 

I, Ryan Londeen, certify that I am the legal owner or authorized representative of the 
property owner noted herein, and further certify that I have read the information regarding 
Official Texas Historical Markers and that I voluntarily seek the marker for the property 
described herein, and proof of ownership is attached to this form. I further certify that I will 
comply with the policies and procedures of the Official Texas Historical Marker Program. 

Signature: _______________________ _ 

NOTE: The property owner will not receive copies of correspondence from the THC. All 
procedural correspondence (notice of receipt, requests for additional foformation, inscription, 
shipping notice, etc.) will be sent by email to the CHC representative, who is encouraged to share 
the information with all interested parties as necessary. 

Texas Historical Commission 
History Programs Division 
P.O. Box 12276, Austin, TX 78711-2276 
Phone 512/463-5853 
markers@thc.texas.gov 

TEXAS HISTORICAL COMMISSION 
n,1/ pl,,us 1dll11,'( rr,tf u,,1•/r1 

Page 6 of 6 

50

Item 4.



TEXAS HISTORICAL COMMISSION 

ATTACHMENT B 
OFFICIAL TEXAS HISTORICAL MARKER 

Sponsorship Fee Invoice 

Please fill out this attachment, p1'int, and sign. Return to our offices via mail by 2 p.m. CDT, 

May 17, 2021, along with a $100 check or payment information noted below. Do not send this 

form via email. Must be received in our offices by deadline. 

Proposed 

Montgomery 

Note: 

Marker Topic: Chilton-Dean House 

• We will not accept multiple payments for one marker, only one form of payment please. 

County: 

• If overnighting mail, please send by UPS or FedEx to: 1511 Colorado St. Austin, TX 78701. 
• Note that the $100 application fee will not be waived for resubmissions from previous years. 

Please fill out the information below for billing purposes, even if paying by check: 

Name of sponsor(s): Montgome1y Economic Development Corporation 

Address: 101 Old Plantersville Rd City, State, Zip: Montgomery, TX, 77356 

Phone: 936-597-6434 Email address: rtramm.ci.montgome1y.tx.us 

Payment enclosed (make check payable to Texas Historical Commission) 

OR 

Bill to credit card (only VISA or MC accepted): D Visa D MasterCard 

Card number 

Exp. Date_ Security Code _ 

Name (as it appears on card)_ 

***THC Staff Services will run credit card payments in batches using a state approved payment 

processing program. "THC Virtual Austin" will show as the Merchant Name on your credit card 

statement once the payment has been processed. 

Signature: _______________ __________ _ 

Texas Historical Commission 
History Programs Division 
P.O. Box 12276, Austin, TX 78711-2276 
Phone 512/463-5853 
markers@thc.texas.gov TEXAS HISTORICAL COMMISSION 

rt<1l pl11ns 1dllt1,'( r,·,tf s,,\rlr , 

Page 7 of 6 

51

Item 4.



The Chilton House 

John E. Shelton 
John E. Shelton, a local homebuilder in Montgomery, built the original two-bedroom house sometime 

between 1851 (Shelton Deed} and 1853. He sold the house to its first owner, Rev. Thomas Chilton, in 

January of 1854 (Chilton Deed}. 

Mr. Shelton then built the Magnolia house to the west of the Chilton House on other side of Eugenia Street 

(Biskamp, p. 123), the Bell House to the south of the Chilton house on Caroline Street (Bell Deed), the 

Shelton-Smith house on Caroline Street (Historical Marker Shelton-Smith House, 2021), and the Cathalorri 

on Eva Street (Historical Marker Cathalorri, 2021). These five historic houses are still standing today. 

Rev. Thomas Chilton 
Rev. Thomas Chilton, son of a Baptist minister, was born in Kentucky in 1798. 

At the age of 21, he started practicing law in Bath County Kentucky. In 1827, 

he was elected to the Kentucky State House of Representatives. Later, he was 

elected to the United States House of Representatives, as a Jacksonian, 

representing the state of Kentucky In the 20th and 21'1 Congress. Losing his 

reelection to the 22nd Congress, he later reran as an Anti-Jacksonian for the 

23rd Congress and won. (Biographical Directory of the United States Congress, 

2021} 

52

Item 4.



During his time at Washington, Chilton was a roommate with the legendary David ("Davy") Crockett, 

congressman from Tennessee, and they became good friends {Stephens, 2016, p. 77). They shared similar 

political views and clearly worked together (Hannum, 1964, p. 101). Chilton co-authored Crockett's well

known autobiography, Narrative of the Life of David Crockett of the State of Tennessee, published in 1834. 

The proceeds from the book were split 50/50 (Hannum, 1964, pp. 107-108). David Crockett stated in a 

letter dated 1834, "I am engaged in writing a history of my life ... and Mr. Chilton to correct as I write it", 

and in a letter of the same year he wrote, "The manuscript of the book is in his [Chilton's] handwriting 

though the substance is entirely my own. The aid which I needed to classify the matter but the style was 

not altered." (Stephens, 2016, p. 78) 

r-===---~~~~~~~~~~:il 1 Both men left politics in 1835. Chilton entered the 
"' 

later moved to Waco (Shiver, 2015). 

ministry and practiced law while Crockett left for Texas to 

fight in the Texas Revolutionary War (Encyclopedia 

Britannica, 2021). Chilton decided against going to Texas 

in order to instead take care of his growing family: wife 

Francis, three daughters, and three sons {Brown, 2021) 

(Boren, 1999, p. 18). 

In 1839, Thomas Chilton moved his family to Alabama 

where he focused his full energy into the Baptist ministry. 

He was the pastor of various Baptist including 

congregations in Talladega, Montgomery, Greensboro, 

and Newbern. He also served as president of the Alabama 

Baptist State Convention in 1841 and from 1846 to 

1851 (Hannum, 1964, p. 108). In 1839, R.E.B. Baylor 

who was Chilton's cousin and then living with 

Chilton, converted from agnosticism to Christianity. 

Baylor soon thereafter became ordained as a Baptist 

minister. R.E.B. Baylor later moved to Texas and 

became influential in Texas politics and in the Texas 

Baptist ministry. He would later help establish the 

Baylor University in Independence, Texas which was 

53

Item 4.



In 1851, Chilton moved his family again to Texas in order to pastor the First Baptist Church of Houston, 

Texas (Riley, 1907) stating "I have for years past had the conviction on my mind that duty prompted me 

to Texas as the field designated for my labor" and "now God's providence seems to have opened the way 

before me so as to leave me without excuse should I hesitate to go." (Hannum, 1964, p. 109). In Houston, 

he was greeted with much popularity and church grew in numbers as a result (Riley, 1907). However, he 

only served at that church for two years before accepting the position as the first full time pastor of the 

First Baptist Church of Montgomery (Morrell, 1873, p. 319). 

Chilton is known as one of the earlier pioneers of the Baptist Church in Texas (Daniell L. E., 1892, pp. 380-

381). Z. N. Morrell, who met Chilton in person, stated that Chilton was 

a man of acknowledged ability, much decision of character, and as a pulpit orator ranked among 
the first in the denomination. His personal appearance was commanding, and his manner bold 
and fearless. With a clear head and an earnest delivery, he pressed his conclusions with great 
power ... His sojourn among us in Texas was short, but his name and deeds of love live on, and will, 
in the memory o(many Texas Baptists. (Morrell, 1873, pp. 318-319) 

Unfortunately, the same year that he came to Montgomery, Chilton 

suffered a stroke while preaching and died a few days later in his home 

(Hannum, 1964, p. 111) (Morrell, 1873, p. 319). He left behind his widow, 

Louisa, and his ten sons and three daughters (Daniell L. E., 1892). He is 

buried at the Old Montgomery Cemetery. A tall granite stone remains 

today and reads "Reader, Pause ... You too must die. Prepare to meet thy 

God." 

After the death of Thomas Chilton, his family remained in the two

bedroom home on College Street (Louisa Deed) (Frank Deed). 

54

Item 4.



Frank Bowden Chilton 
Frank Bowden Chilton, Thomas's son, quit school at the age of twelve 

to help support the financially struggling family. He initially took up 

various jobs including hauling lumber from Montgomery to Houston, 

transporting mail on horseback between Navasota and Columbus, and 

clerking for the P J Willis & Brother mercantile business (Daniell L. E., 

1892, p. 381). 

At the age of 16, Frank signed up to fight in the Civil War for the 

Confederate Army and became a member of Company H of the famous 

Hood's Texas Brigade. He served in the battles around Richmond and in 

the Peninsular campaign. Frank returned home after contracting 

Malaria, but he quickly he rejoined the army and joined Major's brigade where he was promoted to 

Second Lieutenant. In 1865 he was promoted to Captain and transferred to the Reserve Corps (Daniell L. 

E., 1889, pp. 39,41). 

) After the war, he moved the Chilton family down to Fort Bend County where they took up farming near 

the Brazos River while he prepared to practice law. In 1880, he erected the first house in the town of Sealy 

in Austin County. Following the death of his wife and child, he left the plantation and moved to Marlin 

where he became active in business, politics, and public affairs. In the late 

1800s, he lived in Austin, Texas, working as the secretary of the Texas State 

Immigration Committee, as the general manager of the Southern interstate 

Immigration Bureau between 1889 and 1892, and as the manager of the Texas 

State Immigration Bureau from 1891 through 1892 (Daniell L. E., 1889, pp. 55-

67). 

Frank, later in his life, was president of the Hood's Texas Brigade Association 

when it erected the Hood's Brigade statue located near the state capitol 

building in Austin, TX. He published the book, Unveiling and Dedication of 

Monument to Hood's Texas Brigade on the Capitol Grounds at Austin, which 

covered the dedication of the Hood's Texas Brigade Monument and included 

speeches about the brigade, short biographies of some of the soldiers, and 

history of the brigade (Chilton, 1911). 

55

Item 4.



Frank died in 1926 and is buried in Willis Cemetery in the City of Willis. 

The Desperados 
On December 28, 1868, while Frank Chilton and his mother, Louisa, owned the house on College Street 

and ran a stagecoach inn out of the house, two horse thieves were killed in the house. While there are no 

official public records of the event, Narcissa Boulware interviewed W. C. Cameron and Buck-longtime 

residents of the City of Montgomery-and provided the following account: 

These desperados had ridden their horses into stores and terrorized the people generally. When 
they stole a fine horse from the Cartwrights and came into town to rob the stores and head out 
on "a scout" for Mexico, a mob was formed at Bear Bend where the Gaffords, Cartwrights and 
others who came in after the men lived. Bob Oliver the youngest, was scarcely 16 years old at the 
time. When the shooting started, he ran to Mrs. Chilton's house. The mob followed, promised not 
to shoot him if he would come out. Someone killed him with a Bowie knife. He ran back into the 
house before he died. Here he died under a bed. The blood stains can still be seen on the floor. 

Additionally, Nathanial Hart Davis, recorded the event in his journal with the subject title "McGrew-Oliver 

Killing of Dec. 28, 1868" stating: 

On the 28th of December in the forenoon four men , Wm McGrew Esq. County Atty. for the last 
two years and his two half-brothers, John and Bob Oliver of this town and "Charles Brown" of 
Cokesbury, S. Carolina alias "Texas Brown" of whom an account is given in Harper's Monthly of 
Dec. 1868 were shot to death here (Montgomery) by some ten to 20 or thereabouts, men of this 
town and vicinity. If the people or society can be said to act in necessary self-defense in the 
destruction of lawless desperados then I am of the option that this was such a case- a few others 
hereabouts may be nearly as bad as they-or some of them-one, May, made a narrow 
escape. McGrew for a young man was a moral disgrace to the legal profession as we as to the 
office he filled. I did not recommend him to the Police Court - the appointing tribunal. After I 
started for Miss. and Tenn. in Jany., I learned that he was in the crowd that took the Negro at 
court and that he and others had disguised themselves in the Post Office that night. On my return 
I found quite a change for the better in Montgomery. It is now rather an orderly quite place. And 
the general expression is that much good was done in the killing of Dec. 28. There may be some, 
for reasons best known to themselves who regret the death of McGrew. One white single female 
to whom he paid marked attention both before and since his marriage, manifests a fondness for 
his memory and a sorrow at his loss and continues to talk long after with a silly sentimentality-so 
says gossip. I heard not talk but believe it true. Miss E.A. 

56

Item 4.



Deemed unworthy of interment in the Methodist churchyard, the men were buried in the new cemetery, 

"New Cemetery", instead. William McGrew's burial site Is the only one that is marked. It is presumed that 

the Olivers are buried in the immediate vicinity (Moore, 2021) (Boulware, Montgomery County News, 

2021). 

57

Item 4.



( ) 

) 

Dr. D. A. Young 
Frank Chilton sold the house in 1872 and later, ~ § 
in 1891, Dr. F. A. Young purchased the house 

(Young Deed). Dr. Young saw his patients in the 

front addition of the house, the parlor. Patients 

would enter through a door located off the 

front porch which has since been sealed off (the 

outline can still be seen on the exterior of the 

house). Dr. Young served the Montgomery 

community until the 1930s (Placeholder3). 

~ E== 
I :::::= ,----, --

The Deans 
David and Minnie Dean purchased the home from Dr. Young in 

1894 (Dean Deed). "Uncle Dean" was in the business of farming and 

raised cattle in the open range (brand DAV). He built the white 

picket fence around the front and side of the house using heart pine 

that was cut and hand-selected from the lumber mill located south 

of Dobbin that he ran with his brother Henry and brother in law 

Owen. While the fence has been replaced a few times over the 

years, the picket design is still the same. David and Minnie were 

members of the First Baptist Church of Montgomery-the same 

church Thomas Chilton pastored-and were strong pillars of that 

church. Minnie taught the children's Sunday School for many years 

(Steger, TBD). 

They are both buried in the "New Cemetery" in the City of 

Montgomery (Steger, TBD). 

58

Item 4.



) 

The Stegers 
Not having any kids of their own, the Deans cared for their nephew, Morris Steger. Morris likely grew up 

in the Chilton House. He would later inherit the house, adding onto it and expanding the garage (initials 

found around the premises). Morris and his wife, Bace, would care for the house until his death in 1982. 

59

Item 4.



Bibliography 
Bell Deed, R-454TD (Montgomery County Clerk). Retrieved from 

https :/ / cou ntyfusion 1.kofiletech. us/countyweb/logi n .do 7cou ntyna me=MontgomeryTX 

Biographical Directory of the United States Congress. {2021, January 30). Retrieved from Chilton, 

Thomas: https :/ /bioguide.congress.gov /sea rch/bio/C000359 

Biskamp, L. (n.d.). Old Montgomery; History and Geneology of Montgomery, Texas. 

Boren, B. (1999). A Journey Through Time ... The Chilton and Boren Families. 

Boulware, N. M. {2002, November 18). New History In Old Montgomery. 

Boulware, N. M. (2021, January 30). Montgomery County News. Retrieved from 

http://montgomerycountynews.net/new-history-in-old-montgomery-p235-123.htm 

Brown, R. (2021). Ancestry.com. Retrieved from https:/ /www.ancestry.com/family

tree/person/tree/78603857 /person/152094866061/facts 

Chilton Deed, Q-54D (Montgomery County Clerk). Retrieved from 

https://countyfusion1.kofiletech.us/countyweb/login.do7countyname=MontgomeryTX 

Chilton, F, B. (1911). Unveiling and dedication of monument to Hood's Texas brigade on the capitol 
grounds at Austin. Houston. 

Daniell, L. E. (1889). Personnel of the Texas State Government. Austin: Smith, Hicks & Jones, State 

Printers. 

Daniell, L. E. {1892). Personnel of the Texas State Government. San Antonio: Maverick Printing House. 

Dean Deed, 13-2230 (Montgomery County Clerk), Retrieved from 

https://countyfusion1.kofiletech.us/countyweb/login.do7countyname=MontgomeryTX 

Encyclopedia Britannica. (2021). Retrieved from https://www.britannica.com/biography/Davy-Crockett

American-frontiersman-and-politician 

Encyclopedia.com, (2021, January 30). Narrative Of The Life Of David Crockett Of Th(! State Of 
Tennessee. Retrieved from https://www.encyclopedia.com/arts/culture-magazines/narrative

life-david-crockett-state-tennessee 

Frank Deed, Y-496D (Montgomery County Clerk). Retrieved from 

https://countyfusion1.kofiletech.us/countyweb/login.do7countyname=MontgomeryTX 

Hannum, S. E, (1964), Thomas Chilton Lawyer, Politician, Preacher. The Filson Club History Quarterly 38, 
97-114, 

60

Item 4.



Historical Marker Cathalorrl. (2021). Texas Historic Commission Atlas. Retrieved from 

https :// atlas.the.state. tx. us/Map 

Historical Marker Shelton-Smith House. (2021). Texas Historic Commission Atlas. Retrieved from 

https:// atlas. the .state. tx. us/Map 

Louisa Deed, W-419D (Montgomery County Clerk). Retrieved from 

https :// countyfusion 1.kofiletech.us/ countyweb/logi n .do ?co u ntyname=MontgomeryTX 

Martin. (n.d.). A History of Montgomery. 

Moore, S, B. (2021). Montgomery County County Gen Web. Retrieved from "A TRAGICAL AFFAIR" IN OLD 

MONTGOMERY: http://www.countygenweb.com/txmontgomery/mcgrew.htm 

Morrell, Z. N. (1873). Flowers and Fruits from the Wilderness; Or, Thirty-six Years in Texas and Two 
Winters in Honduras. 

Price, J. (n.d.). The Golden Triangle Dobbin, Dacus, Montgomery. 

Riley, B. F. (1907), History of the Baptists ofTexas. Dallas. 

Shelton Deed, O-139D (Montgomery County Clerk). Retrieved from 

https://countyfuslonl.koflletech.us/countyweb/login.do?countyname=MontgomeryTX 

Shiver, J. (2015, August 13). Encyclopedia of Alabama. Retrieved from 

http://encyclopediaofalabama.org/ article/h-3693 

Steger, M. V. (TBD). TBD. TBD. 

Stephens, J. R. (2016). Wildest Lives of the Frontier: America Through the Words of Jesse James, George 
Armstrong Custer, and Other Famous Westerners. Two Dot. 

Young Deed, 11-40D (Montgomery County Clerk). Retrieved from 

https://countyfuslon1.kofiletech.us/countyweb/login.do?countyname=MontgomeryTX 

61

Item 4.



Meetin11 Date: Februarv 16, 2021 

Preuared Bv: Richard Tramm 

Montgomeiy Economic Development Corporation 
AGENDA REPORT 

Budgeted Amount: $20,000 for all EconDev 
Grants for 2020-2021 Fiscal Y ea1· 
Exhibits: Economic Development Grant 
Annlication #2021-01 

Discuss and consider Economic Development Grant Application submitted by Troy Tep LLC. 

Discussion 
Economic Development Grants fall within the authority of the MEDC to grant where the 
Board of Directors feels they are appropriate. MEDC funds used in this manner are intended to 
promote new business development or enhance development of existing business. I have 
reviewed the application for several considerations prior to this coming to the Board of 
Directors: 

1. Is this type of expenditure legal/appropriate for consideration? Signage of this type 
could enhance business activity at this location, which would make this a pem1issible 
expense. For the MEDC to approve this grant the MEDC Board of Directors must 
determine the signage will promote expanded business development. 

2. What is the perceived economic benefit? The perceived economic benefit could be 
improved visibility to this location attracts additional business activity to in-City 
businesses. Whether there would be perceived economic benefit and if that level of 
economic benefit would be sufficient to award grant funds must be determined by the 
MEDC Board of Directors. The applicant is estinlating $24,000.00 in additional tax 
revenue generated to the City in annual sales for all units, which would represent a 
total of$1,200,000.00 in taxable sales to be made. If the provided estimate of 
$24,000.00 in annual tax generation to the City is accurate, $6,000 of that would return 
to the MEDC over the same period. 

3. Is this location for the grant request in the City? Yes, this location noted in the 
application is in the City. 

4. Does the proposed work to be done under the grant conform to City requirements? 11te 
proposed signage included was reviewed by the City's Director of Planning and 
Development, who concluded it meets City sign requirements. The owner would still 
need to make all appropriate permit applications for signage to the City. As of this 
time, the City has not received an application for the appropriate pennit for this sign. 

In the past, the MEDC has typically limited Economic Development Grants to 33.3% of the 
total cost up to a $5,000 maximum. The applicant is requesting•a total of$20,000 and has 
included a basic statement of their ro · ected economic im act in exhibit E, as re uired to 

62

Item 5.



Montgomery Economic Development Corporation 
AGENDA REPORT 

request an exception to the funding limit. If a grant of $10,000 or greater is approved, it must 
also be approved by City Council. 

This item was first read at the MEDC Meeting of January 19, 2021 and was the subject of a 
Public Hearing earlier this evenimr. 

lication and make a determination as the Board sees fit. 

Ci Administrator · Richard Tramm Date: Februar 11, 2021 

63

Item 5.



City of Montgomery, TX 
Economic: Development Corporation 
Grant Application 

Company Name: 

Troy Tep LLC 
Company Contact: 

Troy Tep 
Best Phone: 

936-718-3822 
Email Address: 

troytep1@gmail.com 

a.02 I --o I 

TEXAS ,# 
' 

Title : 

Owner 
Alt. Phone: 

City, State, Zip: Physical Address: 

22453 FM1097 Rd. Montgomery, TX 7735 
City, State, Zip: Malling Address (If different): 

111 Anna Springs Ln Montgomery, TX 77356 
Applicant's years of experience In this business: 

2 years 
How long has his business been located In 
Montgomery? 

9 months 

Do you own or lease this facility? If leased, please provide owner Information and a copy of lease agreement. 

Owner Name: Owner Phone: 

Iii OWN 0 LEASE 

Provide a detailed description of the proposed project as "Exhibit A" attached Attached 
What Is the estimated total cost of the project? 
(Include supporting Information, le estimates/quotes as "Exhibit B" attached) 

How much funding are you requesting from the MEDC for this project? 
(Typical grants are awarded at 1/3 the total project cost or up to $5,000) 

X Are you requesting an exception for additional funding on this project? 
(Please provide additional supporting evidence for this request as "Exhibit C") 

$$24,650 

When will this project begin? What Is the estimated completion date? 

12/15/2020 Tentive 1/15/2021 

Attach all drawt'ngs of planned Improvements as "Exhibit D" Attached 

Include a description of expected commercial revitalization Impact & sales tax revenue Impact as "Exhibit E" 

If this project will employ Montgomery vendors, please supply details as "Exhibit F" 

Applicant's Signature: _ _ _ _.a::.~-~- -+.,.,L-------
Tltle: Owner 

Date: /4i -61-aloJ->O 
OFFICE USE: 
Date Application Received: Date ~ esented to Board: □ APPROVED □ DECLINED o I· I • l'i.\ 
1'2 - 10, 2.02.0 t-i-J o).._, It, • tOl..\ 

Performance Agreement Project Completion Date: Funding Date: Checlc Number: 
Received: 

64

Item 5.



Montgomery Economic Development: Corporation Grant: 
PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT 

THIS PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT is made and entered into as of ______ __,(date) by and 

between THE MONTGOMERY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION (MEDC) and 

____________________ (Grant Awardee), whose business address is 

In consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained and, intending to be legally bound hereby, the MEDC 

and Grant Awardee agree as follows: 

L Grant Awardee will complete the grant application. 
2. MEDC will notify GrantAwardee by U.S. Mail. 
3. In the event that the property covered by the grant is leased, the Grant A wardee must provide the 

city with a letter of approval from the property owner for said improvements to commence. 
4. Grant Awardee must submit plans to city for proper approvals and proper city permits. 
5. A proposed project must start after grant approval and be completed within six (6) months of the 

date of this agreement or according to the terms of this agreement. 
6. When the project is complete, the Grant Awardee must request the MEDC to verify completion and 

costs. 
7. Grant Awardee must agree to maintain said enhancements/improvements for a period of time not 

less than twelve (12) months. 
8. Upon notification by staff that the project has been completed and a satisfactory Performance 

Agreement has been executed by both parties, the MEDC will transfer awarded funds to the Grant 
Awardee for reimbursement of costs up to the awarded amount at the specified matching ratio. 

9. Only costs from a vendor for purchased labor or materials will be recognized for matching funds. 
Costs for the applicant's employee labor or in-stock materials are not eligible for reimbursement. 

10. MEDC may, at its sole discretion, extend the period of performance. 
11. The MEDC Representative wlll verify start of work and completion of work. 
12. No grant reimbursement funds will be paid until the project is complete. Cost incurred prior to the 

date of the grant approval may not be recognized for matching funds. 

Date of Completion, The date of completion of the project is established as _________ _ 

Payment. At completion of project MEDC agrees to maim the following payment in U.S. funds to Grant 
Awardee, provided Grant Awardee complies with all of the covenants and stipulations contained in this 
Agreement. 

A set fee ofup to----------------' 

Grant Awardee 

MEDC President 

65

Item 5.



"Exhibit A" 

I am applying for a grant from the Montgomery EDC to install a marquis plaza sign. 

I have recently constructed a strip center In the city of Montgomery in the growing area 
off 1097 and Buffalo Springs Dr. This strip center consists of a total of 5 commercial 
retail spots available for lease. 

The marquis plaza sign I am proposing lo install wlll have 5 spots available to comprise 
each business that will be localed within the strip center. It will be constructed of stone 
with Interchangeable signs listing the business names. The overall height WIii be 8'0" by 
6'0" in width. 

66

Item 5.



#1 

#3 

) 
;;t··~·!1.;;~ ~.i:;~,:,~~~;-::::-::.:l~ti?tJ 
-.\11!·rn11.-... ,1! :-.•l:1<~ ·t.::,:-;,~cH:.,· .. -•1,l l❖l 

t;\JU,. - ....... , .• ..,J),.6xi 
'U,\; ~ ........... . 1-1 ,M/ 
1•)11.\.·-- •- •-=fl IT1r 

" l l f 1:.,.-1•"'t ..tfl::tu~ 1b-..~•---C' ..,.,...,.,.,, _ ___ ,.. • • _ __._ .... 

l~pp,~•~ or-=.- · · ·· · 

"Exhibit B" 

#2 

Prfo fu tl1• ~t1110• el'""' rY'•" 
-~l•,, 1'-l'l·••,t,-·•-• •----• • ·•·•-- ·•·•1"i'❖ 
- ~ "l"lH~tt\H'-'lh .. ~ 1., l\t1>1-:.,., .... 'fl I.~) 
•:'il .J•1fWl .'11/,-r--,-,-.- - .. •SJJ\{t . .._ ......... -. ... _ ...................... - --.• "' 

h~IA; 't\')II IM.---•Jl1.\'II 
1j..,..,;. - - ·- - --- • • • 

I 
TROV111 OOUUTtJ 

•~it.,, ~H~~, ,-;~oH & 0~1ve TH;, ........ -· ·- ,..__ 
~v-.., 1u1r•n . I ~Oflr ,,, .. """".jl..lllf;~'l .. __ ~(Olt' ...., .. , ... , ~. 

l i,\t1 11'"- °"'IU' l • otlt l • •"""t o,-0 1.-
~ /I I(': :c",:.t.'l.~~tv-•111......_,,,~-..:,., .,, 

J&SSiuns 
l'h: 7 11,21!1l• 71il') 
j,,u .. ,, , ,•• • • ti u .:, ,iJ ,,ll'!'f 

67

Item 5.



"Exhibit C" 

I am requesting additional funds above the maximum allowance of $5,000. Due to the 
exponential cost of the building and other associated cost (ie. Utllltles, landscape, 
sprinkler, etc.). 

At this time, I would like to request an additional $15,000 to help relieve some of the 
burden for Installing the maquls plaza sign for the strip center. 

As you will see In "Exhibit E" the city stands to profit greatly from the Incoming 
businesses that open in the available retail spots. 

I have attached some of the costs that I have Incurred to date to help you all better 
understand the reasoning for the additional request of funds. 

68

Item 5.



"Exhibit D" 

69

Item 5.



TRov·s 
DONUTS 

· · Tenant 2 

Tenant 3 

Tenant4 

( ) Tenant 5 

70

Item 5.



"Exhibit E" 

I have enlisted the help of Montgomery County realtor Jim Clari< to help lease out the 
remaining 4 spots of the recently built strip center. One of the retail spots Is currently 
under lease with Troy Donuts. 

These additional 4 spots will help bring businesses into the city of Montgomery. The 
current goal is to seek out franchises to lease to. This business model has proved to be 
efficient and help with less turnover. 

Below you will find the estimated tax revenue of the leased spots. 

Trov. Donuts 

• Estimated Tax Revenue Impact based on 2%-

0 $400/ month 

O $4,800/ year 

Lease s11aoo 2 thru & 

• Estimated Tax Revenue Impact based on 2%-

0 $400/ month x 4 

o $4,800/ year x 4 

Total lmgaot • $24.l!J!l!. 

In addition to the tax Impact, city water will be utilized as well. With the overall positive 
Impact to the city being greater than the total presented above. 

71

Item 5.



"Exhibit F" 

The current tenant Troy Donuts is employing the following local vendors: 

• Kroger Grocery Store 

• JWAC Distributing (Otto's pub and brewery) 

The remaining 4 spots to be leased could be of great help to the community by sourcing 
supplies from local vendors as well. 

72

Item 5.



Meeting Date: Februarv 16, 2021 

Prepared By: Richard Tramm 

Montgomery Economic Development Corporation 
AGENDA REPORT 

Budgeted Amount: $20,000 for all EconDev 
Grants for 2020-2021 Fiscal Year 
Exhibits: Economic Development Grant 
Application #2021-02 

Discuss and consider Economic Development Grant Application submitted by Montgome1y 
Historical Socie . 

Discussion 
Economic Development Grants fall within the authority of the MEDC to grant where the 
Board of Directors feels they are appropriate. MEDC funds used in this marmer are intended to 
promote new business development or enhance development of existing business. I have 
reviewed the application for several considerations prior to this coming to the Board of 
Directors: 

I. Is this type of expenditure legal/appropriate for consideration? Work of this type can 
be considered to add to the aesthetic appearance of the community. Given 
Montgome1y's identification with its history, this also potentially adds to improve the 
appearance of a tourism site. Each of these reasons could make this a permissible 
expense. 

2. What is the perceived economic benefit? Economic benefit related to tourism and 
quality of life considerations, which are allowable considerations, are less direct but 
still potentially important considerations. These are drivers that bring people into the 
community and those same people also engage in other activities that drive the 
economy. 

3. Is this location for the grant request in the City? Yes, this location noted in the 
application is in the City. 

4. Does the proposed work to be done under the grant conform to City requirements? The 
proposed fence was reviewed by the City's Director of Planning and Development, 
who concluded this work will require City Planning and Zoning Commission approval 
since the cemetery is a City-designated landmark. 

In the past, the MEDC has typically limited Economic Development Grants to 33.3% of the 
total cost up to a $5,000 maximum. The applicant is requesting a total of $9,500 for a project 
totaling $16,766. 

This item was first read at the MEDC Meeting of Janumy 19, 2021 and was the subject ofa 
Public Hearin earlier this evenin . 

73

Item 6.



Montgome1y Economic Development Corporation 
AGENDA REPORT 

Review and consider the application and make a determination as the Board sees fit. 

Ci Administrator Richard Tramm Date: Februa 12, 2021 

74

Item 6.



City of.Montgomery, TX 
Economic IDeveDopment Corporation 
Grant Application 

Company Name~ 

I~ t Stof'rc.C1. l Scc..~t\J f\r\l\ i'\ i::uoVV\ ev-v 
ComJ'Y? Contact: 1 Title: 1 

k~rl< ~oY\e-5 Mes'Y\~er 
Best Phone: Alt. Phone: 

TEXAS ~ m 1837 

9.s~ - ©'3q ··7sl9 ct:?l- S97 ·- L/obo 
Email Address: 

-k lr"k \~n~S fu3ru v4hCIO•. c..o·m 
Physical Address: ✓ City, State, Zip: 

:so<?., ?o"'d S{. fnm .l ci~ l'Y\(.> rv TX ,73S6 
Malling Address (if different): City, State, Zip: ' 

A 

Applicant's years of experience In thrs business: How long has his business been located In 
Montgomery? 

~ GC:i. v,s 
Do you own or lease this facllity? If leased, please provide owner Information and a copy of lease agreement. 

Owner Name: Owner Phone: 

l!1owN □ LEASE 

Provide a detailed description of the proposed project as "Exhibit A" attached 

What Is the estimated total cost of the project? $ t 6 1c;c. (Include supporting Information, le estimates/quotes as " Exhibit B" attached) . 
How much funding are you requesting from the MEDC for this project? 
{Typical grants are awarded at 1/3 the total project cost or up to $5,000) $ 9 . t1500 

Are you requesting an exception for acldii:lonal funding on this project? 
(Please provide additional supporting evidence for this request as "Exhibit C") $ 

When wlll this project begin? What Is the estimated completlon date? 

~~ '°r-Uc..fv ~()'a\ fe1. - ~J\cd·c.,h 'o..O'd- \ 
I 

Attach all drawings of planned Improvements as " Exhibit D" 

Include a description of expected commercial revitalization impact & sales tax revenue Impact as "Exhibit E" 

If this project will employ Montgomery vendors, please supply details as "Exhibit ~ 

Appllcant's Signature: JI/,~ ~ U L .. "" 
Title: /Je,f;Jf; )D~uT 
Date: t_,;1..,, ~-- NJat? 

0FF(OE l!JSE: 
Date Application Received: Date P4esenter to Board: □ APPROVED □ DECLlNED o(- f - ,oz. 
o I - I \ -~~2-{ 0'2.. - " ' 10 2,.1 
Performance Agreement Project Completion Date: Funding Date: Check Number ; 
Received: 

I 

75

Item 6.



N 

l 

ii 
'A 

~: 

f ,. 
j 
~ _ Olj;_""'"'..,...""""'J•r;..,,,,==-==~==_,,,"'-""\t4f.St,;=..,,,;;lrt-· 10!,f:f:1""' ·-""""'-7!.;,_~- -·· 11~. ..:;:§1£!,-r= 

;;2__ O() ' 

! .ro' 'vJ - ' 

s 
76

Item 6.



Justification and Scope 

The Old Montgomery Cemetery 
Community Improvement Project 

Exhibits A-F 

The historic district in downtown Montgomery is a pleasant, interesting destination for many visitors 

and school children learning about the town's history. In addition, hundreds of people drive through our 

city each day. Several years ago, Montgomery city leaders passed an ordinance that was intended to 

identify and preserve the historic ambiance of the center of the city through a zoning overlay. Part of 

the intentions were to assure that existing and new architectural elements met somewhat nonspecific 

recommendations intending to preserve or give the area a certain look. The chain link fence 

surrounding one of our most historic treasures is not appealing and does not coincide with the intended 

ambiance of the area. No doubt, the fence is not intended to keep anyone in or out, but does serve as 

boundary markers for one of the most historic sites in the city. Also, a visual upgrade in this area would 

coincide with the intentions of the recently adopted City of Montgomery Comprehensive Plan and the 

rejuvenation of the downtown. 

The BSA Troop 491 Eagle Scout project involving a fence replacement project at the New Montgomery 

Cemetery next to City Hall provides inspiration to undergo a similar project at the Old Cemetery. There 

have been discussions about this in the past, but there was always a question of who is in charge of the 

cemetery. Although the Old Cemetery belongs to the entire community, the land ownership has been 

deeded to the Montgomery Historical Society from the First United Methodist Church, the original 

owners. The proposal would be to remove the existing chain length fence and replace it with an 

ornamental wrought iron fence. Wrought iron fencing exists in various locations within the cemetery 

and the adjacent private section, and there are other wrought iron elements at the Living Savior Church 

and nearby to the north at the Clover property and others. 

There are several community organizations that should have a vested interest as well as an interest in 

participating financially in such a project. These organizations may include Montgomery County 

Historical Commission, Montgomery Historical Society, First Methodist Church of Montgomery, Living 

Savior Lutheran Church, and Montgomery Economic Development Corporation. 

This undertaking is too large for an Eagle Scout project, and funding sources would likely be the same. 

Bids from reputable companies have been submitted, and are summarized on an attachment. Some 

discussions in the past have included a much more decorative vision (attached rendering) for the 

appearance of the cemetery, but that is not likely to happen in the near future and is not even 

considered within the scope of this proposal. Fencing installed now can be used as part of a future, 

more comprehensive project. 

The present project proposal would involve the removal and replacement of about 700 linear feet of 

fence. This includes all existing chain link fencing throughout the cemetery. The new fence would be 

77

Item 6.



about four feet tall with decorative picket caps similar to the fence at the New Cemetery. Installation 

should occur on the exact line as the existing fence; therefore, no surveys will be needed. Also, there 

should be no further disruption of known and unknown gravesites. The existing fence between the 

public and private sections wil l be removed but not replaced per an agreement between the Historical 

Society and the owners of private section. Drive-through gates (mowers} and walk-through gates will be 

installed in the approximate locations of existing gates. 

Pricing and Funding 

This project has been considered for several months, and was put on hold because of COVID-19 issues. 

Three bids were received, but only one contractor followed up and came to visit the project site. This 

contractor also provided the lowest initial bid. More recently, the lowest initial bidder has submitted 

updated pricing (December 2020, March 2021}. Using the pricing from this contractor along with a small 

change in scope of the project, the following costs are reflected: 

Note: Numbers in red represent current pricing due to increase cost of steel. 

Remove and dispose old fence @ 

Install 700 linear feet new fence @ 

Install 3 walk-through gates @ 

Install 2 drive-through gates @ 

TOTAL 

450 

15,400 

378 

538 

$16,766 

450 

16,200 

473 

673 

$17,796 

The Living Saviour Lutheran Church has agreed to share in the cost of the project to the extent of the 

section of the fence that borders their property. This part of the project is 160 linear feet plus one walk 

through gate for a total of $3,838 $3,961. 

The Montgomery Historical Society is seeking partial funding from the Montgomery Economic 

Development Corporation in the amount of: 

Total Project 16,766 

Lutheran Church participation 3,838 

Historic Society participation 3,428 

Requested MEDC participation 9,500. 

Other Notes 

17,796 

3,961 

5,539 

9,500 

The contractor indicates that the availability of steel is becoming scarce in the very near future causing 

6-8 month delays in acquisitions along with subsequent price increases. In fact, the bid for the project 

will increase by about $4,000 in February-March. 

78

Item 6.



There will be no direct economic impact to the City with regards to tax revenue increases or local jobs 

created. However, the benefits to the overall ambiance of the downtown area will be dramatic as 

described above at a relatively low cost. 

OLD CEMETERY FENCE BID SUMMARY 

Specifications 

Remove and discard old fencing 

760 linear feet (original bid scope) 

Galvanized, powder-coated 16 gauge steel 2X2" posts and panels 

Galvanized, powder-coated steel brackets and fasteners 

4X4" corner posts 

Four feet tall panels, 5/8" extended pickets with decorative caps 

Three 36" walk-through gates 

Two 72" drive-through gates (mower) 

Posts set 36" deep in concrete 

Contractor 

All materials and labor described above will be provided by Titan Fence Company (Mr. 
Daran Free). 

Original Bids 2019 

Titan Fence Co. WS Fabrication 360 Fence Co. 

Total 17,407* 24 000** ) 23,950 

*Includes 8.15% discount for historical heritage project. This is the only contractor that 
visited the site. 

**Does not include removal of old fence 

The scope of work has changed some since this original bid. The purpose of the above is 
to show relative differences between competitive bids. 

79

Item 6.



80

Item 6.



1111/2021 

Re: Cemetery Fencing 

Dale Spradling <dale.spradling@gmail.com> 
Mon 1/4/2021 5:25 PM 

To: !(irk <kirk@groggydogtees.com> 

Mall - Kirk• Outlook 

Yes, Betty Rose (the last surviving member of the Smith family), and her daughter consent to the 
Montgomery Historic Society plans to install a wrought iron fence around the Smith Cemetery. All 
we ask is a gate located where the current gate sits, and a sign facing Cemetery street proclaiming 
the site to be the Smith Cemetery. 

Moreover, we do not see the need for a fence on the east line between the Smith Cemetery and the 
Old Cemetery. 

Please let me know if you have any questions. 

Dale 

On Sun, Dec 27, 2020 at 2:56 PM Kirk < kirk@groggY.dogtees.com > wrote: 
It w,is a pleasure meeting you the other day. Thank you for your interest in our project to beautify the 
Old Cemetery. The project involves removing the old chain link fence and replacing it with four feet 
tall wrought iron decorative fencing. Gate(s) will be included in the west line near the private section. 

As I mentioned, I would appreciate your written permission on behalfofyourfamilyto have the 
private section of the cemetery included. An e-mail will be sufficient. 

I will forward your suggestion to the Montgomery Historic Society about eliminating the fence dividing 
the public and private areas. No doubt, this will save a lot of costs for the project while It ls not 
providing much practical benefit for either party. 

I look forward to receiving your letter/e-mail granting permission. 

Also, if you have Bob Peel's e-mail address or phone number, would you please relay It to me? 

I<irkJones 
936-689-7319 

Dale W Spradling PhD, CPA 
4747 Research Forest Drive #180-256 
The Woodlands, Texas 77381 
281-615-0357 

https://oullook.offlce.com/malVinbox/id/AAMkADNmOGQzNDlmLWFlMGEtNDVIOS1hZ]RhLTgzMJ14M2FJNDQxNQBGAAAAAADdWhzLHdyoS7ZNz9%... 1/1 81

Item 6.



Februa 16 2021 
Richard Tramm 

Consideration of Signage Grant Policy. 

Discussion 

Montgomery Economic Development Corporation 
AGENDA REPORT 

Bud eted Amount: NA 
Exhibits: Draft Si na e Grant Polic 

Although few grant requests were made in 2020, the MEDC has received several inquiries 
regarding grant funds in the last two months which include two for signage. During my 
research related to grants for signs and discussions with the City Attorney, I would advise 
caution related to being liberal in providing grants for signage. One particular item of note is 
that providing a grant of this type includes a determination of the MEDC Board that the grant 
would promote expanded business development, which could be difficult when applied to a 
sign which might otherwise be considered an ordinary business expense. From my review of 
this item, I have developed a draft of a policy based on a similar policy used in another EDC 
and have attempted to draft reasonable guidelines that will help guide the MEDC with respect 
to approving grants for signs. 

Recommendation 
Consider and discuss the draft Signage Grant Policy and consider approval or provide 

direction to the City Administrator related to this item. 

Ci Administrator Richard Tramm Date: Februar 11, 2021 

82

Item 7.



Montgomery Economic Development Corporation 
Cost-Sharing Signage Grant Polley 

Approved ___ _ 

Background 

It is within the scope of an economic development corporation's (EDC) body of work to consider requests for 
financial assistance from a local business for signage improvements to their building or property If the signage 
is to promote expanded business development. This in no way obligates the EDC to such a policy. 

The Montgomery Economic Development Corporation (MEDC) has determined it necessary to clarify the 
policy and the procedure for slgnage grants, which resulted in the following policy. 

Policy 

The MEDC makes available to businesses within the city limits of Montgomery an opportunity to apply for a 
signage grant according to criteria established and enforced by Its Board of Directors. Highest priority will be 
given to business signage projects that offer the most improved visual effects for the business community and 
also serves to promote expanded business development in the City. For the purposes of this grant, signage may 
be Interpreted, at the sole discretion of the MEDC board of directors, to include a building fai;ade that includes 
appropriate signage on the building exterior. 

Funding of this grant program is entirely dependent upon the annual MEDC approved budget and may change 
from year to year. Currently, the budget for this line item is set at an annual maximum of $20,000 with an 
individual limit of up to (but not guaranteed to be equal to) $5,000.00 per approved application and completed 
project. The actual amount to be approved for any specific signage grant will be determined by the Board of 
Directors at the time of approval. 

Grants will be limited to one per business owner or entity no more frequently than every 5 years. 

The MEDC Board of Directors has sole discretion to determine which projects are approved. MEDC will not 
consider remodeling costs or expenses not associated with sign age projects. 

Applications for a signage grant must be made on the MEDC's designated Grant Application form and be 
received by the City of Montgomery City Administrator no later than 14 days prior to the meeting at which it 
would first appear on the MEDC Meeting Agenda. All appropriate City of Montgomery Ordinances must be 
complied with and all appropriate City Permits approved for the slgnage prior to the MEDC Board of Directors 
considering this grant application. MEDC will not consider applications for matching grant funding after the 
project has been started or completed. 

Upon completion of the project, If the Board finds the work produced to be less than the project originally 
indicated or of lesser quality than presented at the in-person presentation, the Board reserves the right to 
withdraw or adjust Its offer to provide the grant match at its sole discretion with no further consideration. 

The MEDC will not reimburse taxes due on any slgnage construction. Taxes due for signage construction and/or 
modifications will be the sole responsibility of the applicant/business owner. 

83

Item 7.



The MEDC prohibits discrimination based on race, color, sex, religion, disability, familial status, national origin or 
any other category protected by law. 

Application Process 

Eligibility 
Businesses located within the city limits of Montgomery are eligible for consideration of the matching grant. 
All signage for which grants are being requested must have all necessary City of Montgomery permits and 
other approvals in place prior to the application being considered by the MEDC board of directors. Signage 
which may be considered under this grant should be clearly visible in a way that it helps identify the business 
from the adjoining roads and/or parking areas so that it could assist In drawing the attention of customers to 
the site. 

Timeline 
A business wishing to apply for a slgnage matching grant may obtain the application from the MEDC website 
or directly from the MEDC at City Hall located at 101 Old Plantersville Road, Montgomery, Texas 77316. 
The general consideration timellne for a signage grant Is as follows: 
1. Application form received by MEDC and be deemed complete no later than 14 days prior to MEDC Meeting. 
2. Application form appears on agenda and Is read for first time at MEDC Meeting and, if it willing to consider 

the Item for future action, MEDC calls for a Public Hearing for next meeting (usually the following month but 
must be at least 7 days later by law). 

3. Convene and hold Public Hearing on the item. 
4. Consider the item at a second public meeting of the MEDC (which may, at the discretion of the MEDC, be the 

same date of the Public Hearing). The applicant requesting must be in attendance for this meeting to 
personally present the grant application to the Board of Directors. (The MEDC may allow applicants to 
appear via alternative means if MEDC Meetings are being held via a virtual format and consider that to be an 
"in-person" appearance.) 

5. If approved and constructed, Applicant will provide required documentation to the MEDC for review to 
insure conformance to all the MEDC requirements. 

6. The Board will consider approval to make the matching payment to the Applicant after all requirements are 
deemed to have been successfully completed and verified. 

It Is the applicant's sole responsibility to ensure timely delivery of the completed application to the MEDC. 
Incomplete applications will be returned to the applicant. The MEDC Administrator or the MEDC Board 
reserves the right to request additional information regarding the project at any time prior to the decision to 
consider funding the matching grant. 

Amendments or changes to the original plans or scope of work submitted to the MEDC Board after a Board 
decision has been made may result in 1) revocation or cancellation of the previous Board decision, or 2) the 
need to submit a new application, or 3) no further action if amendment(s) or change(s) are found to be 
negligible by the Board. The action to be taken Is determined by the majority vote of the MEDC Board. 

84

Item 7.



Required Documentation 
The following must be included with the completed application: 

Photo(s) or drawing(s) of current project 
Bid/Estimate from vendor describing estimated cost of project (estimate must have name and address 
of vendor) 

The Following must be submitted at the conclusion of the project: 
Photo(s) of the actual finished project 
Paid invoices (with payment confirmation) specific to the approved project (invoices must have name 
and address of vendor). 
MEDC Payment will be to the applicant and not to the company constructing the sign. 

Board Determination 

After the In-person presentation to the MEDC Board, the Board will determine what action to take. The 
MEDC Administrator will notify the applicant within 48 hours of the Board's determination. 

The amount the Board agrees to match is subject to submission and receipt of all paid invoices for the work 
outlined in the application and/or any amendments or changes to the application. Payment is ultimately 
granted If the Board approves of the final product. If, In the Board's determination, the work product Is less 
than was expected, the Board may withdraw its offer of the grant match at Its sole discretion. 

Projects approved by the MEDC Board may be matched by a to-be-determined percentage not to exceed a 50% 
match by MEDC for each dollar the applicant spends on the signage project with a maximum match of (but not 
guaranteed) up to $5000 per project. This does not Imply a guaranteed percentage or amount for any project. 

Upon receipt of the paid invoices, and final approval by the MEDC Board, the MEDC Administrator will issue 
the grant matching payment to the applicant within 10 working days. 

85

Item 7.



Montgomery Economic Development Corporation Application for Signage Match Gant 
Approved ______ _ 

A completed Grant Application and all required attachments or documentation must be submitted to the 
MEDC office after all City permits and approvals have been granted and before slgnage work begins. The 
MEDC Board reserves the right to request additional information for consideration of this application. 

I have read and understand the MEDC Policy on Cost-Sharing Slgnage Grants. ___ _ 
(Initials) 

Date of Application. ___________ Anticipated Project Start Date ______ _ 

Business Name ______________________________ _ 

Business Physical Address __________________________ _ 

(Actual address where improvement project will be made) 

Years in Business In City of Montgomery __ _ 

Owner(s) Information (please use back of this form If more space is needed) 

Name 

Mailing Address 

Telephone Numbers 

Email address 

Name 

Mailing Address 

Telephone Numbers 

Email address 

86

Item 7.



Written Scope of Work for Grant (what do you want to do, the plan): 

[ ) I have attached a separate sheet with the Scope of Work described. 

[ ] I have attached a copy of all necessary permits and other approvals by the City of Montgomery for the 
slgnage covered by this request. 

[ ) Photo(s) and/or drawlng(s) of proposed design attached (required). 

[ ] Written bid/estimate for the slgnage project to present to MEDC Board (required). Must have name and 
address of company or person providing estimate(s), 

If my project is approved for the grant match, I understand that I am required to provide photos of the 
finished project to present to the MEDC Board prior to receiving the MEDC grant match for the MEDC to 

I also understand that If the MEDC Board has any concerns about the quality of work and the finished product, 
the Board reserves the right to withdraw the grant matches at its sole discretion. 

I have read and understand the MEDC Polley on Cost-Sharing Signage Grants. ___ _ 
(Initials) 

Applicant Signature __________________ Date ______ _ 

MEDC Administrator Signature ________________ Date _____ _ 

87

Item 7.



MEDC Check list of Cost Sharing Signage Grant 

{for MEDC use below) 

Applicant __________________________ _ 

Date MEDC received application ____________________ _ 

MEDC Board meetings/public hearings scheduled _________________ _ 

MEDC Board Action and Date ________ _ 

MEDC Grant% or up to amount approved, _______________ _ 

Added Grant Stipulations: 

Final Approval by the Board 

Date ________ _ 

Approved grant match and/or% ________ _ 

Applicant Signature __________________ _ Date ______ _ 

MEDC Executive Director Signature _____________ _ Date ______ _ 

88

Item 7.



Meeting Date: February 16, 2021 
Prenared Bv: Richard Tramm 

Subject 

Montgomeiy Economic Development Corporation 
AGENDA REPORT 

Budgeted Amount: NA 
Exhibits: Planninl! Bud!!ct Worksheets 

Consideration of Funding Specific Budget Items Under Existing Categories in Cunent MEDC 
Budget. 

Discussion 
We have moved forward with preliminary planning for several items, primarily events, that are 
ready to provide budget planning numbers to the Board of Directors for inclusion in the annual 
budget. In several of the larger budget accounts, such as 52002.3 Events, funds are unrestricted 
pending allocation to specific items as the planning moved fo1ward on those items. The 
attached sheets provide a summary of the planning figures for these items that are being 
brought to the MEDC Board for approval. 

Recommendation 
Consider the items presented for approval. These may be considered for approval as a group 

in a single motion or individually, as the Board sees fit. 

Ci Administrator Richard Trarum Date: Februru 11, 2021 

89

Item 8.



MEDC Budget Amendments to Fund and Update Existing Budget Categories and Accounts 

Neighborhood Water Party (June 2021) 

Planning Budget 

Inflatables $1,000.00 

Generator 500.00 

Public Works 150.00 

Police Dept. 300.00 

Advertising 150.00 

Contingency 200.00 

Total $2,360.00 

Fern land Dedication Tenth Anniversary (September 2021) 

Planning Budget 

Vista Print $100.00 

Social Media 200.00 

Photographer 100.00 

Unplanned 1,600.00 

Total $2,000.00 

Note: The primary planning meeting has not yet taken place for this event, so the individual breakdown of a planned 

budget is not available for this event. 

Montgomery Pet Parade (October 2021) 

Planning Budget 

Police Dept. $SOD.OD 

Social Media 100.00 

Contingency 400.00 

Photographer Photographer could be funded by volunteer, sponsor or contingency funds. 

Total $1,000.00 

90

Item 8.



Quilt Walk (October 2021) 

Planning Budget 

$1,000.00 

300.00 

Quilt "Talent" 

Social Media 

Vista Print 

Postage 

600.00 (Maps, posters and event cards for booths/shops.) 

150.00 

Quilt Protection 

Quilt Hanging 

Police Dept. 

Public Works 

Contingency 

Total 

Goats on Parade 

Planning Budget 

325.00 

500.00 

500.00 

280.00 

500.00 

$5,155.00 

Concrete Cast Goats $1,400.00 

Painting Costs 650.00 

Public Works 350.00 

Total $2,400.00 

One of the long-term downtown development ideas is 

to develop a "Goats on Parade" with several individually 

decorated concrete goats in the downtown area, with 

some potentially being sponsored by area businesses. 

This would be from Downtown Enhancement Projects. 

91

Item 8.



March 15, 2021 
Richard Tramm 

Discussion 

Montgomery Economic Development Corporation 
AGENDA REPORT 

Bud eted Amount: NA 
Exhibits: None 

The Montgomery Music & Mudbugs Festival is on schedule for 1 :00 PM- 10:00 PM, March 
27, 2021. The event is being conducted by Charlie Diggs Ente1iainment & Promotions and the 
MEDC has budgeted $8,000.00 towards this event, with those costs to be applied towards 
costs that utilize City personnel, such as Public Works crews that might be involved in setup, 
cleanup and takedown; Police Depaiiment involved in security and traffic control and costs 
associated with social media romotion. 

1siiMuO,t§itiilflMI _._ ___ _______________ ______ ~ 
I ~o action recommended at this time. 

Ci Administrator Richard Tramm f Date: March 11, 2021 

92

Item 9.



3/11/2021 

. . r 

MONTGOMIRY 
. ,nr(VJY;J ~ r(r(~~ 
. . ~~ (!] ~~~) . 

~ FES;TIVAL -· _ . 
· · · .. NEAL :MCCOY 

;•\av\).· ~ . iCOOTERBROwN-~AND 
\\>~ - JASON CASS-IDY 

H0NEfJBROWNE 
. . . 10D.Y BOOTH 

JA-S0N JAMES 
HEA-THER RAYLEE_N · 

JESSE· ROACH _ 
·(ANNON -BRAND 

(NRRti, O!ij(iS 20400 EVA.STREET MONTGOMERY JX. 7735'6 
M°wf"~ e ?-r,c...,;:i..,,.,,., [ IN FRO.NT OF RANSOM'S ON"105] 

. , 

- TICKETS @ MONTGOMERYMUSiCFEST.COM 
LIVE MUSIC CRA WFISH FOOD TRUCKS 

KIDS ZONE VENDORS & MORE 

IMG_8748.JPG 

https:1/mail.google .com/mail/u/0/?ogbl#inbox/FMfcgxwlsmpJdltcZgPsh LcvSMjdrhXw?projector= 1 &messagePartld=0.1 1/2 
93

Item 9.



I Meeting Date: March 15, 2021 
I Prepared Bv: Richard Tramm 

Subject 

Montgomery Economic Development Corporation 
AGENDA REPORT 

Budgeted Amount: NA 
Exhibits: Minutes of December 5, 2017 

Consider request by Tom Ward of Montgomery Soccer Club to move inigation equipment 
approved on December 5, 2017 to an alternate location. 

Discussion 
The MEDC previously approved a grant of $9,900 for this item, as shown in the attached 
minutes. The money was allocated as $6,900 for the water tap and pipe installation and $3,000 
towards the inigation equipment with the MEDC maintaining the right of ownership of the 
irrigation equipment and limiting the removal of the equipment from the City limits. 
This organization has moved their games to a new location from the site previously authorized 
in the original grant. Currently, the irrigation equipment is at the City's Public Works shop. 
Mr. Ward has asked to be able to take the equipment to an alternative location for use with 
Club's soccer program. 

Given the change of use of the equipment, I felt that I needed to come back to the 
Mont ome EDC Board of Directors for clarification on the ro osed change of location. 

Consider the item and make a determination as the Board determines to be appropriate. 

Ci Administrator Richard Tramm Date: March 11, 2021 

94

Item 10.



MONTGOMERY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
MINUTES 

DECEMBER 5 , 2017 

Present were: Kirk Jones, Amy Brown, Bill Hanover, Cheryl Fox, Randy Moravec and 
John Champagne. Bob Kerr was absent. Also present were, Shannan Reid, Katherine 
Ferry and Jack Yates 

Call to Order - President Jones called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

Open Public Comment - There was no public comment 

Approval of Minutes of October 16, 2017 - Motion by Moravec seconded by Hanover to 
table until next meeting with two changes to be made to the minutes. All in favor 

Monthly Financial Report (October 2017) - Motion by Moravec seconded Hanover to 
approve the report as presented. All in favor 

Consideration and possible action regarding sign funding request -Amanda Hall for 312 
John A. Butler Street - Mr. champagne reported that he had spoken with Amanda Hall 
and Amanda Hall had requested this item to be removed from the agenda. 

Consideration and possible action regarding Montgomery Soccer Club request for 
funding of irrigation system for soccer fields -Jack Yates reported that the application 
submitted was for $15,607 including water tap for $4,350, pipe and installation cost of 
$2,012.23, irrigation equipment for $8,017.24 and storage shed for $1,209.09 totaling 
$15,588.56. He said that he did not know the difference between the requested amount 
and the total of the individual items. Jack went on to say that the purpose of this 
equipment is to improve and maintain the leased fields for the safety and durability of 
the fields and to hold tournaments and to get more use of the fields. 
Tom Ward, President of the soccer club was present, and said that with the Saturday 
morning games and practice during the week will bring hundreds of people into the city 
on those days and a tournament could easily bring 1,000 or more visitors into the city on 
a particular day. 
Mr. Jones asked about the durability of the irrigation equipment to which Mr. Ward 
replied saying that they will maintain the equipment well and that it is solidly built 
equipment and that the MEDC expenses would not include any future maintenance 
costs. 
Philip LeFevre was present, and said that an expansion of Montgomery business due to 
the soccer club activities would occur. 
Mrs. Fox asked about the soccer season time and Mr. Ward response was that the 
prime season was fall and spring with a brief winter break and mid-summer break. 
Mr. Moravec said that he supported the project but that he would like to remain with the 
$5,000 limit of MEDC grants for such projects. Mr. Jones replied that the $5,000 grant 
limit was for downtown fagade projects. Mr. Moravec said that he did not disagree with 
the reasoning for the request but that he disagreed with the amount. 

95

Item 10.



Motion by Champagne seconded by Brown to approve $6,900 for the tap, pipe 
installation and $3,000 toward the irrigation equipment for a total of $9,900 grant with 
right of ownership of the irrigation equipment prior to its removal from the city limits. 
Voting yes were; Jones, Fox, Champaign, Hanover, Brown. Voting no was Moravec. 

Consideration and possible action regarding MEDC Meeting Schedule for December 
2017. - Jack Yates reported that there is not usually a December meeting for the MEDC 
Board unless an emergency arose. Motion by Jones, seconded by Fox to cancel the 
December MEDC meeting. All in favor. 

Consideration and possible action regarding funding: Jack Yates reported that the 
Board had previously told him that they wanted to hear a financial report before 
approving the individual contributions to various events that are in the budget. 

a. Christmas in Montgomery - Motion by Moravec seconded by Hanover to 
approve the Christmas in Montgomery amount as budgeted. All in favor 

b. Wine and Music Festival - Ms. Brown asked for the expenses listings for the 
Wine and Music Festival. There was no action regarding funding of the Wine and 
Music Festival. 

Consideration and possible action regarding authorization to proceed with preparation 
of construction plans and technical specifications for the FM 149 Pedestrian Lighting 
Plan, to be included in the TxDOT FM 149 Improvements Project -Jack Yates said this 
was to consider the hiring of the Jones and Carter Engineering firm to perform the 
pedestrian lighting plan designed in conjunction with the FM 149 paving project. The 
$18,000 proposal, he said, is a "not to exceed" amount. A concern he said is doing a 
final layout of the conduit for the lighting plan and then to have TxDOT change their 
plans, but he said he would manage it so that does not happen. Motion by Moravec 
seconded by Fox to recommend to the City Council up to $18,000 for design of the 
lighting plan as presented. All in favor. 

Economic Development Report- Shannan Reid and Jack Yates ---TxDOT/149. Home 
Focus Report on Projects, Misc. Updates -- Mrs. Reid gave a brief report regarding the 
property located at FM 149 and SH 105 that is up for sale . Mrs. Reid gave a brief 
report regarding the possibility of a hotel being built inside the city and that she was 
working with three parties regarding such a development. She then said that she was 
working with Magnolia, Navasota and Montgomery to create a consortium that is 
planning a meeting on February 1 stor Realtors in the area. 
Jack Yates said he had nothing to report. 
Katherine Ferry then gave a brief report on projects regarding development and also 
provided maps showing active development projects and capital projects. 

Adjournment- Motion by Moravec, seconded by Hanover to adjourn at 7:31 p.m. 
All in favor. 

Jack Yates, Recording Secretary 

96

Item 10.



March 15, 2021 Bud eted Amount: NA 
Richard Tramm Exhibits: Social Media Overview Re orts 

Discussion 
Starting last summer, and continuing last fall, we implemented changes to refocus the 
emphasis on the information contained within City's social media accounts. This was largely 
in response to how the COVID-19 pandemic changed how shopping and local tourism were 
conducted. In short, our focus was directed closer to home than it had been due to the changed 
habits of people staying closer to home and being less likely to take even a regional trip. 
Attached is an overview of how the City's social media has been managed, including metrics 
related to some of the accounts. 

Review the report information and provide direction for options to consider going forward. 

Ci Administrator Richard Tramm Date: March 11, 2021 

97

Item 11.



Social Media Review 

In June 2020, the MEDC Board discussed refocusing the emphasis of the social media efforts that the 

M EDC operates in marketing the City of Montgomery. Two of the primary changes from that meeting 

were targeting to increase total audience and refocusing to reach a more regional audience. Shortly 

after that we began utilizing the Hootsuite software application to schedule and better control posts in 

both Facebook and lnstagram, which later grew to also include Facebook accounts for the Fern/and 

Historical Park and the City's Public Works Department (note: the City's Police Department Facebook 

page is managed separately). Since the use of Hootsuite began the number of followers of the City's 

social media accounts has grown steadily. I expect this is most likely due to being able to schedule a 

consistent program of posts which are often designed in a series on a topic of popular interest. In recent 

months, these series of posts have included the Goat Naming Contest among local elementary school 

students, Christmas event posts and the current series running on local historical buildings. 

The period of February 12 - 25, 2021 was easily the most active viewing period for the City's social 

media, and Face book specifically. This period includes our three most viewed posts on Facebook since 

retargeting our efforts, if not longer. The third most viewed post was from February 15, 2021 

announcing the City/MISD overnight shelter and reached over 23,000 people. The second most viewed 

post was from February 21, 2021 on the upcoming Montgomery Music & Mudbugs Festival which 

reached over 43,000 people. The most viewed post was from February 15, 2021 and included photos of 

the recently snow-filled streets in Historic Downtown Montgomery. 

Since June 2020, the number of followers of the main City Face book page has increased from 2,887 to 

5,336, which is an increase of 85%. Since we made the conscious effort to retarget our reach in the local 

region, our audience is up 64% from Conroe, 93% from The Woodlands, 102% from Magnolia and 129% 

from Willis. During this same period, our audience has remained approximately predominately female 

{79% vs. 78%) and most concentrated in the 35 to 54-year-old age range (51% vs. 52%) but has a slight 

tend downward in age range. 

Prior to my employment with the City, the social media pages have been operated by Rebecca Huss on a 

volunteer basis. That continued into last fall when the MEDC Board of Directors approved funds in the 

annual budget to compensate Ms. Huss for this work on as a consultant. Ms. Huss is also reimbursed for 

certain related expenses related to social media posts, provided these items are approved by the City 

Administrator. 

The following pages include some of the data that was reviewed for this report. 

City Administrator 

98

Item 11.



June 2020 Facebook Account Demographics 

The people who follo w y o ur Page. This n u m ber is a n est im ate. 

21'/4 2 0'1, 

w omen 13•;. 14¾ 
11% 

■ 79% -Your 0.0 345°/4 1-;-. 
Followers 

13•17 18-24 25-34 3,.44 "'~!◄ ,,-04 o,. 
Men 0% 0 .449¾ 

3'/4 4 •1. 
2•,~ 

6'/4 5% 
■ 20% 

Your 
Follo•h·ers 

Country Your Followers Ci ty Your Followers Lang uage Yo u r Followers 

United Stales or America 2,887 Montgomery, TX 1, 197 English (US) 2,806 

Unrted Kingdom 4 Conroe. TX 439 English (UK) 52 

Philippines Houston, TX 195 Spanish 29 

Paraguay The Woodlands TX 174 French (France) 4 

Mexico Dobbin, TX 161 Indonesian 

Pakistan Magnotta TX 91 s,mpltfied Chinese (Ch, 

Saud, Arabia 1MIIIS, TX 73 Spanish (Spain) 

Huntsv,lle, TX 55 Portuguese (Brazil) 

March 2021 Facebook Account Demographics 
The number o f p eop le w h o s aw a n y o f your p ost s at least once, g rouped by age a n d gen der . Aggre gated demograph ic 
dat a is b as ed on a nu m b er of factors, inc l udi ng age a n d gen der Info rmation u sers p r o v ide in t heir Facebook p ro file s. 
This num ber is a n est imat e . 

Country 

Women 

■ 78% 
Your Fans 

Men 

■ 21 % 
Your F ans 

United States of J\m erica 

M exico 

U r1ited Kingdom 

Pakistan 

N ige ria 

Germ any 

0 .0746¾ 

13, 17 

0 .0167% 

Your F3ns 

5,336 

7 

4 

3 

2 

1 2 % 

2% 

18-24 25-34 

0.522% 
3 % 

C ity 

Montgomery, TX 

Conroe, TX 

The Woodlands, TX 

Houston, TX 

Magn olia , T X 

W 1ll1s, TX 

2 1% 20% 

14% 

9 % -35-44 45-54 55-64 65+ 

2 % 
5% 4% 6 ¾ 

Your Fans L3ngu:1ge Your Fan s 

2,035 English (US) 5,191 

7 18 Engltsh (UK) 88 

336 Spanish 59 

276 Fre nch (France) 6 

184 Spanish (Spain) 4 

167 Portuguese (Braz il) 3 

99

Item 11.



2019 - Current Face book Post Reach 

Post Reach 

The number of people who saw any of your posts at least once. This metric is estimated. 

15K 

10K 

5K 

Af,f t,1Jy Jun Jul Aug Sep Oc.l Uo: □~c 

2019 2020 

Organic ■ Paid 

Feb t.lar 

2021 

2021 to Date Facebook Post Reach 

Post Reach 

The number of people who saw any of your posls at least once. This metric is estimated. 

30K 

20K 

IOK 

o,--? ~~~ 
31 07 11 

JAN 

21 28 01 

FEB 
II 18 25 

Organic ■ Paid 

0-1 

1.11\R 

011§11 

BENCHMARK 
Compare your average 
performance over lime 

Organic 

Paid 

0§§§1 

BENCHMARK 
Compare your average 

performance over time 

Organic 

Paid 

100

Item 11.



Development Report 
February 2021 

Richard Tramm, City Administrator 
Dave McCorquodale, CPM, Assistant City Administrator and 

Director of Planning & Development 

As the first quarter of 2021 nears an end, growth rates in both the residential and 

commercial markets continue to follow recent upward trends.  Homebuilding 

remains active and new developments under construction are expected to continue 

to deliver lots ahead of demand. Commercial construction activity continues within 

existing developments on the east end of the City.  We continue to monitor the 

COVID-19 pandemic and its effects on development.  Broadly speaking, short-term 

effects on City development appear minimal one year into the pandemic. Longer-

term implications for certain market segments remain to be seen.   

CITY OF 

MOl\lIGOUERY 
TEXAS /'- EST 1837 

BIRTHPLACE OF THE TEXAS FLAG 

101

Item 12.



Commercial Development 
 
East End Commercial – 

Construction on the east end of 

Montgomery continues at a moderate 

pace. The 26-acre Shoppes at 

Montgomery is active with Starbucks 

opening at the beginning of February 

and the retail center that includes 

Chipotle, Ruthie Grace Boutique, and 

HotWorx fitness studio is complete. 

AutoZone recently began site work 

next to McCoy’s Building Supply and 

Panda Express, a fast-casual Chinese 

restaurant chain, has submitted plans 

for a location next to the new 

Starbucks. 
 
   
 
Central Business District & Historic Downtown –  
 
3D’s Deli recently opened at 

401 College Street in the 

Kemifer Building next to 

Whitley Vineyards Wine 

Bar. 

 
 
 

 
 
 

102

Item 12.



Residential Development 
 
Existing homesite inventory is available, and several new residential subdivisions are under 

development. While uncertainty exists in the market, low mortgage interest rates coupled with a 

desirable community and relatively low home prices will likely keep demand for new housing 

strong for the immediate future. 

 
• 6 new homes completed in 2021 
• 6 new single-family home permits issued in March 

 
 
Hills of Town Creek Subdivision – With a total of 100 single-family homesites, this 

subdivision is immediately west of Town Creek Apartments along Emma’s Way. 80 homes are 

complete, 17 are under construction, and 3 lots are available. Plans for a new 30-lot section have 

been approved and site development work for roads and utilities is nearing completion. 

 
 
Town Creek Crossing – This addition to the Buffalo Springs Planned Development 

includes 199 residential homesites and eight commercial reserves. Site work is underway with 

homes expected to begin construction in Summer 2021. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

r-

: 
. . ;{;·, 

;'· ~..,., 
... _ -;;/\1::.' . 

..... .... ~ 

/ 
i / 

............ 

. ,,..~· 

.~;:.---;-
-· \ 

I r 

- .::- --:- - -- -::---~-
-~ --_:-==~ ~~:;:-10~~==-=~=-~~7~:- --- -,-- - , I ,,., .. 

... .. 

I ' 
I • -· -· 

I . ,,, . 
I 

I 

1 I t·· ; ...,_ - --. ,..,,-. I f".. 

= -·:.•- ~\ :'\-- .\ \ :lu, ·- 1 
¥,'L'(W '\ I l 

.. , ' -l 
~~~~-~-,-, -, 

-- - , I 
. I i : , ; 

\ I . , : ' 

17JWN CR.EEK CR05S!N6 
1111 L SQUARED ENGINEERING 
lb.Iii MUNIC4!'AL COMMERCIAL RES,IDENT\Al 

103

Item 12.



City Development Activities   
 
Texas Water Development Board Funding - The City is utilizing $2.8 million in 

TWDB funding for water and sewer infrastructure projects that include: 

• Downtown + SH105 Waterline Replacement. (City Council awarded a bid in mid-July; 
construction started in January 2021).   

• Water Plant #3 (starting work soon).   
• Lift Station #1 (completed). 
• Lift Station #3 Sanitary Force Main Reroute (design complete; process on hold pending 

final reconciling of cost for above project to determine available funding) 
 
General Land Office Severe Flood Mitigation Grant – In 2018, the City was 

awarded $2.2 million from the Texas General Land Office (GLO) for flood-related damages 

associated with 2016-2018 flooding events, which included the Memorial & Tax Day floods and 

Hurricane Harvey. A study of the Town Creek and Anders Branch watersheds on the north side of 

the City is now complete, and projects identified in the study will be implemented with a portion 

of the grant funds.  The work proposed in the study is under review by the GLO. 

 
Minimum MUD Standards – The City has been considering a framework of standards for 

MUD’s and other Special Purpose Districts in the City Limits and ETJ. As City staff explored 

establishing minimum MUD standards, they realized each situation would need to be considered 

according to its individual merits. This led toward developing a set of statements/questions for the 

City to use in working with developers going forward. They are: 

 
1. How does the District benefit its residents? (available amenities, etc) 
2. How does the District benefit the broader community? (variety of housing 

options, possible improved commercial development) 
3. How does the District benefit the City? (fiscally responsible planning, 

collaborative relationships with developers). 
 
Comprehensive Plan – The City Council adopted the Montgomery 2020 Comprehensive 

Plan in November, wrapping up a project that began in fall 2018. The Plan was developed with the 

assistance of TAMU’s Community Resilience Collaborative and Texas SeaGrant. The City held a 

series of five community meetings during 2019 to get input from residents and businesses. The full 

document can be found on the City’s website under “Latest News”. 

104

Item 12.



Downtown Improvement Plan – This MEDC-funded project to improve the downtown 

area is an approximately 7-month project that began in November 2020.  The MEDC worked with 

TAMU landscape architecture students on visioning for the project and has contracted with the 

Gunda Corporation/White Oak Studio team to lead the design efforts. The team has completed the 

site analysis and research phase of the project and has begun preliminary design work. Several of 

the slides from the design team’s site analysis are included below. 

  

Opportunities: 
Low speed/volume streets conducive to walking 

Constraints: 
SH 105 traffic not consistent with desired Downtown 
experience 

Medium Speed (30 
mph), High Volume 

Medium Speed (30 
mph), Medium Volume 

Low Speed (20 mph), 
Medium Volume 

Low Speed (20 mph), 
Low Volume 

(-\ Irregular Intersection .. , 

SH 149 traffic volume (and speed from north) not 
conducive to parking or pedestrian experience 
SH 105/John A Butler St/Prairie St. intersection 
appears confusing and may be dangerous. 

TRAFFIC 

105

Item 12.



 

Opportunities: 
Areas of t rees and lawn make Dow ntown 
pleasant and inviting. They add shade and 
human scale and br ing nature in Downtow n. 

There are over 400 parking spaces in 
Downtown. 
Most businesses have private parking spaces. 
Montgomery has history of public-private 
cooperation. 

Constraints: 

Green Space 

Tree Canopy 
.L.-

Some green space is pr ivately owned and 
inaccess ible for visitor use. 

Constraints: 
There is very limited public parking. 

GREEN SPACE 

Public Parking 
(About 124 Spaces) 

Private Parking 
(About 313 Spaces) 

® Parallel Parking 

Available parking is unclear to t he new visitor arriving on SH 105 
and SH 149. 
Publ ic percept ion is that on-street parking is needed on SH 149. 
On-street parking is chal lenging on SH 149. PARKING 

106

Item 12.



 
 
 
 

Businesses Opened in 2021 
 
Chandler’s Event Venue; 304 Caroline St 

Lizzy Boutique & Salon; 308 Caroline St 

Starbucks; 20219 Eva St 

3D’s Deli; 401 College Street 

--- No Sidewalk 

'I 
I 

Opportunities: Constraints: 
Pass-throughs offer views and connections 

between stores . Potential parking connectors . • 
Quiet secondary streets are walkable and 
pleasant. 

Many streets lack sidewalks. 
Wide driveways interrupt pedestrian movement 
along streets . 
Pass-throughs are privately owned. 
Some sidewalks are on private property 

PEDESTRIAN SYSTEM 

107

Item 12.



) 

) 

• ..JDNES I CARTER 

January 20, 2021 

The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
City of Montgomery 
101 Old Plantersville Road 
Montgomery, Texas 77316 

Re: Engineering Report 
Council Meeting: January 26, 2021 
City of Montgomery 

Dear Mayor and Council: 

1575 Sawdust Road, Suite 400 
The Woodlands, Texas 77380-3795 

Tel: 281.363.4039 
Fax: 2B1.363.3459 

www.Jonescarter.com 

The following information summarizes our activities on your behalf since the December 8 th Council Meeting: 

Status of Previously Authorized Projects: 

All projects discussed below are shown on the enclosed maps of active developments and capital projects. 

a) Baja Road Water and Drainage Improvements, Phase I & Phase II (CDBG) 
We are working with the Contractor, City, and GrantWorks to ensure all required documentation Is 
prepared and submitted as required by the Texas Department of Agriculture to close out the project. 

b) Water Distribution System Analysis and Master Plan - CP No. 3 - Downtown and SH-105 Waterline 
Replacement 
We held a pre-construction meeting at City Hall on December 8th. The contractor has mobilized near 
Cedar Brake Park and is installing silt fencing and performing locates of existing utilities. 

c) Water Distribution System Analysis and Master Plan - CP No. 9 - Water Plant No. 3 Improvements 
We are preparing the contract documents and plan to provide them to the contractor this week for 
execution. We are also working with the TWDB to complete project initiation documents. 

d) GLO Projects 
We are coordinating with GrantWorks to determine which of the solutions presented by BGE, Inc. will 
fit within the budget. We also plan to coordinate with City Staff this month to discuss an engineering 
contract and potential time extension. 

e) Sanitary Sewer System Analysis and Master Pian - CP No. 3b - Lift Station No. 1 Replacement 
We met with City Staff and the contractor to discuss liquidated damages that will be assessed on the 
contract. We are working with City Staff and the contractor to collect additional supporting information 
for the damages for further discussion. 

Texas Board of Prolasslonal Engineers Registration No. F-439 I Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046106 
108

Item 13.



) 
• .J □ NEs l cARTER 
Status of Previously Authorized Projects (cont,): 

City of Montgomery 
Page 2 

January 20, 2021 

f) Sanitary Sewer System Analysis and Master Plan - CP No. 10 - Lift Station No. 3 Force Main Re-Route 
As a reminder, this project is included in TWDB CWSRF loan. The design is substantially complete, has 
received TxDOT approval, and is temporarily on hold. 

Existing and Upcoming Developments: 

a) Feasibility Studies 

i. l<ammerer Tract Feasibility Study- We have completed the feasibility study and plan to present 
our findings at this month's City Council meeting. 

b) Plan Reviews 

i. Moon Over Montgomery- We received revised plans for the development on December 17th 

and provided comments to the plans on January 6 th, 

Ii. Town Creek Crossing, Section 1-We received revised plans for the development on January 14th 

and plan to return comments to the plans this week. 

iii. Panda Express - We received plans for review on January 20th and plan to complete our review 

next week. 

c) Plat Reviews 

i. Moon Over Montgomery Minor Plat-We did not receive a revised plat this month. 

d) Ongoing Construction 

I. Hills of Town Creek Section 4 - The contractor has completed the insta llation of a majority of 
the underground utilities and is currently working on paving. 

e) One-Vear Warranty Inspections 

i. Villas of Mia Lago, Section 2 - It is our understanding the contractor is working to address the 
items identified at the one-year warranty inspection. 

ii. Hills of Town Creek, Section 3 - The one-year warranty inspection was held on January 7, 2020. 
The contractor for Hills of Town Creek Section 4 will be replacing the defective section of paving 
Identified during the inspection. 

iii. Emma's Way-The one-year warranty inspection was held on February 18, 2020. The cont ractor 
for Hills of Town Creek Sect. 4 is going to be replacing the defective portion of Emma's Way 

Identified during the Inspection . . 

Texas Boord of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-439 I Taxes Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046108 
109

Item 13.



) • JDNES I CARTER 

Meetings and Ongoing Activities: 

City of Montgomery 
Page 3 

January 20, 2021 

a) Town Creek Inspection - TxDOT cleared out the portion of the channel within the Right-of-Way and are 
waiting on material to finish the installation of the rip-rap, 

b) Biweekly Operations Conference Call - We continue hosting a biweekly conference call with 
representatives from Gulf Utility Service, Inc. and City Staff. Items of note discussed during the previous 
month included updates on various warranty inspections, general updates on all active design and 
construction projects, and general operations of the City's water and sanitary sewer facilities. 

c) FM 149 & SH-105 Right Turn Lane -TxDOT has advised that the project is scheduled to be let in 2021. 

Please contact l<atherine Vu or me if you have any questions. 

Sincerely, 

Chris Roznovsky, PE 
Engineer for the City 

) CVR/kmv 
K:\W5841\W5841-0900-00 General Consultation\Meetlng Flles\Status Reports\2021\Englneer's Report 1-26-2021.docx 

Enclosures: Active Capital Projects Map 
Active Developments Map 

Cc (via email): The Planning and Zoning Commission - City of Montgomery 
Mr. Richard Tramm - City of Montgomery, City Administrator 
Ms, Susan Hensley- City of Montgomery, City Secretary 
Mr. Alan Petrov-Johnson Petrov LLP, City Attorney 

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No, F-439 I Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No.10048106 
110

Item 13.



ments - Phase 
[CBDG] 
ty Ends 02/21) 

111

Item 13.



~~l\l\~.-~-:--H ~~~-: ~. 91rgm-g~ra~m ~ ~ ~ go~--" 
· · -:, "9~ ~ LJ~ . ' ..,, 

.. P"G. 

~ -- ' ...-Sf a l,: 

112

Item 13.



• .JONES I CARTER 

February 19, 2021 

The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
City of Montgomery 
101 Old Plantersville Road 
Montgomery, Texas 77316 

Re: Engineering Report 
Council Meeting: February 23, 2021 
City of Montgomery 

Dear Mayor and Council: 

1575 Sawdust Road, Suite 400 
The Woodlands, Texas 77380-3795 

Tel: 281.363.4039 
Fax: 281.363.3459 

www.jonescarter.com 

The following information summarizes our activities on your behalf since the January 26th Council Meeting: 

Status of Previously Authorized Projects: 

All projects discussed below are shown on the enclosed maps of active developments and capital projects. 

a) Water Distribution System Analysis and Master Plan - CP No. 3 - Downtown and SH-105 Waterline 
Replacement 
The contractor is working to install the waterline along SH-105 using both open cut and trenchless 
construction. 

Temporary waterline along SH-105 Flushing valve installation on SH-105 

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-439 I Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046106 
113

Item 13.



• .JDNES I CARTER 

Status of Previously Authorized Projects (cont.): 

b) Baja Road Water and Drainage Improvements, Phase I & Phase II (CDBG) 

City of Montgomery 
Page 2 

February 19, 2021 

It is our understanding the final draw request continues to be under review by the Texas Department 
of Agriculture. The one-year warranty period ended for the project on February 17th

• We are working 
to schedule a one-year warranty inspection. 

c) Water Distribution System Analysis and Master Plan - CP No. 9 - Water Plant No. 3 Improvements 
We received approval from the TWDB on the contract documents and plans. The contractor executed 
the contracts and plan to provide them to the City this week for execution. 

d) GLO Projects 
We are coordinating with GrantWorks to determine which of the solutions presented by BGE, Inc. will 
fit within the budget. We also plan to coordinate with City Staff this month to discuss an engineering 
contract and potential time extension. 

e) Sanitary Sewer System Analysis and Master Plan - CP No. 3b - Lift Station No. 1 Replacement 
We met with City Staff and the contractor to discuss liquidated damages that will be assessed on the 
contract. We are working with City Staff and the contractor to collect additional supporting information 
for the damages for further discussion. 

f) Sanitary Sewer System Analysis and Master Plan - CP No. 10- Lift Station No. 3 Force Main Re-Route 
As a reminder, this project is included in TWDB CWSRF loan. The design is substantially complete, has 
received TxDOT approval, and is temporarily on hold. 

Existing and Upcoming Developments: 

a) Feasibility Studies -There are no ongoing feasibility studies at this time. 

b) Plan Reviews 

i. Moon Over Montgomery - We received revised plans for the development on January 28th and 
provided plan approva l on February 4th

. 

ii. Panda Express - We received plans for review on January 20 th and provided comments to the 

plans on February 4th
· 

c) Plat Reviews 

i. Moon Over Montgomery Minor Plat-We provided plat approval and signed the plat on January 
26th

. 

d) Ongoing Construction 

i. Hills of Town Creek Section 4 - The contractor has completed the instal lation of a majority of 
the underground utilities and is currently working on paving. 

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-439 I Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046106 
114

Item 13.



• ..JONES I CARTER 

e) One-Year Warranty Inspections 

City of Montgomery 
Page 3 

February 19, 2021 

i. Villas of Mia Lago, Section 2 - It is our understanding the contractor is working to address the 
items identified at the one-year warranty inspection. 

ii. Hills of Town Creek, Section 3 - The one-year warranty inspection was held on January 7, 2020. 
The contractor for Hills of Town Creek Section 4 is working to replace the defective section of 
paving identified during the inspection. 

iii. Emma's Way-The one-year warranty inspection was held on February 18, 2020. The contractor 
for Hills ofTown Creek Sect. 4 has replaced the defective portion of Emma's Way identified during 
the inspection. 

Meetings and Ongoing Activities: 

a) Town Creek Inspection - TxDOT cleared out the portion of the channel within the Right-of-Way and it 
is our understanding TxDOT plans to complete the installation of the rip-rap in the next few weeks. 

b) Kammerer Tract Coordination - We are coordinating with Montgomery County to include the 
thoroughfare plan updates that were prepared with the Kammerer Tract Feasibil ity Study in their 
overall thoroughfare plan, as well as discuss road ownership of the roads that will be constructed or 
improved as a result of this development. 

c) Biweekly Operations Conference Call - We continue hosting a biweekly conference call with 
representatives from Gulf Utility Service, Inc. and City Staff. Items of note discussed during the previous 
month included updates on various warranty inspections, general updates on all active design and 
construction projects, and general operations of the City's water and sanitary sewer facilities. 

d) FM 1097 & Atkins Creek (TxDOT) - We attended a 30% utility locates meeting with TxDOT and other 
regional utility representatives on February 18th

• We will continue to coordinate with TxDOT regarding 
right-of-way acquisition and an updated project schedule. 

e) FM 149 & SH-105 Right Turn Lane -TxDOT has advised that the project is scheduled to be let in 2021. 

f) Water Well Performance Tests -We received and reviewed t he results of the water well performance 
tests completed in November 2020. Water Well No. 2 is seeing increased levels of sand production, but 
does not require corrective action at this time. We will continue to monitor the sand production in the 
well. Water Well Nos. 3 & 4 are performing as designed and no action is recommended at t his time. 

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-43g I Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046106 
115

Item 13.



• .JDNES I CARTER 

Please contact Katherine Vu or me if you have any questions. 

CVR/kmv 

Sincerely, 

Chris Roznovsky, PE 
Engineer for the City 

K:\W5841\W5841-0900-00 General Consultation\Meeting Files\Status Reports\2021\Engineer's Report 1-26-2021.docx 

Enclosures: N/A 
Cc (via email): The Planning and Zoning Commission - City of Montgomery 

Mr. Richard Tramm - City of Montgomery, City Administrator 
Ms. Susan Hensley - City of Montgomery, City Secretary 
Mr. Alan Petrov -Johnson Petrov LLP, City Attorney 

City of Montgomery 
Page 4 

February 19, 2021 

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-439 I Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046106 
116

Item 13.


	Top
	Item 2.	Minutes Approval
	MINUTES JAN MEETING

	Item 3.	Approval of Finance Reports
	FINANCE REPORT JAN and Feb 2021

	Item 4.	Consideration of Economic Development Grant Application from Ryan Londeen for a Historical  Marker for the Chilton House and Consider Calling a Public Hearing, if necessary.
	GRANT APPLICATION RYAN LONDEEN

	Item 5.	Consideration of Economic Development Grant from Troy Tep LLC for a sign at 22453 FM 1097.
	GRANT APPLICATION TROY TEP

	Item 6.	Consideration of Economic Development Grant from Montgomery Historical Society Regarding Old Montgomery Cemetery Improvements.
	GRANT APPLICATION MONTGOMERY HISTORIC SOCIETY

	Item 7.	Consideration of Signage Grant Policy
	SIGNAGE GRANT POLICY

	Item 8.	Consideration of Funding Specific Budget Items Under Existing Categories in Current MEDC Budget.
	FUNDING OF SPECIFIC ITEMS

	Item 9.	Update on the Montgomery Music & Mudbugs Festival
	MUDBUG FESTIVAL UPDATE

	Item 10.	Consider request by Tom Ward of Montgomery Soccer Club to move irrigation equipment approved in MEDC Grant on December 5, 2017, to an alternate location.
	SOCCER CLUB IRRIGATION LOCATION

	Item 11.	Review of MEDC Social Media Program
	SOCIAL MEDIA PROGRAM

	Item 12.	City Administrator's Development Report
	CITY ADMINISTRATOR'S DEV REPORT

	Item 13.	Engineer's Report
	ENGINEER'S REPORT

	Bottom

